
      

Council Chambers at City Hall
Tuesday, May 21, 2024
7 p.m.

William E. Dollar Municipal Building
200 N. Fifth St.
Garland, Texas

 

 

 

CITY OF GARLANDCITY OF GARLAND
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCILREGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL

 
The Garland City Council extends to all visitors a sincere welcome. We value your interest in our community and
your participation in the meetings of this governing body. Visit GarlandTX.gov/Council for a full list of meeting dates. 
 
The Council Chambers at Garland City Hall is wheelchair accessible, and ADA parking is available on the street as
well as in the public parking garage. Persons with disabilities who may need auxiliary aids or services must contact
the City Secretary's Office at 972-205-2404 at least two working days prior to the meeting so that appropriate
arrangements can be made. Braille is not available.
 
NOTICE::  Pursuant to Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code, one or more members of the City Council may attend this
meeting by internet/video remote means. A quorum of the City Council, as well as the presiding officer, will be physically present at the
above identified location. Members of the public that desire to make a public comment must attend the meeting in person.
      

 
 

LEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCELEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
It is a custom and tradition of the City Council to have an invocation and recital of the Pledge of Allegiance prior to
the beginning of each Regular Meeting.  Members of the audience are invited but not required to participate.  The
decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal choice. It has no bearing on matters to be considered by the
City Council and will not affect the decisions to be made during this meeting. 
 

 

MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTSMAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor may present proclamations, recognize attendees or accomplishments, and make announcements
regarding City events or other matters of interest to citizens including but not limited to listed items. There will be
no Council discussion or votes on these matters.

Eritrea Independence Day
 

CONSENT AGENDACONSENT AGENDA
All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of Council, without discussion.
Council has had the opportunity to review each of these items at a previous Work Session, and approval of the
consent agenda authorizes the City Manager or his designee to execute each item. The Mayor will announce the
consent agenda and provide an opportunity for members of the audience, as well as Council, to request that any
item be removed and considered separately.

 

1. MINUTESMINUTES   

 

a. Approve the minutes of the May 7, 2024, Regular MeetingApprove the minutes of the May 7, 2024, Regular Meeting
 

b. Approve the minutes of the May 14, 2024, Special MeetingApprove the minutes of the May 14, 2024, Special Meeting
 

2. Approve the following bids:Approve the following bids:   

 

a. Replacement of Raw Water & Air Release Valves at theReplacement of Raw Water & Air Release Valves at the
Duck Creek Wastewater Treatment PlantDuck Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant

 Bid No. 0920-24Bid No. 0920-24



   
Municipal Valve and Equipment Co., Inc.Municipal Valve and Equipment Co., Inc. $545,822.00$545,822.00  

This request is to provide for the three raw water and five air release valves at the Duck Creek
Wastewater Treatment Plant that were installed during the plant's expansion project in 2002-2006 and have
reached the end of their useful lives, requiring extensive maintenance to remain operational. Replacement
of these existing valves with new, identical valves will ensure continued, dependable plant operations and
proper integration with current equipment. 

 

b. Construction Management Service for Duck CreekConstruction Management Service for Duck Creek
Wastewater Treatment Plant UpgradesWastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades

 Bid No. 0934-24Bid No. 0934-24

   
Carollo Engineers, Inc.Carollo Engineers, Inc. $1,782,869.00$1,782,869.00  

This request is to provide construction management and inspection services at the Duck Creek
Wastewater Treatment Plant during the construction of the Filter Rehabilitation & UV Conversion project.
Carollo Engineers, Inc. will provide comprehensive construction administration and management services
for the project's duration.  They will act as the construction manager and liaison between the construction
contractor and the City, conducting progress meetings, coordinating project deliverables, and directing
regular on-site construction inspections.

 

c. White Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn Drive, and PecosWhite Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn Drive, and Pecos
Street Wastewater ReplacementStreet Wastewater Replacement

 Bid No. 0618-24Bid No. 0618-24

   
Trinity Miller Util ity Construction, LLCTrinity Miller Util ity Construction, LLC $1,751,596.50$1,751,596.50  

This request is to provide construction services for the White Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn Drive, and
Pecos Street Wastewater Replacement project.  This includes replacement of 5,400 linear feet of 8-inch
(8") and 10-inch (10") wastewater main replacement, including manholes and service laterals.  The project
also includes approximately 1,300 square yards, 6-inch (6") concrete alley paving replacement and
approximately 900 square yards of street, driveway, and sidewalk replacements. An owner's contingency
is included for any additional work or materials that may be required.

 

d. Pronar MRW 2.1010g Dual-Shaft Slow Speed ShredderPronar MRW 2.1010g Dual-Shaft Slow Speed Shredder  Bid No. 0791-24Bid No. 0791-24
   
Machinery Partner, Inc.Machinery Partner, Inc. $978,345.00$978,345.00  

This request is for one new Pronar MRW 2.1010g Dual-Shaft Slow Speed Shredder
 

e. GP&L Spencer Plant CT Wastewater Transportation andGP&L Spencer Plant CT Wastewater Transportation and
DisposalDisposal

 Bid No. 0145-24Bid No. 0145-24

   
United RentalsUnited Rentals $116,947.28$116,947.28  

The purpose of this bid is for change order No. 1 to Purchase Order 36030 Spencer CT Wastewater
Transportation and Disposal. This change order is needed to cover wastewater disposal amounts that are
greater than originally anticipated.

 

f. Comprehensive Plan UpdateComprehensive Plan Update  Bid No. 0916-24Bid No. 0916-24
   
VerdunityVerdunity $567,575.00$567,575.00  

This request is for the Comprehensive Plan Update, as discussed during the May 6, 2024 City Council
Work Session.

 

g. Four (4) replacement 2024 Autocar ACX64 Front EndFour (4) replacement 2024 Autocar ACX64 Front End
Loader ChassisLoader Chassis

 Bid No. 0949-24Bid No. 0949-24

   



Chastang Enterprises, Inc.Chastang Enterprises, Inc. $844,032.00$844,032.00  

This purchase is for four (4) replacement 2024 Autocar ACX64 Front End Loader Chassis for the
Sanitation Department.

 

h. Plumbing Service, Repairs, and ReplacementsPlumbing Service, Repairs, and Replacements  Bid No. 0532-23Bid No. 0532-23
   
United Mechanical United Mechanical $50,000.00$50,000.00  

This request is for approval to increase the funding for the existing blanket purchase order awarded to
United Mechanical for plumbing repair.

 

i. Replacement Side, Front, and Rear Loader Bodies forReplacement Side, Front, and Rear Loader Bodies for
Sanitation TrucksSanitation Trucks

 Bid No. 0946-24Bid No. 0946-24

   
Reliance Truck and Equipment Reliance Truck and Equipment $1,540,597.92$1,540,597.92  

This purchase is for three (3) replacement Labrie Side Loader Bodies, two (2) replacement Leach Rear
Loader Bodies, and four (4) replacement Wittke Starlight Front Loader Bodies for the Sanitation
Department.

 

j. One (1) replacement Pierce Velocity Aerial Truck andOne (1) replacement Pierce Velocity Aerial Truck and
one (1) Pierce Velocity Pumper Truckone (1) Pierce Velocity Pumper Truck

 Bid No. 0957-24Bid No. 0957-24

   
Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLCSiddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC $3,454,911.00$3,454,911.00  

This purchase is for one replacement Pierce Velocity Aerial Truck and one Pierce Velocity Pumper Truck.
 

k. Replacement Side Loader and Rear Loader Chassis forReplacement Side Loader and Rear Loader Chassis for
SanitationSanitation

 Bid No. 0926-24Bid No. 0926-24

   
Bond Equipment Co., Inc.Bond Equipment Co., Inc. $1,089,539.00$1,089,539.00  

This purchase is for three (3) replacement 2025 Battle Motors LET2 Side Loader Chassis and two (2)
replacement 2025 Battle Motors LET2 Rear Loader Chassis. 

 

l. One (1)  new Case CX220E Excavator for the HintonOne (1)  new Case CX220E Excavator for the Hinton
Landfil lLandfil l

 Bid No. 0950-24Bid No. 0950-24

   
ASCO EquipmentASCO Equipment $277,000.00$277,000.00  

This purchase is for one (1) new Case CX220E Excavator for the Hinton Landfill.
 

m. Term Contract for Raised Pavement MarkersTerm Contract for Raised Pavement Markers  Bid No. 0645-24Bid No. 0645-24
   
Road Master Striping LLC $393,045.00$393,045.00  

This request is to provide the installation of raised pavement markers on streets for the purpose of
designating travel lanes throughout the City. This approval is for a term agreement with four (4) optional
renewals.

 

n. GP&L Holford Switch Station MaterialsGP&L Holford Switch Station Materials  Bid No. 0730-24Bid No. 0730-24
   
Techline, IncTechline, Inc $835,000.00$835,000.00  

The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of materials needed for the construction of the GP&L Holford
Switch Station. This is part of the approved GP&L Holford Switch Station CIP project. An owner's
contingency has been included for any unforeseen material items needed.  



  

o. GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement MaterialsGP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement Materials  Bid No. 0471-24Bid No. 0471-24
   
KBS Electrical Distributors & Texas ElectricKBS Electrical Distributors & Texas Electric
Cooperatives, Inc.Cooperatives, Inc.

$501,574.69$501,574.69  

The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of transmission line materials needed for the upgrade of wood
to steel structures on the Wynn Joyce transmission line. This is part of the approved Wynn Joyce Pole
Replacement CIP project.  An owner's contingency has been included for any unforeseen material items
needed. 

 
 

p. GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell SwitchGP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch
Station Steel StructuresStation Steel Structures

 Bid No. 0774-24Bid No. 0774-24

   
KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc.KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. $1,139,000.00$1,139,000.00  

The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of steel structures and associated materials needed for the
construction of the Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station transmission line. This is part of the
approved Holford 138kV Line Loop Addition CIP project. An owner's contingency has been included for any
unforeseen material items needed.

 

q. Northwood and Lakewood Alley WastewaterNorthwood and Lakewood Alley Wastewater
ImprovementsImprovements

 Bid No. 0475-24Bid No. 0475-24

   
Trinity Miller Util ity and Construction, LLCTrinity Miller Util ity and Construction, LLC $1,840,371.75$1,840,371.75  

This request is to install approximately 1,790 linear feet of existing wastewater line, construction of 516
linear feet of 10" wastewater main, construction of 895 linear feet of 8" wastewater main, the removal and
replacement of 1,600 square yards of concrete alley paving and all incidentals in the alley between Alamo
Street and Melrose Lane along North Glenbrook Drive.

Also, installing approximately 3,450 linear feet of existing wastewater line, construction of 38 linear feet of
12" wastewater main, construction of 4,175 linear feet of 8" wastewater main, 83 linear feet of 8"
wastewater main by bore, the removal and replacement of 588 square yards of asphalt street paving and
all incidentals between North Garland Avenue and Brookside Drive along Walnut Street. An owner
contingency is included for any additional work or materials that may be required.

 

r. GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell SwitchGP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch
Station Transmission Line MaterialsStation Transmission Line Materials

 Bid No. 0623-24Bid No. 0623-24

   
Techline, Inc. & Texas Electric Cooperatives, Inc.Techline, Inc. & Texas Electric Cooperatives, Inc. $1,340,000.00$1,340,000.00  

The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of conductor, fiber, and associated materials needed for the
construction of the GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station transmission line. This is part
of the approved GP&L Holford 138kV Line Loop Addition CIP project.  An owner's contingency has been
included for any additional material items that may be needed.

 

3. A public hearing was previously conducted for the zoning case(s) below. Council approved theA public hearing was previously conducted for the zoning case(s) below. Council approved the
zoning request(s) and instructed staff to bring forth the following ordinances:zoning request(s) and instructed staff to bring forth the following ordinances:

  

 

a. Z 24-06 Barraza Consulting Group (District 7)Z 24-06 Barraza Consulting Group (District 7)

Consider and take appropriate action on an ordinance amending the Garland Development Code of the City
of Garland, Texas, by approving 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 18-41 for Mixed
Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an Office, General use on a 5.769-acre tract of land located at 2002 West
Campbell Road; providing for conditions, restrictions, and regulations; providing a penalty under the



provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a Notice of
Conditions of Compliance Clause; providing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and providing an
effective date. 

4. TxDOT Click It or Ticket Grant May 2024TxDOT Click It or Ticket Grant May 2024

Council is requested to approve a resolution for the 2024 Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP)
Click It or Ticket (CIOT) Grant and authorize the Chief of Police to execute such documents necessary to
complete the transaction.

 

5. TxDOT Operation Slowdown Grant 2024TxDOT Operation Slowdown Grant 2024

Council is requested to consider a resolution for the 2024 Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP)
Operation Slowdown Grant and authorize the Chief of Police to execute such documents necessary to
complete the transaction.

 

6. Next Generation 9-1-1 Statutory Distribution of Funds Certif icationNext Generation 9-1-1 Statutory Distribution of Funds Certif ication

Approve by minute action a request from the Police Department to allow the City Manager to execute a
statutory distribution of funds certification with the Commission on State Emergency Communications
(CSEC).

 

7. Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building B)Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building B)

Council is requested to consider a development incentive request from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP. in
regards to a proposed cold storage conversion project.

 

8. Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building C)Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building C)

Council is requested to consider a development incentive request from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP. in
regards to a proposed cold storage redevelopment project.

 

9. Request for Development Assistance from Wells Fargo Bank, NARequest for Development Assistance from Wells Fargo Bank, NA

Council is requested to consider approving the Incentive Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, NA to invest
and lease in a data center being developed by Digital Realty.
 

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATIONITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION
Members of the audience may provide public comment in favor, in opposition or about any of the items for
individual consideration. Anyone wishing to speak must fill out a speaker card (located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers) and give it to the City Secretary in advance of the respective agenda item. Speakers are
grouped by agenda item and will be called in the order of the agenda. All comments and testimony are to be
presented from the podium. The Mayor may impose a time limit and may provide for rebuttal.

 

10. Conduct the swearing in of Council Member for District 4 Conduct the swearing in of Council Member for District 4 
 

11. Hold public hearing(s) on the following Zoning Case(s):Hold public hearing(s) on the following Zoning Case(s):   

 

a. Consider a request by Mechu Autos Limited Company proposing to use the existing buildingConsider a request by Mechu Autos Limited Company proposing to use the existing building
for automobile sales use. The site is located at 702 Easy Street in District 6.for automobile sales use. The site is located at 702 Easy Street in District 6.

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Mechu Autos Limited Company, requesting
approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use on a property zoned
Industrial (IN) District and 2) a Plan for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use. This property is located at
702 Easy Street. (District 6) (File Z 24-07)

 

b. Consider a request by Shana Carter requesting a "Major Waiver" to the Downtown SignConsider a request by Shana Carter requesting a "Major Waiver" to the Downtown Sign
Standards to remove the existing awning sign and install a new sign on the building wall atStandards to remove the existing awning sign and install a new sign on the building wall at
"Roach Feed & Seed." The site is located at 409 Main Street in District 2. "Roach Feed & Seed." The site is located at 409 Main Street in District 2. 



Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Shana Carter, requesting approval of 1) a Major
Waiver to Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development Code and 2) a Downtown Development Plan to
allow an attached wall sign on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Downtown Historic (DH) sub-
district. This property is located at 409 Main Street. (District 2) (File DD 24-02)

 

c. Consider a request by Triangle Engineering, LLC proposing three (3) buildings for a restaurantConsider a request by Triangle Engineering, LLC proposing three (3) buildings for a restaurant
with drive-through, sit-down restaurants and retail uses. The site is located at 5203 Naamanwith drive-through, sit-down restaurants and retail uses. The site is located at 5203 Naaman
Forest Boulevard in District 1.Forest Boulevard in District 1.

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Triangle Engineering, LLC, requesting approval
of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail (CR) Uses; 2) a
Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use,
Restaurant Use and Restaurant with Drive-Through Use. This property is located at 5203 Naaman Forest
Boulevard. (District 1) (File Z 23-08)

 

CONSIDER APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONSCONSIDER APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Terms are usually staggered whereby at least half of the membership has previous experience. Members are
appointed based on qualifications.

 

12. Mayor Scott LeMayMayor Scott LeMay

Dorothy White - Library Board
 

CITIZEN COMMENTSCITIZEN COMMENTS
Members of the audience wishing to address issues not on the meeting agenda may have three minutes to speak.
However, according to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from discussing any item not on the
posted agenda.

 

ADJOURNADJOURN
All Regular Meetings of the Garland City Council are broadcast live on CGTV, Time Warner Cable Channel 16
and Frontier FIOS TV 44. Meetings are rebroadcast at 9 a.m. and 7 p.m. Wednesdays - Sundays. Live streaming
and on-demand videos of the meetings are also available online at GarlandTX.tv. Copies of the meetings can be
purchased through the City Secretary's Office (audio CD's are $1 each and DVD's are $3 each).

 

 

NOTICE: The City Council may recess from the open session and convene in a closed executive session if the discussion of any of
the listed agenda items concerns one or more of the following matters:

1. Pending/contemplated litigation, settlement offer(s), and matters concerning privileged and unprivileged client information deemed
confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct. Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

2. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property, if the deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on
the position of the City in negotiations with a third person. Sec. 551.072, Tex. Gov't Code.

3. A contract for a prospective gift or donation to the City, if the deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on
the position of the City in negotiations with a third person. Sec. 551.073, Tex. Gov't Code.

4. Personnel matters involving the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissalof a public
officer or employee or to hear a complaint against an officer or employee. Sec. 551.074, Tex. Gov't Code.

5. The deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or devices. Sec. 551.076,Tex. Gov't Code.
6. Discussions or deliberations regarding commercial or financial information that the City has received from a business prospect

that the City seeks to have to locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the City and with which the City is conducting
economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect of the sort
described in this provision. Sec. 551.087, Tex. Gov't Code.

7. Discussions, deliberations, votes, or other final action on matters related to the City's competitive activity, including information
that would, if disclosed, give advantage to competitors or prospective competitors and is reasonably related to one or more of the
following categories of information:

generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those costs, capital improvement plans
for generation units, and generation unit operating characteristics and outage scheduling;
bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation, and fuel, and Electric Reliability Council of Texas bids,
prices, offers, and related services and strategies;
effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and contracts;
risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;



plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales, other than transmission and
distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the public power utility is the sole certificated retail
provider; and
customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system load characteristics, and
electric power marketing analyses and strategies. Sec. 551.086; Tex. Gov't Code; Sec. 552.133, Tex. Gov't Code]

Each year, the City Council reviews and updates its goals for the Garland community and City operations. City management uses
these goals to guide operational priorities, decision-making and resource allocation.



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session a. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Approve the minutes of the May 7, 2024, Regular Meeting
Submitted By:Submitted By: Tracy Allmendinger, Deputy City Secretary
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Approve the minutes of the May 7, 2024, Regular MeetingApprove the minutes of the May 7, 2024, Regular Meeting

BackgroundBackground

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation

AttachmentsAttachments
Minutes May 7, 2024 DRAFT



D R A F TD R A F T

MINUTESMINUTES
 

 
The City Council of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 7, 2024, in the
Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 North Fifth Street, Garland, Texas, with the
following members present:

Present: Mayor Scott LeMay  
Council Member Deborah Morris  
Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Bass  
Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Ed Moore  
Council Member B.J. Williams  
Council Member Margaret Lucht  
Council Member Dylan Hedrick  
Council Member Carissa Dutton  
Council Member Chris Ott  

Staff Present: City Manager Jud Rex
Deputy City Manager Mitch Bates
Assistant City Manager Andy Hesser
Assistant City Manager Crystal Owens
Assistant City Manager Phil Urrutia
City Attorney Brian England
Deputy City Secretary Tracy Allmendinger

 
 
        

 
 

LEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCELEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
It is a custom and tradition of the City Council to have an invocation and recital of the Pledge of Allegiance prior
to the beginning of each Regular Meeting.  Members of the audience are invited but not required to participate.
 The decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal choice. It has no bearing on matters to be considered
by the City Council and will not affect the decisions to be made during this meeting. 
 

 

MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTSMAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor may present proclamations, recognize attendees or accomplishments, and make announcements
regarding City events or other matters of interest to citizens including but not limited to listed items. There will be
no Council discussion or votes on these matters.

Public  Serv ice Recognit ion WeekPublic  Serv ice Recognit ion Week

 

CONSENT AGENDACONSENT AGENDA
All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of Council, without discussion.
Council has had the opportunity to review each of these items at a previous Work Session, and approval of the
consent agenda authorizes the City Manager or his designee to execute each item. The Mayor will announce the
consent agenda and provide an opportunity for members of the audience, as well as Council, to request that any

 

11



item be removed and considered separately.

Motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Bass to approve the Consent Agenda as presented, seconded by Deputy Mayor Pro
Tem Moore. Motion carried: 9 ayes, 0 nayes.
 

1.1.  MINUTESMINUTES
 

a.a.   Approval of minutes of the April 16, 2024, Regular MeetingApproval of minutes of the April 16, 2024, Regular Meeting

Consider approval of the minutes from the April 16, 2024 meeting.

  

 

2.2.  Approve the following bids:Approve the following bids:
 

a.a.   GP&L Holford Switch Station Security  FenceGP&L Holford Switch Station Security  Fence  Bid No. 0701-24Bid No. 0701-24
   
Construction Rent-A-Fence, Inc.Construction Rent-A-Fence, Inc. $1,050,000.00$1,050,000.00  

The purpose of this bid is for the purchase and installation of an anti-scale security fence and security-
controlled access gates for the Holford Switch Station. This is part of the approved Holford 138kV Line Loop
Addition CIP project.  An owner's contingency has been included for any unforeseen material items needed.  

  

 

b.b.   GP&L & TMPA Crane Rental & Equipment Serv icesGP&L & TMPA Crane Rental & Equipment Serv ices  Bid No. 0889-16Bid No. 0889-16
   
Davis Motor Crane Davis Motor Crane $100,000.00$100,000.00  

This request is to obtain change order No. 1 to Contract Bid Award 0889-19 for as-needed crane rental and
equipment relocation services for GP&L and TMPA necessary to install and relocate transformers,
generation circuit breakers, and other electrical apparatus in the delivery of electric service.  The contract is
at the end of its term and a change order is needed to continue scheduled operations while a new contract is
bid.  Expenses associated with TMPA will be reimbursed at 100%.

  

 

c.c.   GP&L College to Jupiter Distr ibution UnderbuildGP&L College to Jupiter Distr ibution Underbuild
ReconstructionReconstruction

 Bid No. 0584-24Bid No. 0584-24

   
Mas Tec North America, Inc.Mas Tec North America, Inc. $820,088.37$820,088.37  

This request is to obtain labor services for the reconstruction of the distribution underbuild service on the
GP&L College to Jupiter 138kV Transmission Line. This is part of the approved GP&L College to Jupiter
138kV Transmission Line CIP project.

  

 

d.d.   Purchase of Furniture for Central LibraryPurchase of Furniture for Central Library  Bid No. 0821-24Bid No. 0821-24
   
Library Interiors of Texas, LLCLibrary Interiors of Texas, LLC $1,333,591.22$1,333,591.22  

This request is to provide new furniture for Central Library as part of the major renovations underway.  The
furniture being purchased from Library Interiors of Texas includes study room tables and chairs, tables and
a stage for the multi-purpose room, a work bench table, chairs and storage carts for the maker
space, furniture for the teen and children spaces, and staff work stations.  This project is part of the 2019
Bond Program and approved in the 2024 CIP.

  

 

e.e.   Purchase of Furniture for Central LibraryPurchase of Furniture for Central Library  Bid No. 0820-24Bid No. 0820-24
   
My Unique OfficeMy Unique Office $284,204.00$284,204.00  

This request is to provide new furniture for Central Library as part of the renovations underway. The furniture
being purchased from My Unique Office includes the service desk and shelving in the children's
area, display cabinets, self check-out tables, and study pods. This project is part of the 2019 Bond Program
and approved in the 2024 CIP.

  

 

  

 

22



f .f .   GP&L Shiloh to Marquis 138kV Transmission LineGP&L Shiloh to Marquis 138kV Transmission Line
Conductor Upgrade MaterialsConductor Upgrade Materials

 Bid No. 0513-24Bid No. 0513-24

   
Techline, Inc.Techline, Inc. $633,745.20$633,745.20  

This request is for the purchase of steel structures and associated materials needed for the conductor
upgrade of the GP&L Shiloh to Marquis Transmission Line. This is part of the approved GP&L Shiloh to
Marquis 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade CIP project. An optional contingency has been included for any
additional material items that may be needed.

 

g.g.   GP&L Nevada Switch Station Grading and Site WorkGP&L Nevada Switch Station Grading and Site Work  Bid No. 0512-24Bid No. 0512-24
   
DynaGrid Construction Group, LLC.DynaGrid Construction Group, LLC. $1,963,701.19$1,963,701.19  

This request is to obtain grading and site work needed for a terminal addition at the Nevada Switch Station to
serve a battery storage facility.  This is part of the approved Nevada Switch Terminal CIP project. An
optional contingency has been included for any additional material items that may be needed.

  

 

h.h.   GP&L Ben Davis to Olinger 138kV Transmission LineGP&L Ben Davis to Olinger 138kV Transmission Line
Engineering ServicesEngineering Services

 Bid No. 0850-24Bid No. 0850-24

   
Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. $411,700.00$411,700.00  

This request is to obtain professional environmental, permitting, and engineering support services to obtain a
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) for the rerouting of the GP&L Ben Davis to Olinger 138kV
Transmission Line. Services will also include land acquisition and survey services to acquire a new
easement for the reroute.  This is part of the approved GP&L OPGW Install-OL1-BD 138kV CIP project.

  

 

i .i .   GP&L Holford Switch Station Steel StructuresGP&L Holford Switch Station Steel Structures  Bid No. 0695-24Bid No. 0695-24
   
Texas Electr ic  Cooperatives, Inc.Texas Electr ic  Cooperatives, Inc. $980,000.00$980,000.00  

This request is for the purchase of steel structures and associated materials for the construction of the
GP&L Holford Switch Station. This is part of the approved GP&L Holford Road Switch Station CIP project.
An optional contingency has been included for any additional material items that may be needed.

  

 

j .j .   Lou Huff Park - Design ServicesLou Huff Park - Design Services  Bid No. 1188-22Bid No. 1188-22
   
Teague Nall and Perkins, Inc.Teague Nall and Perkins, Inc. $316,500.00$316,500.00  

This request and change order is to initiate Task 2 of the Lou Huff Park design services, which was
contemplated in the RFP. 
 

  

 

k.k.   TMPA Ben Davis Flood Mitigation Engineering ServicesTMPA Ben Davis Flood Mitigation Engineering Services
AddendumAddendum

 Bid No. 0900-21Bid No. 0900-21

   
Black & VeatchBlack & Veatch $277,762.51$277,762.51  

This request is to obtain Addendum No. 1 Black & Veatch services agreement COG053 TMPA Ben Davis
Substation Flood Mitigation. Black & Veatch will provide additional engineering design services to support
the raising of breakers and other equipment at the substation for flood mitigation and provide construction
management services to monitor project schedules and outage coordination. This is part of the approved
TMPA Ben Davis 345kV Breaker Replacement CIP project and will be reimbursed at 100%.
 

  

 

l .l .   GP&L Substation Wildlife Protection GuardsGP&L Substation Wildlife Protection Guards  Bid No. 0788-24Bid No. 0788-24
   
Techline, Inc.Techline, Inc. $331,400.00$331,400.00  

  

 

33



This request is for the purchase of Green Jacket Wildlife protection guards to be used in GP&L Substations
to protect critical infrastructure and to prevent outages caused by wildlife.

 
 

3.3.  A public  hearing was previously conducted for the zoning case(s) below. Council approved theA public  hearing was previously conducted for the zoning case(s) below. Council approved the
zoning request(s) and instructed staff to bring forth the following ordinances:zoning request(s) and instructed staff to bring forth the following ordinances:

 

a.a.   Z 24-11 Kimley Horn (Distr ic t 7) Z 24-11 Kimley Horn (Distr ic t 7) 

Consider and take appropriate action on an ordinance amending the Garland Development Code of the City
of Garland, Texas, by approving 1) a Change in Zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 99-49 for
Neighborhood Office Uses to Community Retail (CR) District and 2) a Specific Use Provision for a
Restaurant, Drive-through Use on a 1.148-acre tract of land located at 2301 Arapaho Road; providing for
conditions, restrictions, and regulations; providing a penalty under the provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a Notice of Conditions of Compliance Clause;
providing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and providing an effective date.
 

  

 

b.b.   Z 23-28 David Gibbons (Distr ic t 2)Z 23-28 David Gibbons (Distr ic t 2)

Consider and take appropriate action on an ordinance amending the Garland Development Code of the City
of Garland, Texas, by approving 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 17-25 for Multi-
family-1 (MF-1) uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an Elder Care -- Assisted Living Use on a 2.52-acre tract of
land located at 1922 Castle Drive; providing for conditions, restrictions, and regulations; providing a penalty
under the provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a
Notice of Conditions of Compliance Clause; providing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and
providing an effective date.
 

  

 

c.c.   Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove, LLC (Distr ic t 4)Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove, LLC (Distr ic t 4)

Consider and take appropriate action on an ordinance amending the Garland Development Code of the City
of Garland, Texas, by approving a Specific Use Provision for a Used Goods, Retail Sales (Indoors) Use at
5501 Broadway Boulevard, Suite 105; providing for conditions, restrictions, and regulations; providing a
penalty under the provisions of Sec. 10.05 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas;
providing a Notice of Conditions of Compliance Clause; providing a Savings Clause and a Severability
Clause; and providing an effective date.

  

 

d.d.   Consider an ordinance approving the sale of Certificates of Obligation, Series 2024
Council is requested to consider the approval of a ordinance to issue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2024
to fund a portion of the 2024 CIP.

  

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATIONITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION
Members of the audience may provide public comment in favor, in opposition or about any of the items for
individual consideration. Anyone wishing to speak must fill out a speaker card (located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers) and give it to the City Secretary in advance of the respective agenda item. Speakers are
grouped by agenda item and will be called in the order of the agenda. All comments and testimony are to be
presented from the podium. The Mayor may impose a time limit and may provide for rebuttal.

 

4.4.  Hold public  hearing(s) on the following Item(s):Hold public  hearing(s) on the following Item(s):
 

a.a.   Public  Hearing to Solic it Input from Stakeholders for the 2024-2025 Upcoming Federal GrantPublic  Hearing to Solic it Input from Stakeholders for the 2024-2025 Upcoming Federal Grant
ProgramsPrograms

Conduct a Public Hearing to gather feedback from all Stakeholders regarding the upcoming CDBG, HOME,
and ESG grant programs for the 2024-2025 fiscal year. 

Mona Woodard, Neighborhood Services Administrator spoke to Council on the next steps for the CDBG,
HOME and ESG grant programs for 2024-2025.

  

 

44



Speakers for this item were Rhonda McTyre, Stars Camp; Andrew Melcheck, Achievement Center of
Texas; Tonya Downing, Hope Clinic; Susan Hennum and Jeffrey Sheldon, Council Institue of Texas; Brian
Gaddis, After School Program; Pastor Robert Sheppard, Restoration Community Fellowship Church Summer
Enrichment Program, Haphen Muchapudra, Transcend STEM Education; Suzanna Sulfstede, The Senior
Source, Verna Jones, Under One Roof; David Swavey, Garland Police Boxing Gym; Christina DeJesus,
VNA Meals on Wheels. 

5.5.  Hold public  hearing(s) on the following Zoning Case(s):Hold public  hearing(s) on the following Zoning Case(s):
 

a.a.   Consider a request by Barraza Consult ing Group proposing to construct a general off ice use.Consider a request by Barraza Consult ing Group proposing to construct a general off ice use.
The s ite is  located at 2002 West Campbell Road in Distr ic t 7. The s ite is  located at 2002 West Campbell Road in Distr ic t 7. 

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Barraza Consulting Group, requesting approval of
1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 18-41 for Mixed Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an
Office, General Use. This property is located at 2002 West Campbell Road (District 7) (File Z 24-06)

Staff Report was presented by Will Guerin, Director of Planning. The applicant was present, but did not
speak.

There was discussion by the Council with Mr. Guerin.

MotionMotion was made by Council Member Hedrick to approve the request as presented, seconded by Council
Member Lucht. MotionMotion carried 9 ayes, 0 nayes. 

  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTSCITIZEN COMMENTS
Members of the audience wishing to address issues not on the meeting agenda may have three minutes to
speak. However, according to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from discussing any item not
on the posted agenda.

Citizen comments were made by:Pa Batch Semba Sey
 

ADJOURNADJOURN
All Regular Meetings of the Garland City Council are broadcast live on CGTV, Time Warner Cable Channel 16
and Frontier FIOS TV 44. Meetings are rebroadcast at 9 a.m. and 7 p.m. Wednesdays - Sundays. Live
streaming and on-demand videos of the meetings are also available online at GarlandTX.tv. Copies of the
meetings can be purchased through the City Secretary's Office (audio CD's are $1 each and DVD's are $3
each).

 

S ubmi tted  B y:S ubmi tted  B y:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
S cott LeMay, MayorS cott LeMay, Mayor

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Tracy A l lmend inger, D eputy C i ty  S ecre taryT racy A l lmend inger, D eputy C i ty  S ecre tary

 

55



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session b. b.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Approve the minutes of the May 14, 2024, Special Meeting
Submitted By:Submitted By: Tracy Allmendinger, Deputy City Secretary
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Approve the minutes of the May 14, 2024, Special Meeting

BackgroundBackground

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation

AttachmentsAttachments
Minutes May 14, 2024 DRAFT



D R A F TD R A F T

MINUTESMINUTES

The City Council of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 14, 2024, in the
Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 North Fifth Street, Garland, Texas, with the
following members present:

Present: Mayor Scott LeMay 
Council Member Deborah Morris  
Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Bass  
Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Ed Moore 
Council Member Margaret Lucht  
Council Member Dylan Hedrick  
Council Member Carissa Dutton  
Council Member Chris Ott  

Absent: Council Member B.J. Williams

Staff Present: City Manager Jud Rex
Deputy City Manager Mitch Bates
Assistant City Manager Andy Hesser
Assistant City Manager Crystal Owens
Assistant City Manager Phil Urrutia
City Attorney Brian England
Deputy City Secretary Tracy Allmendinger

1.1. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON WORK SESSION ITEMSPUBLIC COMMENTS ON WORK SESSION ITEMS
Members of the audience may address the City Council on any Work Session item at the beginning of the
meeting. Speakers are allowed three minutes each, grouped by agenda item and called in the order of the
agenda. Anyone wishing to speak must fill out a speaker card (located at the entrance to the Council
Chambers and on the visitor's side of the Work Session Room) and give it to the City Secretary before the
Mayor calls the meeting to order. Speakers are limited to addressing items on the Work Session agenda
only. Items on a Regular Meeting agenda should be addressed at the respective Regular Meeting. Items not
currently on an agenda may be addressed during the citizen comments portion of any Regular Meeting.

2.2. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATIONITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION

1.1. Consider an Ordinance canvassing the Special Election returns for the purpose of adoption orConsider an Ordinance canvassing the Special Election returns for the purpose of adoption or
rejection of seventeen proposed amendments to the Charter of the City of Garland, Texas;rejection of seventeen proposed amendments to the Charter of the City of Garland, Texas;
declaring the results  of that election and providing an effective date.declaring the results  of that election and providing an effective date.

Council is requested to adopt the ordinance canvassing the May 4, 2024 Special Election results.

Motion was made by Council Member Morris to approve the ordinance canvassing the May 4, 2024 Special
Election results, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bass. Motion carried: 8 ayes, 0 nayes.

2.2. Consider an ordinance canvassing the results  of a General Election for the purpose of electingConsider an ordinance canvassing the results  of a General Election for the purpose of electing
candidates to the Office of City  Council of the City of Garland, Texas, for an election havingcandidates to the Office of City  Council of the City of Garland, Texas, for an election having
been held May 4, 2024; declaring the results  of that election; and providing an effective date.been held May 4, 2024; declaring the results  of that election; and providing an effective date.

Formal canvassing of the returns and declaring the results of the May 4, 2024 General Election held for the

11



purpose of electing a candidates to the Office of the City Council of the City of Garland for Districts 1, 2, 4,
and 5.

Motion was made by Council Member Morris to approve the ordinance canvassing the results of the May 4,
2024 General Election, seconded by Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Moore. Motion carried: 8 ayes, 0 nayes.

3.3. Conduct the swearing in of Council Members for Distr ic t 1, 2, and 5.Conduct the swearing in of Council Members for Distr ic t 1, 2, and 5.

Mayor LeMay called Mayor Pro Tem Bass to the podium to be sworn in. He was sworn in by City of Garland 
Mayor, Scott LeMay; family members in the audience were Heather Bass, Debbie Cox, and Jess Cox. 
Mayor Pro Tem Bass presented comments and took his place at dais.

Mayor LeMay presented Council Member Morris with a service plaque and City flag.

Mayor LeMay called Council Member elect Kris Beard to the podium to be sworn in. She was sworn by 
Bobby Beard; family members in the audience were Daryl and Chase Earle, Logan, and Kegon and 
Jocelynne Kobs-Beard.

Council Member Beard presented comments, after which, Council Member Morris removed her placard from 
the dais and Council Member Beard replaced it with hers and took her place at the dais.

Mayor LeMay called Council Member Lucht to the podium to be sworn in. She was sworn in by Joyce 
Young; family members in the audience were Matt Lucht and David Young. Council Member Lucht presented 
comments and took her place at dais.

.

3.3. ADJOURNADJOURN

S ubmi tted  B y:S ubmi tted  B y:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
S cott LeMay, MayorS cott LeMay, Mayor

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Tracy A l lmend inger, D eputy C i ty  S ecre taryT racy A l lmend inger, D eputy C i ty  S ecre tary

22



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. a. 2. a.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Replacement of Raw Water & Air Release Valves at the Duck Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant
Submitted By:Submitted By: Michael Brinkmann, Managing Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0920-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to provide for the three raw water and five air release valves at the Duck Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant that were installed during the plant's expansion project in 2002-2006 and have reached the end of
their useful lives, requiring extensive maintenance to remain operational. Replacement of these existing valves with
new, identical valves will ensure continued, dependable plant operations and proper integration with current
equipment. 

Evaluation:Evaluation:
Municipal Valve and Equipment Co., Inc. is being awarded as a Sole Source based on being the exclusive distributor
for Val-Matic and M&H Valve Company. As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included. 

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount
Municipal Valve and Equipment Co., Inc All $545,822.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $545,822.00$545,822.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Sole Source  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51470

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $12,075,099
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $11,010,146
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $1,064,953
Account #:Account #: 235-4239-3402700-9007
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Wastewater CIP / Duck Creek WWTP Replacements & Improvements Program

AttachmentsAttachments
Fiscal Impact Report

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 255  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/01/2024



Fiscal Impact Report - CIP Project Appropriation by Fund and Project Number 

Actual & 
Emcumbered to 

Date

Total 
Appropriation

Available Budget

230FUND

0034027  7,315,095.23 7,846,724.00  531,628.77PROJECT #

If a PR has NOT been entered into Cayenta prior to calculating the Fiscal Impact, subtract the amount of the PR from the Available Remaining Balance to get an accurate 
balance for the Fiscal Impact on the Agenda Item. 

If  the PR is encumbering a different amount from the Final Amount Awarded, subtract the difference of the Final Amount Awarded and the PR that is entered into Cayenta 
from the Available Remaining Budget to get an accurate balance for the Fiscal Impact on the Agenda Item. 

Contact the Budget & Research Department at Budget@garlandtx.gov or Your Department's Assigned Budget Analyst for 
Questions about this Report AND if the Report Yields a Negative Available Remaining Budget Amount. 



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. b. 2. b.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Construction Management Service for Duck Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades
Submitted By:Submitted By: Michael Brinkmann, Managing Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0934-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to provide construction management and inspection services at the Duck Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant during the construction of the Filter Rehabilitation & UV Conversion project. Carollo Engineers, Inc.
will provide comprehensive construction administration and management services for the project's duration.  They
will act as the construction manager and liaison between the construction contractor and the City, conducting
progress meetings, coordinating project deliverables, and directing regular on-site construction inspections. An
owner contingency is included for any additional work or materials that may be required. 

Evaluation:Evaluation:
Carollo Engineers, Inc. was selected as the Most Qualified firm for this project from RFQ 0712-23. As competitive
bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Carollo Engineers, Inc. All $1,369,337.00
Owner's Contingency  413,532.00
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $1,782,869.00$1,782,869.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Most Qualified  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51486

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $42,118,000*
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $40,538,945
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $1,579,055
Account #:Account #: 230-4239-3404200-7101
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Wastewater CIP / Duck Creek WWTP Cloth Filter & UV Disinfection Program

* This project will continue into 2025, and additional Commercial Paper will be requested in 2025, as presented in the
2024 CIP, for the completion of the project. 

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 257  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/01/2024



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. c. 2. c.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: White Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn Drive, and Pecos Street Wastewater Replacement
Submitted By:Submitted By: Michael Brinkmann, Managing Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0618-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to provide construction services for the White Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn Drive, and Pecos Street
Wastewater Replacement project.  This includes replacement of 5,400 linear feet of 8-inch (8") and 10-inch (10")
wastewater main replacement, including manholes and service laterals.  The project also includes approximately
1,300 square yards, 6-inch (6") concrete alley paving replacement and approximately 900 square yards of street,
driveway, and sidewalk replacements. An owner's contingency is included for any additional work or materials that
may be required.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Seven (7) bids were received and
evaluated with Trinity Miller Utility and Construction, LLC submitting the Straight Low Bid. 

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Trinity Miller Utility and Construction, LLC All $1,563,596.50
Owner's Contingency  188,000.00
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $1,751,596.50$1,751,596.50

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51034

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $17,603,588
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $15,378,648
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $2,224,940
Account #:Account #: 230-4149-3214900-9305
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Wastewater CIP / Collection Mains Program 

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 241  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 1 White Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn $1,563,596.50 $1,626,024.00 $1,782,304.00 $1,792,600.00
Drive, and Pecos St. Wastewater
Replacement

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $1,563,596.50 $1,626,024.00 $1,782,304.00 $1,792,600.00
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $1,563,596.50 $1,626,024.00 $1,782,304.00 $1,792,600.00

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $1,626,024.00 1444 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $1,563,596.50 243 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $62,427.50 0 # Direct Contact HUBS
3 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Trinity Miller Utility and 
Construction, LLC

Flow-Line Construction, Inc. A & M Construction and 
Utilities

Tri-Con Services, Inc.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:    03/26/2024     
REQ. NO.    PR 51034
BID NO.       0618-24
PAGE:         1 of 2   
BUYER:       L. Segura

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 1 White Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn $1,826,298.00 $1,826,298.00 $2,366,102.00
Drive, and Pecos St. Wastewater
Replacement

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $1,826,298.00 $1,826,298.00 $2,366,102.00
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $1,826,298.00 $1,826,298.00 $2,366,102.00

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $1,626,024.00 1444 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $1,563,596.50 243 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $62,427.50 0 # Direct Contact HUBS
3 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

J & L Construction, LLC Western Municipal 
Construction of Texas LLC

Canary Construction, Inc.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:    03/26/2024     
REQ. NO.    PR 51034
BID NO.       0618-24
PAGE:         2 of 2   
BUYER:      L. Segura

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. d. 2. d.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Shredder for the Hinton Landfill
Submitted By:Submitted By: Garth Sanich, Director of Fleet Services
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0791-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This purchase is for one new Pronar MRW 2.1010g Dual-Shaft Slow Speed Shredder for the Hinton Landfill. An
owner's contingency is included for an additional work or materials that may be required.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Six (6) bids were received and evaluated
with Machinery Partner, Inc. submitting the Straight Low Bid.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Machinery Partner, Inc. All $963,845.00
Owner's Contingency  14,500.00
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $978,345.00$978,345.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51254

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $1,253,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $978,345
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $274,655
Account #:Account #: 635-1609-1717600-9007
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Landfill/Transfer Station CIP / New Landfill Equipment

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 209  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/02/2024



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 ea. Price of Shredder $914,942.00 $1,112,700.00 $1,064,734.00 $1,137,701.73 $1,188,607.33 $1,644,600.00
Non-Responsive Non-Responsive Non-Responsive Non-Responsive

2 1 ea. Three (3) Year Warranty $30,665.00 $45,050.00

3 1 ea. Two (2) Service Contract $18,238.00 $67,895.00

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $963,845.00 $1,225,645.00
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $963,845.00 $1,225,645.00

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $1,225,645.00 425 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $963,845.00 65 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $261,800.00 0 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVEREDDELIVEREDDELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Machinery Partner, Inc. Rotochopper Vermeer Equipment of Texas
. Brabandt Equipment Corp.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  April 18, 2024               
REQ. NO   PR 
BID NO      0791-24             
PAGE:       1 of  1             
BUYER:    Teresa Smith   

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

         

Sun Machinery Co. Technology International, 
Inc.



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. e. 2. e.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: GP&L Spencer Plant CT Wastewater Transportation and Disposal
Submitted By:Submitted By: David Bernard, GP&L Production

Services Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0145-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
The purpose of this bid is for change order No. 1 to Purchase Order 36030 Spencer CT Wastewater Transportation
and Disposal. This change order is needed to cover wastewater disposal amounts that are greater than originally
anticipated.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
United Rentals was awarded the original PO 36030 in the amount of $173,773.60 on February 27, 2024. As
competitive bids were not received for the change order, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

United Rentals All $116,947.28
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $116,947.28$116,947.28

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Change Order  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51382

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $3,432,354*
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $2,616,499
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $815,855
Account #:Account #: 211-3456-7111
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric Utility Fund / GP&L Production

*Additional funding will be requested with FY 2023-24 Budget Amendment #3 scheduled for City Council's review on
May 20, 2024, and approval on June 4, 2024. 

 
Budget Type: Operating Budget  
Fiscal Year: 2023-24  
Document Location: Page 241  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/01/2024



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. f. 2. f.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Comprehensive Plan Update
Submitted By:Submitted By: Will Guerin, Planning Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0916-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This request is for the Comprehensive Plan Update, as discussed during the May 6, 2024 City Council Work
Session.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
Verdunity will be performing the contract as a professional service. As competitive bids were not received, a Bid
Recap is not included. 

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Verdunity All $567,575.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $567,575.00$567,575.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Most Qualified  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51466

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $1,499,102
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $1,033,525
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $465,577 *
Account #:Account #: 104-1521-7101
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Economic Development Fund 

* The Comprehensive Plan Update will continue in FY 2024-25. Continuation funding for the plan update will be
included as part of the FY 2024-25 Budget.  

 
Budget Type: Operating Budget  
Fiscal Year: 2023-24  
Document Location: Page 211  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/09/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/07/2024



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. g. 2. g.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Replacement Front Loader Chassis for Sanitation
Submitted By:Submitted By: Garth Sanich, Director of Fleet Services
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0949-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This purchase is for four (4) replacement 2024 Autocar ACX64 Front End Loader Chassis for the Sanitation
Department.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
The Front End Loader Chassis are available from Chastang Enterprises, Inc. through the BuyBoard Cooperative
Purchasing Contract 723-23.  As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Chastang Enterprises, Inc.Chastang Enterprises, Inc. All $844,032.00$844,032.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $844,032.00$844,032.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Cooperative Purchase  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51507

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $3,282,692
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $3,319,217
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $(36,525) *
Account #:Account #: 246-4319-2107500-9007
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Miscellaneous Revenue-Supported CIP / Sanitation / Replacement of Front-Load Trucks

* Interest earnings generated in the Sanitation CIP Fund will be applied to the project for the purchase of equipment
approved in the 2024 CIP. 

AttachmentsAttachments
Units being replaced

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 188  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



Units being replaced: MILES HOURS

430-2154 2019 Mack MRU613 Front Loader 7,884

430-2156 2018 Mack MRU613 Front Loader 9,443

430-2197 2020 Mack TE64 Front Loader 9,973

430-2211 2020 Autocar ACX64 Front Loader 2,732



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. h. 2. h.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Plumbing Service, Repairs, and Replacements
Submitted By:Submitted By: Amanda Harris, Business Operations

Supervisor
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0532-23
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This request is for approval to increase the funding for the existing blanket purchase order awarded to United
Mechanical for plumbing repair.  Due to unforeseen circumstances, our current funding of $150,000 has been
depleted, and an additional $50,000 in funds are necessary to fulfill ongoing obligations.  The increased funding will
ensure continuity of essential services and support the completion of critical projects. This increase will apply to the
subsequent remaining optional renewals.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
United Mechanical was awarded the original Purchase Order BL 9415 with four (4) optional renewals in the amount of
$150,000 at the May 16, 2023 City Council Meeting.  As competitive bids were not received for the change order, a
Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

United Mechanical All $50,000.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $50,000.00$50,000.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Change Order  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51407

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: N/A
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): N/A
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: N/A
Account #:Account #: 451-6999
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Term Contract sets price but does not commit funds. Expenses will be charged to Facilities Management's Building
Services accounts as incurred. 

 
Budget Type: Operating Budget  
Fiscal Year: 2023-24  
Document Location: Page 309  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. i. 2. i.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Replacement Side, Front, and Rear Loader Bodies for Sanitation Trucks
Submitted By:Submitted By: Garth Sanich, Director of Fleet Services
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0946-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This purchase is for three (3) replacement Labrie 22 Yd. Automizer Side Loader Bodies, two (2) replacement Leach
2R-III Rear Loader Bodies, and four (4) replacement Wittke Starlight 40 Cu. Yd. Front Loader Bodies to be mounted
on replacement chassis for the Sanitation Department.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
The Side, Front, and Rear Loader Bodies are available from Reliance Truck and Equipment through the BuyBoard
Cooperative Purchasing Contract 686-22.  As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included. 

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Reliance Truck and Equipment Reliance Truck and Equipment All $1,540,597.92$1,540,597.92
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $1,540,597.92$1,540,597.92

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Cooperative Purchase  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51506

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $13,874,056
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $10,194,260
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $3,679,796
Account #:Account #: Various
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Miscellaneous Revenue-Supported CIP / Sanitation Equipment: 
Replacement of Side-Load Residential Trucks 246-4319-2106800-9007 $388,863
Replacement of Recycling Trucks 246-4319-2106900-9007 194,432
Replacement of Rear-Load Brush Trucks 246-4319-2107100-9007 253,556
Replacement of Front-Load Trucks 246-4319-2107500-9007 703,747

TotalTotal  $1,540,598$1,540,598

AttachmentsAttachments
Units being replaced

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Pages 185-188  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



Units being replaced: MILES HOURS

430-2154 2019 Mack MRU613 Front Loader 7,884

430-2156 2018 Mack MRU613 Front Loader 9,443

430-2197 2020 Mack TE64 Front Loader 9,973

430-2211 2020 Autocar ACX64 Front Loader 2,732

430-2140 2019 Crane Carrier LET2-30 Side Loader 8,019

430-2141 2019 Crane Carrier LET2-30 Side Loader 7,415

430-1946 2019 Crane Carrier LET2-30 Side Loader 8,149

430-1586 2016 Crane Carrier LET2-30 Rear Loader 10,769

430-1587 2016 Crane Carrier LET2-30 Rear Loader 11,445



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. j. 2. j.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Two (2) Fire Trucks for the Garland Fire Department
Submitted By:Submitted By: Garth Sanich, Director of Fleet Services
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0957-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This purchase is for one (1) replacement Pierce Velocity Aerial Truck and one (1) Pierce Velocity Pumper Truck for
the Garland Fire Department.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
The Fire Trucks are available from Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC through the BuyBoard Cooperative
Purchasing Contract 651-21.  As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Siddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLCSiddons-Martin Emergency Group, LLC All $3,454,911.00$3,454,911.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $3,454,911.00$3,454,911.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Cooperative Purchase  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51505

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $14,264,327 *
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $9,786,320
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $4,478,007
Account #:Account #: 691-1399-1205826-9009
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Public Safety CIP / Replace Fire Apparatus

* The two Fire trucks are not anticipated for delivery until 2026. The 2024 CIP includes future funding for Fire
Apparatus replacement.

AttachmentsAttachments
Units being replaced

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 142  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



Units being replaced: MILES HOURS

130-0457 2013 Pierce Arrow XT 75 8,930



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. k. 2. k.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Replacement Side and Rear Loader Chassis for Sanitation
Submitted By:Submitted By: Garth Sanich, Director of Fleet Services
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0926-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This purchase is for three (3) 2025 Battle Motors LET2 Side Loader Cab Chassis and two (2) 2025 Battle
Motors LET2 Rear Loader Cab Chassis to be replacement units for the Sanitation Department.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
The Side and Rear Loader Chassis are available from Bond Equipment Co., Inc. through BuyBoard Cooperative
Purchasing Contract 0723-23.  The purchase includes $37,304 in unpublished options that are being provided and
installed by Bond Equipment Co., Inc. during assembly.  As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not
included.  

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Bond Equipment Co., Inc.Bond Equipment Co., Inc. All $1,089,539.00$1,089,539.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $1,089,539.00$1,089,539.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Cooperative Purchase  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51457

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $10,591,364
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $10,580,052
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $11,312
Account #:Account #: Various
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Miscellaneous Revenue-Supported CIP / Sanitation Equipment: 
Replacement of Side-Load Residential Trucks 246-4319-2106800-9007 $421,034
Replacement of Recycling Trucks 246-4319-2106900-9007 207,317
Replacement of Rear-Load Brush Trucks 246-4319-2107100-9007 461,188

TotalTotal  $1,089,539$1,089,539

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Evaluation Summary 0926-24
Units being replaced

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Pages 185-187  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



 

BID EVALUATION SUMMARY 

 

DATE:  April 28, 2024 

PR#: 51457 

BID #: 0926-24 

AWARD BASIS:  Cooperative Agreement 

EVALUATION: The Side and Rear Loader Chassis are available from Bond Equipment 
Co., Inc. through the BuyBoard Cooperative Purchasing Contract 0723-23. The purchase 
includes $37,304.00 in unpublished options that are being provided and installed by Bond 
Equipment Co., Inc. during assembly.  As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap 
is not included.  

AWARD AMOUNT:  $1,089,539.00  

Vendor(s) Item(s) Amount 
Bond Equipment Co., Inc. All $1,089,539.00 
   
 Total: $1,089,539.00 

     

PROCUREMENT REPRESENTATIVE:  Teresa Smith, Purchasing Manager 

DEPARTMENT REPRESENTATIVE:  Johnny Burkett, Fleet Services  

ATTACHMENTS:  None   

 



Units being replaced: MILES HOURS

430-2140 2019 Crane Carrier LET2 Side Loader 8,019

430-2141 2019 Crane Carrier LET2 Side Loader 7,415

430-1946 2019 Crane Carrier LET2 Side Loader 8,143

430-1586 2016 Crane Carrier LET2 Rear Loader 10,749

430-1587 2016 Crane Carrier LET2 Rear Loader 11,445



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. l. 2. l.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: One (1) New Excavator for the Hinton Landfill
Submitted By:Submitted By: Garth Sanich, Director of Fleet Services
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0950-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This purchase is for one (1) new Case CX220E STD LC Excavator for the Hinton Landfill.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
The Excavator is available from ASCO Equipment through the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Contract
11723CNH.  The purchase includes $79,950 in unpublished options that are being provided and installed by ASCO
Equipment.  As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

ASCO EquipmentASCO Equipment All $277,000.00$277,000.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $277,000.00$277,000.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Cooperative Purchase  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51516

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $1,253,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $1,255,345
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $(2,345) *
Account #:Account #: 635-1609-1717600-9007
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Landfill/Transfer Station CIP / New Landfill Equipment

* The transfer from the Landfill Sinking Fund will be increased by $2,345 for the purchase of new landfill equipment
approved in the 2024 CIP. 

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 209  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. m. 2. m.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Term Contract for Raised Pavement Markers
Submitted By:Submitted By: Paul Luedtke, Transportation Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0645-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to provide the installation of raised pavement markers on streets for the purpose of designating travel
lanes throughout the City.  This approval is a term agreement with four (4) optional renewals. 

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Three (3) bids were received and
evaluated with Road Master Striping LLC submitting the Straight Low Bid.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Road Master Striping LLC All $393,045.00
   
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $393,045.00$393,045.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51078

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: N/A
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): N/A
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: N/A
Account #:Account #: 451-6999
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Term Contract sets price but does not commit funds. Expenses will be charged to Transportations' accounts as
incurred. 

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: Operating Budget  
Fiscal Year: 2023-24  
Document Location: Page 118  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/03/2024



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 LT Term Contract for Raised $393,045.00 $393,045.00 $393,615.00 $393,615.00 $848,202.50 $848,202.50
Pavement Marker Installation

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $393,045.00 $393,615.00 $848,202.50
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $393,045.00 $393,615.00 $848,202.50

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $393,615.00 280 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $393,045.00 46 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $570.00 6 # Direct Contact HUBS
1 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Road Master Striping LLC Pace Construction Services Traffic Highway Maintenance

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:    4/23/24     
REQ. NO.    51078
BID NO.       0645-24
PAGE:         1 of  1        
BUYER:       A. Arellano

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of 
a bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. n. 2. n.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: GP&L Holford Switch Station Materials
Submitted By:Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0730-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of materials needed for the construction of the GP&L Holford Switch
Station. This is part of the approved GP&L Holford Switch Station CIP project. An owner's contingency has been
included for any unforeseen material items needed.  

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Three (3) bids were received and
evaluated. KBS Electrical Distributors Inc. and Texas Electric Cooperatives, Inc. did not provide pricing on the
control cable portion of the bid and were deemed non-responsive. Techline, Inc. is a qualified bidder, quoted all
items, met all requirements of the specifications, and is recommended as the Lowest Responsible Bid.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Techline, Inc. All $695,462.82
Owner's Contingency  $139,537.18
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $835,000.00$835,000.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Best Value  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51189

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $12,425,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $7,322,645
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $5,102,355
Account #:Account #: 210-3799-3177701-6051
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / Substations Upgrades Program

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: Prop. 2024 CIP - Page 278  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/01/2024



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 1 Price for Evaluation $695,462.82 $501,387.94 $714,581.65
Non-Responsive Non-Responsive

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $695,462.82
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $695,462.82

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: 346 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: 32 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $0.00 7 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Techline Inc. KBS Electrical Distributors, 
Inc.

Texas Electric Cooperatives, 
Inc.

.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  April 9, 2024         
REQ. NO.  PR 51189     
BID NO.     0730-24 
PAGE:       1 of 1        
BUYER:     Teresa Smith

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

         



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. o. 2. o.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement Materials
Submitted By:Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0471-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of transmission line materials needed for the upgrade of wood to steel
structures on the Wynn Joyce transmission line. This is part of the approved Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement CIP
project.  An owner's contingency has been included for any unforeseen material items needed. 

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Five (5) bids were received and evaluated.
KBS Electrical Distributors did not meet the specifications for some items. Irby Utilities did not meet the project
timeline for some items. KBS Electrical Distributors and Texas Electric Cooperatives Inc. are qualified bidders,
quoted all items, met all requirements of the specifications for their recommended items, and are recommended as
the Lowest Responsible Bidders.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

KBS Electrical Distributors Split $271,985.68
Texas Electric Cooperatives, Inc. Split $164,142.75
Owners Contingency  $65,419.26
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $501,547.69$501,547.69

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Lowest Responsible Bid  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 50828

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $3,300,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $3,157,257
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $142,743
Account #:Account #: 215-3599-3137601-6051
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / Transmission Lines Program

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 272  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/01/2024



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 LT Total Bid Price for Evaluation $410,215.23 $464,496.34 $480,019.87 $517,601.75 $566,020.26

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $410,215.23 $464,496.34 $480,019.87 $517,601.75 $566,020.26
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $410,215.23 $464,496.34 $480,019.87 $517,601.75 $566,020.26
F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: 346 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: 32 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $0.00 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVEREDDELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

KBS Electrical 
Distrubutors, Inc. Irby Utilities Texas Electrical 

Cooperatives, Inc. Anixter, Inc.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:   2/27/24  
REQ. NO.   50828   
BID NO.      0471-24           
PAGE:        1 of  1             
BUYER:     Sheldon Slover

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

Techline, Inc



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. p. 2. p.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station Steel Structures
Submitted By:Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0774-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of steel structures and associated materials needed for the construction
of the Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station transmission line. This is part of the approved Holford
138kV Line Loop Addition CIP project.  An owner's contingency has been included for any unforeseen material items
needed.  

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Seven (7) bids were received and
evaluated. Texas Electric Cooperatives, Inc. and Anixter, Inc. submitted incomplete bids and are deemed non-
responsive. Grid Structures is considered non-responsible due to poor past performance. KBS Electrical Distributors,
Inc. is a qualified bidder, quoted all items, and met all requirements of the specifications and is recommended as the
Lowest Responsible Bid.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. All $948,664,.95
Owner's Contingency  190,335.05
   
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $1,139,000.00$1,139,000.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Lowest Responsible Bid  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51252

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $6,000,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $3,723,941
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $2,276,059
Account #:Account #: 215-3599-3144301-6051
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP - GP&L Transmission Lines Program

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 272  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 04/26/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 04/26/2024



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 Lt. Price for Evaluation $948,664.95 $1,056,234.00 $1,057,420.00 $1,141,505.00

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $948,664.95 $1,056,234.00 $1,057,420.00 $1,141,505.00
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $948,664.95 $1,056,234.00 $1,057,420.00 $1,141,505.00

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $1,056,234.00 349 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $948,664.95 33 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $107,569.05 2 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

KBS Electrical Distributors, Inc. Klute Inc. Steel Fabrication Small Composites LLC
.

Techline, Inc.
CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  April 16, 2024       
REQ. NO.  PR  51252    
BID NO.     0774-24 
PAGE:       1 of 2    

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 Lt. Price for Evaluation $806,020.00 $929,144.00 $946,673.00
Non-Responsive Non-Responsible Non-Responsive

TOTAL GROSS PRICE
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $1,056,234.00 349 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $948,664.95 33 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $107,569.05 2 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Texas Electric Cooperatives, Inc. Grid Structures Anixter Inc.
.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  April 16, 2024       
REQ. NO.  PR  51252    
BID NO.     0774-24 
PAGE:       2 of 2    

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

         



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. q. 2. q.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Northwood and Lakewood Alley Wastewater Improvements
Submitted By:Submitted By: Michael Brinkmann, Managing Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0475-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to install approximately 1,790 linear feet of existing wastewater line, construction of 516 linear feet of
10" wastewater main, construction of 895 linear feet of 8" wastewater main, the removal and replacement of 1,600
square yards of concrete alley paving and all incidentals in the alley between Alamo Street and Melrose Lane along
North Glenbrook Drive.

Also, installing approximately 3,450 linear feet of existing wastewater line, construction of 38 linear feet of 12"
wastewater main, construction of 4,175 linear feet of 8" wastewater main, 83 linear feet of 8" wastewater main by
bore, the removal and replacement of 588 square yards of asphalt street paving and all incidentals between North
Garland Avenue and Brookside Drive along Walnut Street. An owner contingency is included for any additional work
or materials that may be required.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Four (4) bids were received and evaluated
with Trinity Miller Utility and Construction, LLC submitting the Straight Low Bid.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Trinity Miller Utility and Construction, LLC All $1,670,371.75
Owner's Contingency  170,000.00
   
 TOTAL: $1,840,371.75

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Straight Low Bid  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 50823

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $16,520,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $15,121,587
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $1,398,413
Account #:Account #: 230-4149-3219000-9305
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Wastewater CIP / Rehab Sewer Collection Mains in Dirty Alleys Program

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 250  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/01/2024



                

 

  

 

I

T

E

M QTY

U

N

I

T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 1 Northwood and Lakewood Alley $1,670,371.75 $1,819,268.16 $1,887,099.00 $2,988,500.00

Wastewater Improvements

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $1,670,371.75 $1,819,268.16 $1,887,099.00 $2,988,500.00

CASH DISCOUNT

TOTAL NET PRICE $1,670,371.75 $1,819,268.16 $1,887,099.00 $2,988,500.00

F.O.B.

DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $1,819,268.16 1417 # IonWave Notifications

LOW: $1,670,371.75 205 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $148,896.41 11 # Direct Contact HUBS

2 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Trinity Miller Utility and
Construction, LLC

J & L Construction, LLC La Banda, LLC Tri-Con Services, Inc.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:    02/27/2024    
REQ. NO.    50823 
BID NO.       0475-24
PAGE:         1 of 1        
BUYER:       L. Segura 

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.



GARLANDGARLAND
PURCHASING REPORTPURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 2. r. 2. r.                   
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station Transmission Line Materials
Submitted By:Submitted By: Steve Martin, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number:Bid Number: 0623-24
Purchase Justif ication:Purchase Justif ication:
The purpose of this bid is for the purchase of conductor, fiber, and associated materials needed for the construction
of the GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station transmission line. This is part of the approved GP&L
Holford 138kV Line Loop Addition CIP project.  An owner's contingency has been included for any additional material
items that may be needed.

Evaluation:Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Five (5) bids were received and evaluated.
KBS Electrical Distributors Inc. failed to provide cutsheets for the alternate bid items and are considered non-
responsive. Anixter, Inc. did not meet the project timeline for some items. Techline, Inc. and Texas Electric
Cooperatives, Inc. are qualified bidders, quoted all items, met all requirements of the specifications, and are
recommended as the Lowest Responsible Bidders.

Award Recommendation:Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Techline, Inc. Split $778,760.84
Texas Electric Cooperatives, Inc. Split $336,920.21
Owner's Contingency  $224,318.95
 TOTAL:TOTAL: $1,340,000.00$1,340,000.00

Basis for Award:Basis for Award: Lowest Responsible Bid  
Purchase Requisition #:Purchase Requisition #: 51040

Fiscal ImpactFiscal Impact
Total Project/Account:Total Project/Account: $6,000,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item):Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $3,706,941
Proposed Balance:Proposed Balance: $2,293,059
Account #:Account #: 215-3599-3144301-6051
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / Transmission Lines Program

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2024  
Document Location: 2024 Prop. CIP - Page 272  
Budget Director Approval: Allyson Bell Steadman Approval Date: 05/03/2024
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 05/02/2024



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 1 Lt. Price for Evaluation $1,046,437.99 $1,083,953.98 $1,175,096.54 $1,204,272.87 $842,218.84
Non-Responsive

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $1,046,437.99 $1,083,953.98 $1,175,096.54 $1,204,272.87
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $1,046,437.99 $1,083,953.98 $1,175,096.54 $1,204,272.87

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: 316 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: 31 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $0.00 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVEREDDELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Techline, Inc. Anixter, Inc. Texas Electric Cooperatives, 
Inc.

Technology International, 
Inc.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  March 19, 2024             
REQ. NO.  PR 51040   
BID NO.     0623-24            
PAGE:       1 of 1          
BUYER:    Teresa Smith

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

KBS Electrical Distributors, 
Inc.



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 3. a. 3. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Z 24-06 Barraza Consulting Group (District 7)
Submitted By:Submitted By: Will Guerin, Planning Director
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Zoning Ordinance Z 24-06 Barraza Consulting Group

BackgroundBackground
Zoning Case Z 24-06 was approved via public hearing during the May 7, 2024 Regular City Council meeting.

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation
Consider adoption of the attached ordinance.

AttachmentsAttachments
Z 24-06 Ordinance
Z 24-06 Exhibit A
Z 24-06 Exhibit B
Z 24-06 Exhibits C-E



ZONING FILE NO. Z 24-06

ORDINANCE NO._______

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GARLAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS, BY APPROVING 1) AN AMENDMENT TO
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) DISTRICT 18-41 FOR MIXED USES AND
2) A DETAIL PLAN FOR AN OFFICE, GENERAL USE ON A 5.769-ACRE
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED AT 2002 WEST CAMPBELL ROAD; PROVIDING
FOR CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS, AND REGULATIONS; PROVIDING A
PENALTY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SEC. 10.05 OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS; PROVIDING A
NOTICE OF CONDITIONS OF COMPLIANCE CLAUSE; PROVIDING A
SAVINGS CLAUSE AND A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on the 8th day of
April, 2024, the Plan Commission did consider and make
recommendations on a certain request for 1) an Amendment to
Planned Development (PD) District 18-41 for Mixed Uses and
2) a Detail Plan for an Office, General Use by Barraza
Consulting Group; and

WHEREAS, The City Council, after determining all legal
requirements of notice and hearing have been met, has
further determined the following amendment to the zoning
laws would provide for and would be in the best interest of
the health, safety, morals, and general welfare:

Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS, that:

Section 1

The Garland Development Code is hereby amended by approving
1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 18-41
for Mixed Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an Office, General
Use and being more particularly described in Exhibit A,
attached hereto and made a part hereof.

 
Section 2

Development shall be in conformance with the conditions,
restrictions, and regulations set forth in the Garland
Development Code.

Section 3



FILE NO. Z 24-06

That a violation of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor
punishable in accordance with Section 10.05 of the Code of
Ordinances, City of Garland, Texas.

Section 4

NOTICE OF CONDITIONS OF COMPLIANCE:  Notwithstanding the
provisions of any other ordinance of the City, the full,
complete, and continuing compliance with all the
conditions, restrictions, and regulations of this Ordinance
is a condition to the issuance and continuation of any
permit, approval, authorization or consent by the City,
including without limitation the issuance or continuation
of any certificate of occupancy for any building or
structure located on any portion of the property described
in Exhibit A. All promises, representations, obligations
and undertakings made or assumed by the applicant to the
City Council at any public presentation in connection with
the granting of this Ordinance are hereby incorporated into
and made a part of this Ordinance as if expressly set forth
herein at length. No substantial deviation from any
material portion of the conditions, restrictions, and
regulations contained within this Ordinance are allowed
except as may be provided by the City Council after a
public hearing.

Section 5

That the Garland Development Code, as amended, shall be and
remain in full force and effect save and except as amended
by this Ordinance.

Section 6

That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are
severable and are governed by Sec. 10.06 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas.

Section 7

That this Ordinance shall be and become effective
immediately upon and after its passage and approval.



FILE NO. Z 24-06

PASSED AND APPROVED this________ day of ___________________,
2024.

THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS

By:

________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
City Secretary

 Published:



ZONING FILE NUMBER Z 24-06

EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Zoning File Z 24-06

BEING that certain tract of land situated in the P. H. Rice
Survey, Abstract No. 1241, in the City of Garland, Dallas
County, Texas and being part of that certain called 22.437
acre tract as described in deed to Campbell 190 Partners,
LLC, (undivided 60.6383% interest); LDJ Properties, Ltd.
(undivided 28.7234% interest); and John D. Gourley
(undivided 10.6383% interest), recorded in Document No.
201800009162, of the Official Property Records of Dallas
County, Texas (OPRDCT) and being more particularly
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 5/8 inch iron rod found at the northwest
corner of said 22.437 acre tract, and being located on the
south right-of-way line of Campbell Road a (variable width
right-of-way), and on the east line of Lot 2, Block 1, of
Shoal Creek Office Park, an addition to the City of
Garland, Dallas County, Texas ,according to Final Plat
recorded in Document No. 200600462691 OPRDCT;

THENCE North 89°33'25" East, with said south right-of-way
line of Campbell Road, and with the north line of said
22.437 acre tract, a distance of 251.39 feet to a TxDOT
monument found for corner at the intersection of said south
right-of-way line of Campbell Road, and the southwest right
-of-way line of State Highway No. 190 a (variable width
right-of-way)

THENCE South 56°21'27" East, with said southwest right-of-
way line of State Highway No. 190, and the northeast line
of said 22.437 acre tract, a distance of 157.00 feet to a
point for corner located in the apron of a concrete
headwall;

THENCE South 09°51'04" West, departing the southwest right-
of-way line of State Highway No. 190, and over and across
said 22.437 acre tract, a distance of 470.35 feet to a 5/8
inch iron rod with cap stamped “BCG 10194538” set for
corner in the approximate center of a ditch, said iron rod



ZONING FILE NUMBER Z 24-06

EXHIBIT A

also being located in a north line of Lot 1, Block 1, of
Alta Springs Creek, an addition to the City of Garland,
Dallas County, Texas according to Final Plat recorded in
Document No. 201900162946, OPRDCT, from which a 5/8 inch
capped iron rod found bears North 89°18'41" East, a
distance of 41.02 feet;

THENCE South 89°18'41" West, with said north line of Lot 1,
Block 1, a distance of 175.00 feet to a cotton spindle
found for corner at the northwest corner of said Lot 1,
Block 1;

THENCE South 00°41'19" East, with the west line of said Lot
1, Block 1, Alta Springs Creek, a distance of 601.44 feet
to an "X" cut in concrete found for corner at the southwest
corner of said Lot 1, Block 1, and being located in the
northeast right-of-way line of Naaman Forest Boulevard
(called 82' right-of-way), said “X” also being the
beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right,

THENCE in a northwesterly direction with said northeast
right-of-way line of Naaman Forest Boulevard, and with said
non-tangent curve to the right which has a central angle of
10°56'16", a radius of 809.00 feet, a chord which bears
North 51°54'40" West, a chord distance of 154.20 feet, for
an arc distance of 154.44 feet to the end of said curve, an
“X” cut in concrete found for corner at the southwest
corner of said 22.437 acre tract;

THENCE North 00°40'37" West, with the west line of said
22.437 acre tract and the east line of said Shoal Creek
Office Park Addition, a distance of 1056.90 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 5.769 acres of land.



EXHIBIT B

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS

ZONING FILE Z 24-06

2002 West Campbell Road

I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned
Development is to approve an Office, General Use.

II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not
affect any regulation found in the Garland Development
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided
herein.

III. General Regulations: All regulations as set forth in
Planned Development (PD) District 12-41, Planned
Development (PD) District 18-41, Division 4 in Chapter
2 and Chapter 4 of the Garland Development Code are
included by reference and shall apply, except as
otherwise specified by this ordinance.

IV. Development Plans:

Detail Plan: Development shall be in general conformance
with the Detail Plan labeled Exhibit C through Exhibit
E. In the event there is conflict between the approved
Detail Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the
Specific Regulations shall apply.

V. Specific Conditions:
 

A. Permitted Uses: An Office, General Use shall be
permitted.

B. Site Plan: The site layout, building placement,
parking and other development proposed shall be in
general conformance with the approved Site Plan
labeled Exhibit C.

C. Amenities: A bench, trash receptacle street light and
bicycle rack shall be provided as reflected in Exhibit
C.

D. Outside Storage: No outside storage shall be
permitted.



PD Conditions
File Z 24-06
Page - 2 - 3

EXHIBIT B

E. Company Trucks: All company trucks shall be stored
inside the garage overnight.

F. Landscape Plan: Screening and landscaping shall be in
general conformance with the landscape plan labeled
Exhibit D.

1. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a
healthy, growing condition and in compliance with
this PD Ordinance, the Garland Development Code,
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland,
and the landscaping plan attached hereto at all
times. The property owner is responsible for
regular weeding, mowing of grass, irrigation,
fertilizing, pruning, or other maintenance of all
plantings as needed. All exposed ground surfaces
on or within the premises shall be properly
improved, covered with screening or other
approved solid material, or protected with a
vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions.

2. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be
replaced with another approved plant variety that
complies with the approved landscape plan within
sixty (60) days after receipt of written
notification from the City. In the event the
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty
(60) days after receipt of written notification
from the City, the City may, in addition to any
other remedy available by law, withhold future
city permits, licenses and/or certificates
requested by the property owner for the premises
to which such violation applies.

3. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland
Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Garland at all times. The property
owner is responsible for regular maintenance of
all screening and paving as needed.  In the event
the property owner fails to remedy a violation
of any screening or paving maintenance regulation
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written



PD Conditions
File Z 24-06
Page - 3 - 3

EXHIBIT B

notification from the City, the City may, in
addition to any other remedy available by law,
withhold future city permits, licenses and/or
certificates requested by the property owner for
the premises to which such violation applies.

G. Elevations: Building Elevations shall be in general
conformance with the elevations labeled Exhibit E.

H. Signage: All signage shall comply with the standards
in the Garland Development Code.







1 LO

1 LO

1 LO

1 LO

2 BC

2 BC1 BC
1 BC

1 BC

3 R
O

2 LO

14 D
TS

28 G
M

16 D
TS

14
5

W
C

15 D
YH

22 D
A

49 LI
G

7
VT

X 25 LI
G

2 BC

36 H
M

G

56 LG 45 W
C

11
2

W
C

1 BC

57 M
FG

66 R
Y

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
at

iv
e

ar
ea

 to
 b

e 
re

m
ai

n
un

di
st

ur
be

d

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
at

iv
e

ar
ea

 to
 b

e 
re

m
ai

n
un

di
st

ur
be

d

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
at

iv
e

ar
ea

 to
 b

e 
re

m
ai

n
un

di
st

ur
be

d
Ex

is
tin

g 
N

at
iv

e
ar

ea
 to

 b
e 

re
m

ai
n

un
di

st
ur

be
d

Ex
is

tin
g 

N
at

iv
e

ar
ea

 to
 b

e 
re

m
ai

n
un

di
st

ur
be

d

1 LO

35 N
R

S

64 LG
5 M
P

60 W
C

7 C
M

5

VT
X

1

VT
X

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 1
1

8,
38

0
 S

F
2

5'
-0

" 
(1

 S
T

O
R

Y
)

F
F

E
: 5

56
.5

0

E
X

.
S

S
M

H

E
X

.
S

S
M

H

E
X

.
S

S
M

H

E
X

.
S

S
M

H

2
4'

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 A
N

D
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

2
4'

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 A
N

D
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 P

A
T

IO

D
U

M
P

S
T

E
R

 E
N

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
P

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 G

A
R

L
A

N
D

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 (

M
IN

. 
8

' H
IG

H
)

1
5

' C
IT

Y
U

T
IL

IT
Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

5
0

' D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
V

O
L

. 
8

7
2

2
6

, 
P

G
. 

2
2

1
3

D
R

D
C

T

2
5

' U
T

IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
V

O
L

. 
9

3
2

4
0

, 
P

G
. 

4
6

2
2

D
R

D
C

T

2
5

' U
T

IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
V

O
L

. 
9

3
2

4
0

, 
P

G
. 

4
6

2
2

D
R

D
C

T

1
5'

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
D

O
C

. N
O

. 
20

0
6

00
36

11
38

O
P

R
D

C
T

G
A

R
A

G
E

1
,5

18
 S

F
1

6'
-0

" 
(1

 S
T

O
R

Y
)

F
F

E
: 5

56
.5

0

L
O

A
D

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

F
U

L
LY

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

E
D

 1
0

0-
Y

E
A

R
F

L
O

O
D

P
L

A
IN

 B
A

S
E

D
 O

N
F

L
O

O
D

P
L

A
IN

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 A
N

D
D

O
W

N
S

T
R

E
A

M
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
B

Y
 K

IM
L

E
Y

-H
O

R
N

 D
A

T
E

D
M

A
R

C
H

 2
01

9
C

IT
Y

 C
A

S
E

 N
O

. 1
80

32
2-

3

1
5'

 C
IT

Y
U

T
IL

IT
Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1
5'

 C
IT

Y
U

T
IL

IT
Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

3
5

' U
T

IL
IT

Y
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

C
IT

Y
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 O
V

E
R

H
A

N
G

E
X

. 
6

' S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

E
X

.
F

H

2
4'

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

D
O

C
. N

O
. 

20
0

6
00

46
26

91
O

P
R

D
C

T

C
A

M
P

B
E

LL
 R

O
A

D
(V

A
R

IA
B

LE
 W

ID
T

H
 R

IG
H

T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

)

E
X

. 
P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 &
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

V
O

L
. 9

60
8

1
, P

G
. 

1
04

0
D

.R
.D

.C
.T

.

1
5'

 C
IT

Y
U

T
IL

IT
Y

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

F
IR

E
 R

IS
E

R
 R

O
O

M

T
R

A
C

T
 1

B
E

IN
G

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

E
D

T
R

A
C

T
 2

N
O

T
 B

E
IN

G
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

E
D

 T
O

D
A

Y

M
U

T
U

A
L

 A
C

C
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 B
Y

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

IN
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

T
 2

0
18

0
0

06
84

03

M
U

T
U

A
L

 A
C

C
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 B
Y

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

IN
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

T
 2

0
18

0
0

06
84

03

F
D

C

P
A

R
K

 B
E

N
C

H
 A

R
E

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 6
'

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

T
R

A
C

T
 1

B
E

IN
G

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

E
D

E
x.

 1
6"

 W
a

te
r

20
' L

an
ds

ca
pe

 B
uf

fe
r

E
x.

 1
0"

 S
an

. S
ew

er

F
H

F
H

IR
R

. 
M

E
T

E
R

E
x.

 1
0"

 S
an

. S
ew

er

B
ik

e 
R

a
ck

WWWWWWWWWW

W
W

W
W

WWWWWWWWWWWWWW
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

23
42

25
01

25
07

25
11

25
13

25
30

25
31 25

36

25
42

25
44

25
47

25
4825

49

25
5025
51

25
53

25
54

25
56

25
62

25
64

25
67

25
68

25
69

25
70

25
72 25
75

25
76

27
13

27
15

27
18

27
41 27

49
27
50

27
53

27
54

27
56

27
59

27
63

27
64

27
93

27
96

27
97

27
99

28
00

28
01 28

02

28
09

28
11

28
12

28
16

NO.DATEREVISION

801 East Campbell Road
Suite 650, Richardson, TX 75081

Tel. No. 214-484-7055
TBPE Firm Lic. 20683

D
AT

E

03
/1

8/
20

24

D
ES

IG
N

C
H

EC
K

ED

CAMPBELL 190

P:\Projects 2024\Bazzara Office\CD\L100.dwgMonday, March 18, 2024 7:22:19 AM

BD
A

BD
A

SC
AL

E:
  1

" =
 3

0'
-0

"
LA

N
D

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN
01

17
08

 N
. G

rif
fin

 S
tre

et
D

al
la

s,
 T

ex
as

  7
52

02
Te

l  
   

  2
14

.8
71

.0
08

3
Fa

x 
   

  2
14

.8
71

.0
54

5
Em

ai
l  

 s
m

r@
sm

r-l
a.

co
m

sm
r

 

S T A T
E

O
F

T
E

XAS

1
1

7
6

N
D

.A
D

A

BRIA

SM 03
.1

8.
20

24

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
C

IT
Y 

C
AS

E 
#:

 2
40

10
9-

1

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T

A
LL

IA
N

C
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
16

0
0 

N
. C

O
LL

IN
S

 B
LV

D
.,

 S
U

IT
E

 1
00

0
R

IC
H

A
R

D
S

O
N

, T
X

 7
5

08
0

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
: Z

A
C

H
 W

E
LD

Y
P

H
O

N
E

: (
97

2
) 

23
3 

- 
04

00

O
W

N
ER

 / 
AP

PL
IC

AN
T

B
A

R
R

A
Z

A
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P

80
1

 E
. C

A
M

P
B

E
L

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 6

50
R

IC
H

A
R

D
S

O
N

, T
X

 7
5

08
1

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
: J

O
H

N
 H

A
L

E
P

H
O

N
E

: (
46

9
) 

49
8 

- 
99

31

5.
76

9 
AC

R
ES

 S
IT

U
AT

ED
 IN

 T
H

E
P.

H
. R

IC
E 

SU
R

VE
Y,

 A
BS

TR
AC

T 
N

O
. 1

24
1

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
G

AR
LA

N
D

D
AL

LA
S 

C
O

U
N

TY
, T

EX
AS

LANDSCAPE PLAN L.
1

SI
TE

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

P
IN

G
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t: 

A 
M

in
im

um
 1

0%
 o

f t
he

 S
ite

 A
re

a 
m

us
t b

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
ed

.

Si
te

 A
re

a 
- 5

3,
73

9 
s.

f.
R

eq
ui

re
d

5,
37

3.
9 

s.
f. 

(1
0%

)

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 B
U

FF
E

R
S 

- M
A

JO
R

 T
H

O
R

O
U

G
H

FA
R

E
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

: A
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

bu
ffe

r w
ith

 a
 m

in
im

um
 w

id
th

 o
f 2

0'
 in

 d
ep

th
   

   
   

  f
ro

m
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 li

ne
. F

or
 e

ve
ry

 3
0 

lin
ea

l f
ee

t o
f r

eq
ui

re
d

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
bu

ffe
r o

ne
 la

rg
e 

ca
no

py
 tr

ee
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

an
d

   
   

   
  7

 s
hr

ub
s 

or
 o

rn
am

en
ta

l g
ra

ss
es

.

S.
H

. 1
90

 F
ro

nt
ag

e 
R

d.
 (1

57
.0

0 
l.f

.) 
(C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

A-
F)

R
eq

ui
re

d
20

' M
in

im
um

 B
uf

fe
r

(5
) L

ar
ge

 C
an

op
y 

Tr
ee

s
(3

5)
 S

hr
ub

s

C
am

pb
el

l R
oa

d.
 (2

51
.3

9 
l.f

.) 
(C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

A-
F)

R
eq

ui
re

d
20

' M
in

im
um

 B
uf

fe
r

(8
) L

ar
ge

 C
an

op
y 

Tr
ee

s
(5

6)
 S

hr
ub

s

PA
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 (6
2 

sp
ac

es
)

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
: T

he
re

 m
us

t b
e 

a 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t i
sl

an
d 

at
 th

e 
te

rm
in

us
 o

f e
ac

h
pa

rk
in

g 
ro

w
. A

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
 s

ha
ll 

be
 n

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 6
5'

 a
w

ay
fro

m
 a

 la
rg

e 
ca

no
py

 tr
ee

. (
1)

 L
ar

ge
 C

an
op

y 
Tr

ee
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d

fo
r e

ve
ry

 (1
0)

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

. 5
%

 o
f t

ot
al

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t t

o
be

 la
nd

sc
ap

e

R
eq

ui
re

d
(6

) L
ar

ge
 C

an
op

y 
Tr

ee
s

PA
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T 

SC
R

EE
N

IN
G

 T
O

 A
D

JA
C

EN
T 

PU
B

LI
C

 R
.O

.W
.

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
: A

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 o

rn
am

en
ta

l s
hr

ub
 s

cr
ee

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 a
ny

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
bu

ffe
r t

ha
t i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
al

on
g 

an
 a

dj
ac

en
t p

ub
lic

 R
.O

.W
.

Sh
ru

b 
pl

an
tin

g 
he

ig
ht

 m
us

t b
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 2
4"

 a
t t

im
e 

of
 

in
st

al
la

tio
n.

R
eq

ui
re

d
24

" m
in

. H
ei

gh
t O

rn
am

en
ta

l H
ed

ge

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 T
A

B
U

LA
TI

O
N

S

Pr
ov

id
ed

19
5,

09
3 

s.
f. 

(7
7.

6%
)

Pr
ov

id
ed

Ex
is

tin
g 

20
' M

in
. B

uf
fe

r
(5

) L
ar

ge
 C

an
op

y 
Tr

ee
s

(5
8)

 S
hr

ub
s

Pr
ov

id
ed

Ex
is

tin
g 

20
' M

in
. B

uf
fe

r
(2

4)
 O

rn
am

en
ta

l T
re

es
: 3

:1
 d

ue
 to

 e
as

em
en

t
(5

6)
 S

hr
ub

s

Pr
ov

id
ed

(1
5)

 L
ar

ge
 C

an
op

y 
Tr

ee
s

Pr
ov

id
ed

Pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s 

re
qu

ire
d

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

NC
E 

N
O

TE
S

SO
LI

D
 S

O
D

 N
O

TE
S

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 N
O

TE
S

1.
Fi

ne
 g

ra
de

 a
re

as
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 fi
na

l c
on

to
ur

s 
in

di
ca

te
d.

  L
ea

ve
 a

re
as

 to
 re

ce
iv

e
to

ps
oi

l 3
" b

el
ow

 fi
na

l d
es

ire
d 

gr
ad

e 
in

 p
la

nt
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

1"
 b

el
ow

 fi
na

l g
ra

de
in

 tu
rf 

ar
ea

s.

2.
Ad

ju
st

 c
on

to
ur

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 p
os

iti
ve

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.  
Pr

ov
id

e
un

ifo
rm

 ro
un

di
ng

 a
t t

op
 a

nd
 b

ot
to

m
 o

f s
lo

pe
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r b
re

ak
s 

in
 g

ra
de

.
C

or
re

ct
 ir

re
gu

la
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 w
at

er
 m

ay
 s

ta
nd

.

3.
Al

l l
aw

n 
ar

ea
s 

to
 re

ce
iv

e 
so

lid
 s

od
 s

ha
ll 

be
 le

ft 
in

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 1
" b

el
ow

 fi
na

l
fin

is
h 

gr
ad

e.
  C

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 o
n-

si
te

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
M

an
ag

er
.

4.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 o

n-
si

te
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 fo
r a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

ex
is

tin
g 

to
ps

oi
l.

5.
Pl

an
t s

od
 b

y 
ha

nd
 to

 c
ov

er
 in

di
ca

te
d 

ar
ea

 c
om

pl
et

el
y.

  I
ns

ur
e 

ed
ge

s 
of

 s
od

ar
e 

to
uc

hi
ng

.  
To

p 
dr

es
s 

jo
in

ts
 b

y 
ha

nd
 w

ith
 to

ps
oi

l t
o 

fil
l v

oi
ds

.

6.
R

ol
l g

ra
ss

 a
re

as
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 s

m
oo

th
, e

ve
n 

su
rfa

ce
, f

re
e 

fro
m

 u
nn

at
ur

al
un

du
la

tio
ns

.

7.
W

at
er

 s
od

 th
or

ou
gh

ly
 a

s 
so

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

pr
og

re
ss

es
.

8.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

al
l l

aw
n 

ar
ea

s 
un

til
 fi

na
l a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e.
  T

hi
s 

sh
al

l
in

cl
ud

e,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

:  
m

ow
in

g,
 w

at
er

in
g,

 w
ee

di
ng

, c
ul

tiv
at

in
g,

 c
le

an
in

g
an

d 
re

pl
ac

in
g 

de
ad

 o
r b

ar
e 

ar
ea

s 
to

 k
ee

p 
pl

an
ts

 in
 a

 v
ig

or
ou

s,
 h

ea
lth

y
co

nd
iti

on
.

9.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 tu
rf 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll
pr

ov
id

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t f
ro

m
 lo

ca
l s

up
pl

y 
if 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

10
.

If 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
oc

cu
rs

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Se

pt
em

be
r 1

 a
nd

 M
ar

ch
 1

, a
ll 

so
d 

ar
ea

s 
to

 b
e

ov
er

-s
ee

de
d 

w
ith

 W
in

te
r R

ye
gr

as
s,

 a
t a

 ra
te

 o
f (

4)
 p

ou
nd

s 
pe

r o
ne

 th
ou

sa
nd

(1
00

0)
 s

qu
ar

e 
fe

et
.

1.
Th

e 
O

w
ne

r, 
te

na
nt

 a
nd

 th
ei

r a
ge

nt
, i

f a
ny

, s
ha

ll 
be

 jo
in

tly
 a

nd
 s

ev
er

al
ly

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f a
ll 

la
nd

sc
ap

e.

2.
Al

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 s

ha
ll 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 a
 n

ea
t a

nd
 o

rd
er

ly
 m

an
ne

r a
t a

ll 
tim

es
.

Th
is

 s
ha

ll 
in

cl
ud

e 
m

ow
in

g,
 e

dg
in

g,
 p

ru
ni

ng
, f

er
til

iz
in

g,
 w

at
er

in
g,

 w
ee

di
ng

 a
nd

ot
he

r s
uc

h 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 c

om
m

on
 to

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
.

3.
Al

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 a

re
as

 s
ha

ll 
be

 k
ep

t f
re

e 
of

 tr
as

h,
 li

tte
r, 

w
ee

ds
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
uc

h
m

at
er

ia
l o

r p
la

nt
s 

no
t p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pl

an
.

4.
Al

l p
la

nt
 m

at
er

ia
l s

ha
ll 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 a
 h

ea
lth

y 
an

d 
gr

ow
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
 a

s 
is

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fo

r t
he

 s
ea

so
n 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
.

5.
Al

l p
la

nt
 m

at
er

ia
l w

hi
ch

 d
ie

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 w

ith
 p

la
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l o
f e

qu
al

 o
r

be
tte

r v
al

ue
.

6.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
se

pa
ra

te
 b

id
 p

ro
po

sa
l f

or
 o

ne
 y

ea
r's

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 to
be

gi
n 

af
te

r f
in

al
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e.

1.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
ve

rif
y 

al
l e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ite

 e
le

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 n

ot
ify

Ar
ch

ite
ct

 o
f a

ny
 d

is
cr

ep
an

ci
es

.  
Su

rv
ey

 d
at

a 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

w
as

su
pp

lie
d 

by
 o

th
er

s.

2.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
lo

ca
te

 a
ll 

ex
is

tin
g 

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

ut
ilit

ie
s 

an
d 

no
tif

y 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

 o
f

an
y 

co
nf

lic
ts

.  
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
ex

er
ci

se
 c

au
tio

n 
w

he
n 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
ut

ilit
ie

s.

3.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 a

ll 
re

qu
ire

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

irr
ig

at
io

n
pe

rm
its

.

4.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
in

im
um

 2
%

 s
lo

pe
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 a
ll 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
.

5.
Al

l p
la

nt
in

g 
be

ds
 a

nd
 la

w
n 

ar
ea

s 
to

 b
e 

se
pa

ra
te

d 
by

 s
te

el
 e

dg
in

g.
  N

o 
st

ee
l t

o
be

 in
st

al
le

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 s
id

ew
al

ks
 o

r c
ur

bs
.

6.
Al

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 a

re
as

 to
 b

e 
10

0%
 ir

rig
at

ed
 w

ith
 a

n 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
au

to
m

at
ic

irr
ig

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
in

cl
ud

e 
ra

in
 a

nd
 fr

ee
ze

 s
en

so
rs

.

7.
Al

l l
aw

n 
ar

ea
s 

to
 b

e 
So

lid
 S

od
 B

er
m

ud
ag

ra
ss

, u
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
no

te
d 

on
 th

e
dr

aw
in

gs
.

BO
TA

N
IC

AL
 N

AM
E

Ta
xo

di
um

 d
is

tic
hu

m
Q

ue
rc

us
 v

irg
in

ia
na

Q
ue

rc
us

 s
hu

m
ar

di
i

La
ge

rs
tro

em
ia

 in
di

ca
 'N

at
ch

ez
'

Pr
un

us
 m

ex
ic

an
a

Vi
te

x 
ag

ne
s-

ca
st

es

C
O

M
M

O
N

 N
AM

E

Ba
ld

 C
yp

re
ss

Li
ve

 O
ak

R
ed

 O
ak

 'S
hu

m
ar

d'
C

re
pe

 M
yr

tle
 'D

al
la

s 
R

ed
'

M
ex

ic
an

 P
lu

m
Vi

te
x

Q
TY

.

10 7 3 7 5 13

SI
ZE

3"
 c

al
.

3"
 c

al
.

3"
 c

al
.

8'
 h

t.
8'

 h
t.

8'
 h

t.

PL
A

NT
 L

IS
T

R
EM

AR
KS

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 1
2'

 h
t.,

 4
'-5

' s
pr

ea
d 

m
in

.
co

nt
ai

ne
r g

ro
w

n,
 1

2'
 h

t.,
 4

'-5
' s

pr
ea

d 
m

in
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 1
2'

 h
t.,

 4
'-5

' s
pr

ea
d 

m
in

.
co

nt
ai

ne
r g

ro
w

n,
 3

 c
an

e,
 n

o 
cr

os
s 

ca
ni

ng
, 2

" c
al

. m
in

.
B&

B,
 s

in
gl

e 
tru

nk
, 2

" c
al

. m
in

.
co

nt
ai

ne
r o

r B
&B

, 3
 c

an
e,

 tr
ee

 fo
rm

, 2
" c

al
. m

in
.

1.
Fi

ne
 g

ra
de

 a
re

as
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 fi
na

l c
on

to
ur

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 c

iv
il 

pl
an

s.

2.
Ad

ju
st

 c
on

to
ur

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 p
os

iti
ve

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.  
Pr

ov
id

e 
un

ifo
rm

 ro
un

di
ng

 a
t t

op
 a

nd
 b

ot
to

m
 o

f s
lo

pe
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r b
re

ak
s 

in
 g

ra
de

.  
C

or
re

ct
irr

eg
ul

ar
iti

es
 a

nd
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 w

at
er

 m
ay

 s
ta

nd
.

3.
Al

l l
aw

n 
ar

ea
s 

to
 re

ce
iv

e 
so

lid
 s

od
 s

ha
ll 

be
 le

ft 
in

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 1
" b

el
ow

 
fin

al
 fi

ni
sh

 g
ra

de
.  

C
on

tra
ct

or
 to

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 o

n-
si

te
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
M

an
ag

er
.

4.
Im

po
rte

d 
to

ps
oi

l s
ha

ll 
be

 n
at

ur
al

, f
ria

bl
e 

so
il 

fro
m

 th
e 

re
gi

on
, k

no
w

n 
as

 b
ot

to
m

 
an

d 
so

il,
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 lu

m
ps

, c
la

y,
 to

xi
c 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
, r

oo
ts

, d
eb

ris
, v

eg
et

at
io

n,
 

st
on

es
,

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 n

o 
sa

lt 
an

d 
bl

ac
k 

to
 b

ro
w

n 
in

 c
ol

or
.

5.
Al

l l
aw

n 
ar

ea
s 

to
 b

e 
fin

e 
gr

ad
ed

, i
rri

ga
tio

n 
tre

nc
he

s 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
se

ttl
ed

, a
nd

 
fin

is
h 

gr
ad

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
O

w
ne

r's
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 o
r A

rc
hi

te
ct

 
pr

io
r t

o
in

st
al

la
tio

n.

6.
Al

l r
oc

ks
 3

/4
" d

ia
m

et
er

 a
nd

 la
rg

er
, d

irt
 c

lo
ds

, s
tic

ks
, c

on
cr

et
e 

sp
oi

ls
, e

tc
. 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 p
rio

r t
o 

pl
ac

in
g 

to
ps

oi
l a

nd
 a

ny
 la

w
n 

in
st

al
la

tio
n

7.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
(1

") 
on

e 
in

ch
 o

f i
m

po
rte

d 
to

ps
oi

l o
n 

al
l a

re
as

 to
   

re
ce

iv
e 

la
w

n.

G
EN

ER
A

L 
LA

W
N

 N
O

TE
S

TY
PE BC LO R

O
C

M M
P

VT
X

TR
EE

S

SH
R

U
B

S

G
R

O
U

N
D

C
O

VE
R

S

N
O

TE
:  

Pl
an

t l
is

t i
s 

an
 a

id
 to

 b
id

de
rs

 o
nl

y.
  C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
ve

rif
y 

al
l q

ua
nt

iti
es

 o
n 

pl
an

.  
Al

l h
ei

gh
ts

 a
nd

 s
pr

ea
ds

 a
re

m
in

im
um

s.
  A

ll 
pl

an
t m

at
er

ia
l s

ha
ll 

m
ee

t o
r e

xc
ee

d 
re

m
ar

ks
 a

s 
in

di
ca

te
d.

  A
ll 

tre
es

 to
 h

av
e 

st
ra

ig
ht

 tr
un

ks
 a

nd
 b

e 
m

at
ch

in
g

w
ith

in
 v

ar
ie

tie
s.

BO
TA

N
IC

AL
 N

AM
E

Ab
el

ia
 s

p.
 'R

os
e 

C
re

ek
'

Le
uc

op
hy

llu
m

 s
p.

 'C
om

pa
ct

um
'

Ile
x 

vo
m

ito
ria

M
uh

le
nb

er
gi

a 
ca

pp
ill

ar
is

Pe
nn

is
et

um
 s

p.
 'D

w
ar

f H
am

le
n'

Li
gu

st
ru

m
 s

in
en

si
s 

'S
un

sh
in

e'
N

as
el

la
 te

nn
ui

ss
im

a
H

es
pe

ra
lo

e 
pa

rv
ifo

lia
 'B

ra
ke

lig
ht

s'
Ile

x 
sp

. '
N

el
lie

 R
. S

te
ve

ns
'

C
O

M
M

O
N

 N
AM

E

D
w

ar
f A

be
lia

 'R
os

e 
C

re
ek

'
D

w
f. 

Te
xa

s 
Sa

ge
 'C

om
pa

ct
um

'
D

w
ar

f Y
au

po
n 

H
ol

ly
G

ul
f M

uh
ly

D
w

ar
f H

am
le

n 
G

ra
ss

Su
ns

hi
ne

 L
ig

us
tru

m
M

ex
ic

an
 F

ea
th

er
gr

as
s

R
ed

 Y
uc

ca
 'B

ra
ke

lig
ht

s'
N

el
lie

 R
. S

te
ve

n 
H

ol
ly

Q
TY

.

22 30 15 28 24 74 57 66 35

SI
ZE

5 
ga

l.
5 

ga
l.

5 
ga

l.
5 

ga
l.

5 
ga

l.
5 

ga
l.

3 
ga

l.
3 

ga
l.

5 
ga

l.

R
EM

AR
KS

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

0"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

6"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

0"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

6"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

0"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

6"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

0"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

6"
 o

.c
.

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

pl
an

t s
pe

ci
m

en
, 3

6"
 o

.c
.

TY
PE D

A
D

TS
D

YH G
M

H
M

G
LI

G
M

FG R
Y

N
R

S

BO
TA

N
IC

AL
 N

AM
E

Li
rio

pe
 g

ig
an

te
a

Eu
on

yn
um

s 
fo

rtu
ne

i c
ol

or
at

us
C

yn
od

on
 d

ac
ty

lo
n 

'T
iff

w
ay

 4
19

'

C
O

M
M

O
N

 N
AM

E

G
ia

nt
 L

iri
op

e
W

in
te

rc
re

ep
er

Be
rm

ud
ag

ra
ss

 'T
iff

w
ay

 4
19

'

Q
TY

.

12
0

36
2

SI
ZE

3 
ga

l.
4"

 p
ot

s
ro

ll 
so

d

R
EM

AR
KS

co
nt

ai
ne

r g
ro

w
n,

 fu
ll 

to
p 

of
 c

on
ta

in
er

, 2
4"

 o
.c

.
co

nt
ai

ne
r, 

(3
) 1

2"
 ru

nn
er

s 
m

in
., 

12
" o

.c
.

so
lid

 s
od

 re
fe

r t
o 

no
te

s

TY
PE LG W

C

R
ED

 O
AK

G
R

A
PH

IC
 P

LA
N

T 
LE

G
EN

D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

R
EE

 T
O

R
EM

AI
N

C
ol

or
ad

o 
R

ive
r R

oc
k,

 3
/4

" -
 1

.5
",

18
" w

id
th

, 4
" d

ep
th

 w
ith

 s
te

el
 e

dg
in

g
bo

rd
er

 a
nd

 w
ee

d 
ba

rri
er

 fa
br

ic.

D
ec

om
po

se
d 

G
ra

ni
te

, 1
8"

 w
id

th
,

3"
 d

ep
th

 w
ith

 s
te

el
 e

dg
in

g 
bo

rd
er

an
d 

w
ee

d 
ba

rri
er

 fa
br

ic
, 2

4"
 w

id
th

 a
lo

ng
pa

rk
in

g

LA
W

N
, B

ER
M

U
D

AG
R

AS
S

BA
LD

 C
YP

RE
SS

LI
VE

 O
AK

D
W

AR
F 

TE
XA

S 
SA

G
E

G
U

LF
 M

U
H

LY

R
ED

 Y
U

C
C

A

D
W

AR
F 

YA
UP

O
N

 H
O

LL
Y

SU
NS

H
IN

E 
LI

G
U

ST
R

U
M

D
W

AR
F 

H
AM

LE
N

 G
R

AS
S

D
W

AR
F 

AB
EL

IA

M
EX

IC
AN

 F
EA

TH
ER

G
R

AS
S

G
IA

NT
 L

IR
IO

PE

W
IN

TE
R

C
RE

EP
ER

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
SH

EE
T 

 L
.2

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ig
ht

 o
f W

ay
, e

as
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
om

m
on

 a
re

as
 m

us
t b

e 
st

ab
iliz

ed
 w

ith
pe

re
nn

ia
l v

eg
et

at
io

n 
co

ve
r, 

fu
lly

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

w
ith

 1
00

%
 c

ov
er

ag
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 a
pp

ro
ve

d
st

ab
iliz

at
io

n 
m

et
ho

d.

N
o 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

su
ch

 a
s 

tre
es

, h
ed

ge
s,

 a
bo

ve
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 s
ha

ll 
be

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

or
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ut
ilit

y 
ea

se
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 ri
gh

t o
f w

ay
 w

ith
ou

t
ap

pr
ov

ed
 C

ity
's

 R
ea

l P
ro

pe
rty

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

fo
rm

 o
r C

ity
's

 L
ic

en
se

Ag
re

em
en

t.

C
on

cr
et

e 
si

de
w

al
ks

 p
er

 C
iv

il

VI
TE

X

M
EX

IC
AN

 P
LU

M

C
R

EP
E 

M
YR

TL
E

N
EL

LI
E 

R
. S

TE
VE

N
S 

H
O

LL
Y

TR
A

SH
 R

EC
EP

TA
C

LE
 N

O
TE

S

1.
Tr

as
h 

R
ec

ep
ta

cl
es

 s
ha

ll 
 b

e:
   

  
BI

LS
O

N
 O

U
TD

O
O

R
S

Le
xi

ng
to

n 
co

lle
ct

io
n

LX
-3

6R
B 

/ 3
6 

G
AL

LO
N

 C
AP

AC
IT

Y
W

IT
H

 R
AI

N
 B

O
N

N
ET

PO
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
: B

LA
C

K
80

0 
32

3 
56

64
TO

TA
L 

O
F 

(1
)

2.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
tu

rn
-k

ey
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
,

sh
ip

m
en

t, 
ha

nd
lin

g,
 p

la
ce

m
en

t, 
et

c.

B
EN

C
H

ES

1.
Be

nc
he

s 
sh

al
l  

be
:

   
  

BI
LS

O
N

 O
U

TD
O

O
R

S
   

  
H

am
ilt

on
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Sl

at
 S

ty
le

M
od

el
 9

1C
-S

6 
/ 6

'
Su

rfa
ce

 M
ou

nt
 / 

P
ow

de
r C

oa
t: 

Si
lv

er
TO

TA
L 

O
F 

(1
)

2.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
tu

rn
-k

ey
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

be
nc

he
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g,
bu

t n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, s

hi
pm

en
t, 

ha
nd

lin
g,

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
et

c.

TR
SH

TR
SH

B
IK

E 
R

A
C

K

1.
Bi

ke
 R

ac
k 

sh
al

l  
be

:
   

  
BI

LS
O

N
 O

U
TD

O
O

R
S

   
  

O
pa

l B
ik

e 
R

ac
k

M
od

el
 O

P
R

-2
-IG

-P
In

-g
ro

un
d 

M
ou

nt
 / 

Po
w

de
r C

oa
t: 

Si
lv

er
TO

TA
L 

O
F 

(1
)

2.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
tu

rn
-k

ey
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

bi
ke

 ra
ck

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

bu
t n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, s
hi

pm
en

t, 
ha

nd
lin

g,
pl

ac
em

en
t, 

et
c.



E
X

.
S

S
M

H

T
R

A
C

T
 2

N
O

T
 B

E
IN

G
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

E
D

 T
O

D
A

Y

T
R

A
C

T
 2

N
O

T
 B

E
IN

G
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

E
D

 T
O

D
A

Y

NO.DATEREVISION

801 East Campbell Road
Suite 650, Richardson, TX 75081

Tel. No. 214-484-7055
TBPE Firm Lic. 20683

D
AT

E

03
/1

8/
20

24

D
ES

IG
N

C
H

EC
K

ED

CAMPBELL 190

P:\Projects 2024\Bazzara Office\CD\L100.dwgMonday, March 18, 2024 7:21:55 AM

BD
A

BD
A

SC
AL

E:
  1

" =
 3

0'
-0

"
LA

N
D

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN
01

17
08

 N
. G

rif
fin

 S
tre

et
D

al
la

s,
 T

ex
as

  7
52

02
Te

l  
   

  2
14

.8
71

.0
08

3
Fa

x 
   

  2
14

.8
71

.0
54

5
Em

ai
l  

 s
m

r@
sm

r-l
a.

co
m

sm
r

 

S T A T
E

O
F

T
E

XAS

1
1

7
6

N
D

.A
D

A

BRIA

SM 03
.1

8.
20

24

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
C

IT
Y 

C
AS

E 
#:

 2
40

10
9-

1

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T

A
LL

IA
N

C
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
16

0
0 

N
. C

O
LL

IN
S

 B
LV

D
.,

 S
U

IT
E

 1
00

0
R

IC
H

A
R

D
S

O
N

, T
X

 7
5

08
0

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
: Z

A
C

H
 W

E
LD

Y
P

H
O

N
E

: (
97

2
) 

23
3 

- 
04

00

O
W

N
ER

 / 
AP

PL
IC

AN
T

B
A

R
R

A
Z

A
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P

80
1

 E
. C

A
M

P
B

E
L

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 6

50
R

IC
H

A
R

D
S

O
N

, T
X

 7
5

08
1

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
: J

O
H

N
 H

A
L

E
P

H
O

N
E

: (
46

9
) 

49
8 

- 
99

31

5.
76

9 
AC

R
ES

 S
IT

U
AT

ED
 IN

 T
H

E
P.

H
. R

IC
E 

SU
R

VE
Y,

 A
BS

TR
AC

T 
N

O
. 1

24
1

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
G

AR
LA

N
D

D
AL

LA
S 

C
O

U
N

TY
, T

EX
AS

LANDSCAPE PLAN L.
2

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
SH

EE
T 

 L
.1



NO.DATEREVISION

801 East Campbell Road
Suite 650, Richardson, TX 75081

Tel. No. 214-484-7055
TBPE Firm Lic. 20683

D
AT

E

03
/1

8/
20

24

D
ES

IG
N

C
H

EC
K

ED

CAMPBELL 190

P:\Projects 2024\Bazzara Office\CD\L100.dwgMonday, March 18, 2024 7:21:32 AM

BD
A

BD
A

17
08

 N
. G

rif
fin

 S
tre

et
D

al
la

s,
 T

ex
as

  7
52

02
Te

l  
   

  2
14

.8
71

.0
08

3
Fa

x 
   

  2
14

.8
71

.0
54

5
Em

ai
l  

 s
m

r@
sm

r-l
a.

co
m

S T A
E

F
T

E
X

1
1

7
6

N
.

D

A

BRA

SM 03
.1

8.
20

24

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
C

IT
Y 

C
AS

E 
#:

 2
40

10
9-

1

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T

A
LL

IA
N

C
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
16

0
0 

N
. C

O
LL

IN
S

 B
LV

D
.,

 S
U

IT
E

 1
00

0
R

IC
H

A
R

D
S

O
N

, T
X

 7
5

08
0

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
: Z

A
C

H
 W

E
LD

Y
P

H
O

N
E

: (
97

2
) 

23
3 

- 
04

00

O
W

N
ER

 / 
AP

PL
IC

AN
T

B
A

R
R

A
Z

A
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P

80
1

 E
. C

A
M

P
B

E
L

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 6

50
R

IC
H

A
R

D
S

O
N

, T
X

 7
5

08
1

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
: J

O
H

N
 H

A
L

E
P

H
O

N
E

: (
46

9
) 

49
8 

- 
99

31

5.
76

9 
AC

R
ES

 S
IT

U
AT

ED
 IN

 T
H

E
P.

H
. R

IC
E 

SU
R

VE
Y,

 A
BS

TR
AC

T 
N

O
. 1

24
1

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
G

AR
LA

N
D

D
AL

LA
S 

C
O

U
N

TY
, T

EX
AS

LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS /
DETAILS

L.
3

6"

2X
 D

IA
M

ET
ER

O
F 

R
O

O
TB

AL
L

A
TR

EE
 P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 D

ET
AI

L
N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
AL

E

4'-5' MTG. HT. 6"

(3
) M

E
TA

L 
T-

P
O

S
T 

P
AI

N
TE

D
G

R
EE

N
 T

R
IA

N
G

U
LA

R
 S

P
A

C
IN

G
.

N
O

TE
:  

LO
C

A
TE

 S
TA

K
E

S 
O

U
TS

ID
E

O
F 

TR
EE

 W
E

LL
.  

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 S

TA
K

ES
TO

 S
E

C
U

R
E

 T
R

E
E

 A
G

A
IN

S
T 

S
EA

S
O

N
A

L
P

R
E

VA
IL

IN
G

 W
IN

D
S

.

N
A

TI
V

E 
SO

IL
, R

E
F.

 S
P

EC
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

6"

FI
N

IS
H

 G
R

A
D

E
 S

C
AR

IF
Y 

SI
D

E
S

C
R

U
S

H
ED

 R
O

C
K

2"
 L

AY
E

R
 M

U
LC

H
, R

E
F.

 S
P

EC
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

S

R
E

FE
R

EN
C

E
 P

LA
N

 F
O

R
 T

R
EE

 T
Y

PE

D
O

 N
O

T 
C

U
T 

C
EN

TR
A

L 
LE

A
D

E
R

2 
S

TR
A

N
D

S 
N

O
. 1

2 
G

AU
G

E
G

A
LV

A
N

IZ
ED

 W
IR

E
, T

W
IS

TE
D

R
U

B
BE

R
 H

O
SE

2"
 H

IG
H

 W
A

TE
R

IN
G

 R
IN

G

4"
 D

IA
. P

ER
FO

R
AT

ED
P

VC
 P

IP
E 

W
/ C

A
P

P
AI

N
TE

D
 B

LA
C

K
R

O
O

TB
AL

L,
 D

O
 N

O
T 

D
IS

TU
R

B
.  

TO
P

O
F 

R
O

O
TB

A
LL

 T
O

 B
E 

SE
T 

1"
 A

BO
VE

E
XI

ST
IN

G
 G

R
A

D
E.

  R
E

M
O

V
E 

TO
P 

1/
3 

B
U

R
LA

P
.

1/
2"

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 B

ET
W

E
EN

 T
O

P
 O

F 
M

U
LC

H
A

N
D

 T
O

P
 O

F 
C

O
N

C
R

ET
E

1/
2"

 M
AX

IM
U

M

S
ID

EW
A

LK

P
R

E
PA

R
E

D
 S

O
IL

 M
IX

P
ER

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

S
H

R
U

B
S 

AN
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

C
O

V
ER

R
E

FE
R

 T
O

 P
LA

N
S

 F
O

R
 P

LA
N

T 
TY

P
E

S

M
U

LC
H

 P
ER

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

P
R

E
PA

R
E

D
 S

O
IL

 M
IX

P
ER

 S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

1/
8"

 X
 4

" G
R

E
EN

 S
TE

E
L 

ED
G

IN
G

W
IT

H
 S

TA
K

ES

C
SI

D
EW

AL
K 

/ M
U

LC
H

 D
ET

AI
L

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

AL
E

D
ST

EE
L 

ED
G

IN
G

 D
ET

AI
L

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

AL
E

no
 s

te
el

 a
lo

ng
 s

id
ew

al
ks

N
O

TE
:  

N
O

 S
TE

EL
 E

D
G

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E 

IN
ST

A
LL

E
D

A
LO

N
G

 S
ID

EW
A

LK
S

LA
W

N

S
H

R
U

B
S 

AN
D

 G
R

O
U

N
D

C
O

V
ER

R
E

FE
R

 T
O

 P
LA

N
S

 F
O

R
 P

LA
N

T 
TY

P
E

S

P
R

E
PA

R
E

D
 S

O
IL

 M
IX

 P
ER

 S
P

EC
S.

6"
 M

IN
. O

F 
P

R
E

P
AR

ED
 S

O
IL

 M
IX

TI
LL

ED
 IN

TO
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 S

O
IL

 T
O

A
 D

EP
TH

 O
F 

6"

2"
 L

AY
E

R
 O

F 
S

PE
C

IF
IE

D
 B

A
R

K
 M

U
LC

H

R
O

O
TB

AL
L,

 D
O

 N
O

T 
D

IS
TU

R
B

N
O

TE
:  

P
O

C
KE

T 
P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 N

O
T

A
LL

O
W

ED

FI
N

IS
H

 G
R

A
D

E

R
E

F.
 P

LA
N

 F
O

R
 S

H
R

U
B 

TY
P

E

F
SH

R
U

B 
PL

AN
TI

N
G

 D
ET

AI
L

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

AL
E

SP
AC

IN
G

 P
ER

PL
AN

T 
LI

ST
6"

N
A

TI
V

E 
SO

IL

P
R

E
PA

R
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

C
O

V
ER

B
ED

 B
Y 

TI
LL

IN
G

 E
N

TI
R

E
 B

ED
A

R
E

A.
  P

R
O

V
ID

E 
SO

IL
 M

IX
A

S 
D

E
FI

N
E

D
 IN

 T
H

E
 L

A
N

D
SC

AP
E

S
PE

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

2"
 M

U
LC

H
 D

O
U

B
LE

 S
H

R
E

D
D

ED
 H

AR
D

W
O

O
D

M
U

LC
H

 IN
 B

ED
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
R

/A
N

N
U

AL
S

.

12
" M

IN
ED

G
E 

O
F 

BE
D

D
D

D
A A

PL
AN

T 
R

O
W

 S
PA

C
IN

G
 'D

'  
  R

O
W

 S
PA

C
IN

G
 'A

'  
 P

LA
N

TS
/1

0S
F

8"
   

O
.C

.
12

" O
.C

.
15

" O
.C

.
18

" O
.C

.

6.
9"

10
.4

"
13

.0
"

15
.7

"

26 12 7 5

A
  =

  R
O

W
 S

P
A

C
IN

G
B

  =
  O

N
 C

E
N

TE
R

 S
P

AC
IN

G

S
PA

C
E

 P
LA

N
TS

 IN
 A

 T
R

IA
N

G
U

LA
R

P
AT

TE
R

N
A

S 
SH

O
W

N
, S

P
AC

E
D

 E
Q

U
AL

LY
FR

O
M

 E
AC

H
O

TH
E

R
 A

T 
S

PA
C

IN
G

IN
D

IC
A

TE
D

 O
N

 P
LA

N
T 

LI
S

T.

B
G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
VE

R
 P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 D

ET
AI

L
N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
AL

E

A
P

P
E

A
R

A
N

C
E

 O
F

 G
O

O
D

 S
O

D

L
A

Y
 S

O
D

 I
N

 A
 S

T
A

G
G

E
R

E
D

P
A

T
T

E
R

N
.  

B
U

T
T

 T
H

E
 S

T
R

IP
S

T
IG

H
T

L
Y

 A
G

A
IN

S
T

 E
A

C
H

 O
T

H
E

R
.

D
O

 N
O

T
 L

E
A

V
E

 S
P

A
C

E
S

 A
N

D
 D

O
N

O
T

 O
V

E
R

L
A

P
.  

A
 S

H
A

R
P

E
N

E
D

M
A

S
O

N
'S

 T
R

O
W

E
L

 I
S

 A
 H

A
N

D
Y

T
O

O
L

 F
O

R
 T

U
C

K
IN

G
 D

O
W

N
 T

H
E

E
N

D
S

 A
N

D
 T

R
IM

M
IN

G
 P

IE
C

E
S

.

S
H

O
O

T
S

  
- 

O
R

 G
R

A
S

S
 B

L
A

D
E

S
.

G
R

A
S

S
 S

H
O

U
L

D
 B

E
 G

R
E

E
N

A
N

D
  H

E
A

L
T

H
Y

, 
M

O
W

E
D

 A
T

 A
2

"-
3"

  
C

U
T

T
IN

G
 H

E
IG

H
T

.

T
H

A
T

C
H

  -
 G

R
A

S
S

 C
L

IP
P

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

D
E

A
D

  
L

E
A

V
E

S
,  

U
P

 T
O

 1
/2

" 
T

H
IC

K
.

R
O

O
T

 Z
O

N
E

  
- 

S
O

IL
 A

N
D

 R
O

O
T

S
S

H
O

U
L

D
 B

E
  

1
/2

" 
- 

3
/4

" 
T

H
IC

K
, 

W
IT

H
D

E
N

S
E

 R
O

O
T

 M
A

T
  

F
O

R
S

T
R

E
N

G
T

H
.

E
N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
A

LE







GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 4. 4.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: TxDOT Click It or Ticket Grant May 2024
Submitted By:Submitted By: Jeffrey Bryan, Chief of Police
Strategic Focus AreaStrategic Focus Area:: Safe Community
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Council is requested to consider accepting a Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) Selective Traffic
Enforcement Program (STEP) Click It or Ticket (CIOT) Grant for May 2024.

BackgroundBackground
The TxDOT grant funding for the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Click It or Ticket (CIOT) Grant is to
be used for education, awareness, and increased safety belt compliance during the period of May 17 to June 5, 2024.
The grant for the time period is in the amount of $6,312.12. If accepted, TxDOT will reimburse the City of Garland
$4,971.23. The grant requires the City to provide $1,340.89 in matching funds. This will be accomplished in part
through fringe benefits expenditures and direct costs. Consequently, the City can satisfy the contractual match
requirements without expending any additional funds.

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation
Staff recommends Council approve the resolution for the 2024 Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Click
It or Ticket (CIOT) Grant and authorize the Chief of Police to execute such documents necessary to complete the
transaction.

AttachmentsAttachments
TxDOT CIOT Resolution
TxDOT CIOT Grant Application



 
RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM CLICK IT OR 
TICKET GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,312.12; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS:  
 

Section 1 
 

That the City of Garland Police Department, by and through Police 
Chief Jeff Bryan, is hereby authorized to accept a Texas Department 
of Transportation Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Click It 
or Ticket Grant in the amount of $6,312.12, for the purpose of 
vehicle occupant restraint enforcement during the period from May 
17, 2024 through June 5, 2024.  
 

Section 2 
 

That this Resolution shall be and become effective immediately 
upon and after its adoption and approval.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of May, 2024.  
 

 
 

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS  
 
 
 

_________________________  
                    Mayor  

ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________  
City Secretary 





City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 1 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 2 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 3 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 4 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 5 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 6 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 7 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 8 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 9 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 10 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 11 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 12 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 13 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 14 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 15 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 16 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 17 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 18 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 19 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 20 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 21 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 22 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 23 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 24 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 25 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 26 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 27 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 28 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 29 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 30 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 31 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 32 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 33 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 34 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 35 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - CIOT - 2024

Page 36 of 362024-GarlandPD-CIOT-00028 Printed On: 4/19/2024



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 5. 5.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: TxDOT Operation Slowdown Grant 2024
Submitted By:Submitted By: Jeffrey Bryan, Chief of Police
Strategic Focus AreaStrategic Focus Area:: Safe Community
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Council is requested to consider accepting a Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) Selective Traffic
Enforcement Program (STEP) Operation Slowdown Grant for 2024.

BackgroundBackground
The purpose of this grant is to increase effective enforcement and adjudication of traffic safety-related laws to reduce
fatal and serious injury crashes, as well as public information and education efforts during the enforcement period.
Enforcement of these efforts will be focused throughout the City of Garland during the period of July 16 to August 7,
2024. The grant for the time period is in the amount of $6,312.12. If accepted, TxDOT will reimburse the City of
Garland $4,971.23. The grant requires the City to provide $1,340.89 in matching funds. This will be accomplished in
part through fringe benefits expenditures and direct costs. Consequently, the City can satisfy the contractual match
requirements without expending any additional funds.

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation
Staff recommends Council approve a resolution for the 2024 Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP)
Operation Slowdown Grant and authorize the Chief of Police to execute such documents necessary to complete the
transaction.

AttachmentsAttachments
Ops Slowdown Resolution 2024
Ops Slowdown Grant Application 2024



 
RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM OPERATION 
SLOWDOWN GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,312.12; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS:  
 

Section 1 
 

That the City of Garland Police Department, by and through Police 
Chief Jeff Bryan, is hereby authorized to accept a Texas Department 
of Transportation Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Operation 
Slowdown Grant in the amount of $6,312.12, for the purpose of speed 
enforcement during the period from July 16, 2024 through August 7, 
2024.  
 

Section 2 
 

That this Resolution shall be and become effective immediately 
upon and after its adoption and approval.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of May, 2024.  
 

 
 

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS  
 
 
 

_________________________  
                    Mayor  

ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________  
City Secretary 





City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 1 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 2 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 3 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 4 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 5 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 6 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 7 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 8 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 9 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 10 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 11 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 12 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 13 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 14 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 15 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 16 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 17 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 18 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 19 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 20 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 21 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 22 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 23 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 24 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 25 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 26 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 27 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 28 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 29 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 30 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 31 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 32 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 33 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 34 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 35 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



City of Garland Police Department
STEP - OpSlow- 2024

Page 36 of 362024-GarlandPD-OpSlow-00008 Printed On: 4/19/2024



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 6. 6.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Next Generation 9-1-1 Statutory Distribution of Funds Certification
Submitted By:Submitted By: Jeffrey Bryan, Chief of Police
Strategic Focus AreaStrategic Focus Area:: Safe Community
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Approve by minute action a request from the Police Department to allow the City Manager to execute a statutory
distribution of funds certification with the Commission on State Emergency Communications (CSEC). This will result
in an additional $1,262,272.83, plus any related interest that accrues.

BackgroundBackground
The recent amendments to Section 771.0713 of the Texas Health and Safety Code resulting from the passage of
House Bi l 3290 ("HB 3290") in the 2023 Regular Session of the Texas Legislature directed the Commission on State
Emergency Communications (CSEC) to distribute money transferred from the Broadband Fund into the NG9-1-1
Service Fund, and require the Commission to distribute to each emergency communication district (ECD) ta portion
of the appropriated money in accordance with a specific formula. The funding will supplement the current grant
project to begin the implementation of ESInet and NG9-1-1 in our current Vesta system. The City of Garland has
previously been awarded $1,473,325 in NG9-1-1 grant funds.

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation
Staff recommends to approve by minute action a request from the Police Department to allow the City Manager to
execute a statutory distribution of funds certification with the Commission on State Emergency Communications
(CSEC).

AttachmentsAttachments
NG911 Fund Certification



COMMISSION ON STATE EMERGENCY CCOMMUNICATIONS 

Page 1 of 2 

PROPOSITION 8 – NEXT GENERATION 9-1-1 SERVICE FUND 

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION DISTRICT 
CERTIFICATION  

Texas voters recently enacted Constitutional Proposition 8 establishing the Texas Broadband Infrastructure 
Fund (the “Broadband Fund”), and the Governor has certified the results of the election.  Under Constitutional 
Proposition 8 and Texas Government Code Chapter 403, subchapter T, as established by House Bill 9 (“HB 9”), 
the enabling legislation for Proposition 8, the Texas Comptroller shall make a one-time transfer of $155.2 million 
from the Broadband Fund “as soon as practicable” to the next generation 9-1-1 service fund (the “NG9-1-1 
Service Fund”) established under Texas Health and Safety Code Section 771.0713.  The recent amendments to 
Section 771.0713 of the Texas Health and Safety Code resulting from the passage of House Bill 3290 (“HB 3290”) 
in the 2023 Regular Session of the Texas Legislature direct the Commission on State Emergency Communications 
(the “Commission”) to distribute the money transferred from the Broadband Fund into the NG9-1-1 Service 
Fund, and require the Commission to distribute to each emergency communication district (“ECD”) that does 
not participate in the state system a portion of the appropriated money in accordance with the specific formula 
set forth in Subsections (c-1) and (c-2) of Section 771.0713. 

In acknowledgment of the foregoing, the ECD, through its duly authorized representative, hereby certifies 
as follows: 

1. The ECD acknowledges its statutory distribution from the NG9-1-1 Service Fund in the base amount of
$_________________________ pursuant to Sec. 771.0713, Health and Safety Code, plus any related interest 
that accrues related to this distribution amount while deposited in the NG9-1-1 Service Fund.

2. The ECD agrees that it will use the funds distributed from the NG9-1-1 Service Fund only for the purposes
authorized by applicable state law.

3. The ECD agrees that it will return any funds distributed from the NG9-1-1 Service Fund that are not used
for the purposes authorized by applicable state law to the State of Texas.

4. Until the ECD has reported to the Commission that it has spent all of the HB 9 funds disbursed to it from
the NG9-1-1 Service Fund, the ECD agrees to submit financial and progress reports to the Commission on or
before the following four dates:

(i) June 15, 2024 (for the reporting period covering the ECD’s 2024 fiscal year through May 31,
2024);

(ii) the date that is not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of the ECD’s 2024 fiscal year (for the
reporting period covering through the end of the ECD’s 2024 fiscal year);

https://capitol.texas.gov/tlodocs/88R/billtext/pdf/HB00009F.pdf#navpanes=0


COMMISSION ON STATE EMERGENCY CCOMMUNICATIONS 

Page 2 of 2 

(iii) the date that is not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of the ECD’s first six (6) months of
its 2025 fiscal year (for the reporting period covering through the first six (6) months of the ECD’s
2025 fiscal year); and

(iv) the date that is not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of the ECD’s 2025 fiscal year (for the
reporting period covering through the end of the ECD’s 2025 fiscal year).

The signatory below certifies that he/she is duly authorized to represent                        on 
matters relating to the HB 9 funds disbursed to the ECD from the NG9-1-1 Service Fund, and shall be 
responsible for timely and accurate reporting to the Commission as set forth above.  

Signed this _____ Day of _____________________, 2024. 

ECD Full Name: _________________________________________________________ 

ECD Fiscal Year: ___________________________________ 

Signature: __________________________________ 

Typed/Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 7. 7.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building B)
Submitted By:Submitted By: Ayako Schuster, Economic Development Director
Strategic Focus AreaStrategic Focus Area:: Growing Economic Base
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Council is requested to consider a development incentive request from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP. in regards to
a proposed cold storage conversion project. 
 

BackgroundBackground
Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP plans to convert 112,139 square feet of existing dry storage facility into a cold storage
facility. The facility is on approximately 9.795 acres and will involve approximately $19 Million in new capital
investment to the site. This is in addition to the redevelopment of Building C, which is also being considered for
incentives separately.
 

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation
Approval of the incentive agreement with Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP. Agreement includes a rebate of building
permit fees up to $75,000 and a rebate of ad valorem taxes for new real property improvements of 40% for 2 years
for Building B.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Proposed Economic Development Incentive Agreement



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 1 21

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

This Economic Development Incentive Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City
of Garland, a Texas home-rule municipality (“City”), and Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP, a
Delaware limited partnership (“Developer”) acting by and through their respective authorized
officers.  The City and Developer are referred to individually in this Agreement as a “Party” and
together they are referred to as the “Parties.”

ARTICLE I

RECITALS

The City and Developer each acknowledge and agree that the following recitals are true and
correct and that the same are incorporated herein and are a material part of this Agreement:

WHEREAS, the City desires to further the public interest and welfare and to induce the
investment of private resources in productive business enterprises located in certain areas of the City
in order to increase tax revenue for real property and business personal property within the City, and
promote or develop new business enterprises; and

WHEREAS, Developer is working to renovate and retrofit 112,139 square feet of an existing
dry storage facility (the “Project”) pursuant to a lease with a tenant that intends to operate a new cold
storage use at the facility at 2610 McCree Road, on a certain tract of land consisting of approximately
9.795 acres located within the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas, being further described in
Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for all purposes (the
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Developer proposes to invest approximately $7,800,000.00 in new real property
improvement value at the Property for the Project and its tenant has committed to invest more than
$11,200,000 at the Property for the Project;

WHEREAS, the Project will result in new economic development in the City, including
increases in the number of new jobs; will serve as a catalyst for further, perhaps related development
in the area; and will increase tax revenues because of investments in real property, business personal
property, and taxable sales within the City; and

WHEREAS, the Project will have a direct and positive economic benefit to the City; and

WHEREAS, the Developer has advised the City that a contributing factor of inducing the
Developer to develop the Property is an agreement by the City to provide an economic development
grant to the Developer as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Article 52-a of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 380
of the Texas Local Government Code to provide a program for economic development grants to
promote local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City;
and



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 2 21

WHEREAS, City wishes to provide incentives to Developer to assist in the economic
development of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined, based on information presented to it by the Developer,
that making an economic development incentive grant to the Developer in accordance with this
Agreement furthers the City’s economic development goals and will: (i) promote the economic
development objectives of the City; (ii) benefit the City and the City’s inhabitants; and (iii) advance
local economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City; and

WHEREAS, City hereby finds that this Agreement embodies an eligible Program (defined
below) and clearly promotes economic development in the City and, as such, meets the requisites
under Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code and further, is in the best interests of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Developer and the City make and enter into this Agreement in
consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by both the
Developer and the City, and agree as follows:

ARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

Section 2.01.  “Compliance Certificate” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.02.

Section 2.02.  “Cold Storage Facility” means and includes a warehouse facility designed to
maintain certain environmental conditions through cooling and/or freezing to keep temperature
sensitive products, such as perishable food products and other goods, safe, through food storage,
distribution, and production services.

Section 2.03.  “DCAD” means the Dallas Central Appraisal District.

Section 2.04.  “Non-Exempt Assessed Value” means the total assessed value, as reasonably
established by DCAD, of the real property improvements located on the Property that are taxable by
a Texas taxing authority for ad valorem taxation purposes.

Section 2.05.  “Operational” means that the Developer, its affiliate, assignee, or tenant has:
(i) received a final certificate of occupancy for the Project at the Property and (ii) has commenced
business activities at the Property consistent with operations of a Cold Storage Facility, with a
minimum improvement value of $13,061,160.00.

Section 2.06.  “Performance Period” means the period of time, as more fully described in
below Article III, during which Developer is eligible for Performance Rebate Payments.

Section 2.07.  “Performance Rebate Payments” means the City’s payments to Developer in
the form of one or more annual rebate payments in an amount equal to the applicable percentage as
specified in Section 4.01 of this Agreement applied to the total of Developer’s ad valorem taxes



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 3 21

received by the City for new real property improvements on the Property and attributable to the
calendar year immediately preceding the year for which a Performance Rebate Payment is requested
by Developer in accordance with Article IV.

Section 2.08.  “Program” means the economic development program for the Project
established by the City pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 380 to promote economic
development and stimulate business and commercial activity within the City as represented by the
terms of this Agreement.

Section 2.09.  “Project” has the meaning described in the Recitals to this Agreement.
  

Section 2.10.  “Property” has the meaning described in the Recitals to this Agreement.

ARTICLE III

COMMENCEMENT, COMPLETION AND OPERATION OF THE PROJECT

Section 3.01.  Commencement of the Project.  Developer shall initiate construction of the
Project, including dedicating resources and funds to meet the required minimum performance
standards, to be Operational on or before December 31, 2024.  The commencement of operations shall
be evidenced by receipt of a final Certificate of Occupancy issued by the City in accordance with
applicable ordinances.

Section 3.02.  Continued Operation of Business.  After Project becomes Operational,
Developer, or its affiliate, tenant or assign, shall operate, maintain, and manage Project on the Property
until at least December 31, 2026, with it being understood that such operation, maintenance and
management shall be subject to commercially reasonable usage during normal working hours and to
force majeure.

Section 3.03.  Non-Exempt Assessed Value Performance Standards.  Notwithstanding any
other provision contained herein to the contrary, Developer shall not be eligible for a year’s
Performance Rebate Payments described in Article IV of this Agreement, unless beginning January
1, 2025 and continuing thereafter through December 31, 2026, Developer achieves a minimum
taxable real property improvement valuation of $13,061,160.00 on the Property for the respective year,
as determined by DCAD in its sole discretion.

ARTICLE IV

PERFORMANCE REBATE PAYMENTS FROM THE CITY

Section 4.01.  Performance Rebate Payments.  Subject to the requirements and limitations
of this Article, the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, and Developer’s compliance with its
obligations under this Agreement, the City shall make Performance Rebate Payments to Developer in
accordance with this Article during the following Performance Rebate Period:



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 4 21

a. The City shall rebate 40% of ad valorem taxes paid to the City based on new real property
improvements located on the Property for a 2-year tax period beginning tax year 2025 and
then again in tax year 2026, provided that the minimum taxable real property
improvement valuation as specified in Section 3.03 has been satisfied;

b. The City shall rebate up to $75,000.00 of building permit fees actually paid to the City once
the primary certificate of occupancy for the Property has been issued by the City and the
Project has become Operational and Developer has provided the City with copies of all
receipts for building permit fees actually paid by Developer.

Section 4.02.  Process for Payment.  Beginning after the tax year 2025, and once again after
the tax year 2026, Developer may request a Performance Rebate Payment for the applicable tax year
by written application submitted to the City.  The City shall not be required to make a Performance
Rebate Payment for any applicable calendar year until:

a. Developer submits to the City a compliance certificate in substantially the form
attached as Exhibit B (the “Compliance Certificate”) together with all information
required under the Compliance Certificate necessary to verify Developer’s material
compliance with its obligations under this Agreement for the preceding year; and

b. the City has actually received all of Developer’s Real Property Taxes owed for the
preceding year;

c. funds are appropriated by the Garland City Council for the specific purpose of making
a Performance Rebate Payment under this Agreement as part of the City’s ordinary
budget and appropriations approval process or through any subsequent appropriation.

Provided that the foregoing conditions have been satisfied and Developer is otherwise in
compliance with this Agreement, the City shall pay to Developer any Performance Rebate Payments
due within ninety (90) days after the last to occur of the events in above subsections (a) through (c) of
this Section 4.02.  

Section 4.03.  Tax Protests.  Developer agrees that by submitting to the City a request for the
payment of a Performance Rebate Payment, the Developer has (i) finally agreed to the DCAD assessed
tax values and the City’s tax rate and procedures on which the Performance Rebate Payment will be
based without further protest or challenge; (ii) will not make any claim for a refund, repayment, or
reduction of those taxes after settling on any appealed tax assessments or bills from any source,
including the City; and (iii) once any existing tax protest has been settled, waives, to the extent allowed
by law, the right to protest, challenge, or otherwise contest those taxes in any manner.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, no Performance Rebate
Payment shall become due for any tax year in which or for which Developer is protesting the assessed
value or contesting an ad valorem tax due until the protest has been finalized by DCAD, Developer,
and the affected taxing authority.  Developer shall promptly notify the City in writing of any ad
valorem tax protest relating to the Property or any of Developer’s Business Personal Property located



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 5 21

for tax situs purposes on the Property.  If Developer receives any refund of ad valorem taxes paid to
the City after a Performance Rebate Payment has been made for the tax year for which the refund was
paid, Developer shall refund to the City the pro rata amount that the City would have been entitled to
retain as calculated by the applicable percentage provided in Article III.

ARTICLE V

PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS
AND LIMITATIONS ON CITY OBLIGATIONS

Section 5.01.  Personal Liability of Public Officials.  No employee or elected official of the
City shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under this Agreement.

Section 5.02.  Limitations on City Obligations.  The Performance Rebate Payments made
and any other financial obligation of the City hereunder shall be paid solely from lawfully available
funds that have been budgeted and appropriated each year during the Term by the City as provided in
this Agreement.  Under no circumstance shall the City’s obligations hereunder be deemed to create
any debt within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision.  Consequently,
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the City shall have no obligation or liability
to pay any Performance Rebate Payments unless the City budgets and appropriates funds to make such
payments during the City’s fiscal year in which such payments are due.  If the City fails to appropriate
funds to make any Performance Rebate Payment(s), it shall immediately notify Developer of such non-
appropriation and Developer may, at its sole option, terminate this Agreement, effective upon written
notice to the City.

Section 5.03.  No Recourse.  Except for the right to terminate as provided in above Section
5.02, Developer shall have no recourse against the City for the City’s failure to budget and appropriate
funds during any fiscal year to meet the purposes and satisfy its obligations under this Agreement.

 Section 5.04.  Source of Funds.   Performance Rebate Payments shall be made from annual
appropriations only from such funds of the City as may be legally appropriated for the implementation
of Article III, Section 52-a of the Texas Constitution, Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government
Code or any other economic development or financing programs authorized by Texas law or the home-
rule powers of the City.  Any Performance Rebate Payment to be made by the City to the Developer
shall be limited as described in this Section and shall in no event exceed the amounts as are actually
paid by Developer to and received in hand by the City from Personal Property Taxes and Real Property
Taxes on the Project.

ARTICLE VI

INFORMATION REGARDING PERFORMANCE

Section 6.01.  Information.  Subject to this Article VI, Developer shall, at such times and in
such form as the City may reasonably request from Developer, provide information concerning the
performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 6 21

Section 6.02.  Annual Certification Related to Compliance with Agreement.  Beginning
for the tax year 2025 and continuing again for the tax year 2026 and, notwithstanding whether
Developer is making application for a Performance Rebate Payment, Developer shall submit to the
City a duly executed and completed Compliance Certificate on or before March 31 or such other later
date agreed to by the City, signed by an authorized officer or employee of Developer, together with
supporting documentation necessary to verify Developer’s compliance with this Agreement.  The City
shall have thirty days after receipt of a Compliance Certificate to notify Developer in writing of any
questions related to the Compliance Certificate the status of the Project, or information submitted with
or in support of the Compliance Certificate, and Developer shall diligently work in good faith to
respond to such questions to the City’s reasonable satisfaction.

Section 6.03.  Review of Developer’s Records.  To the extent that the City has questions about
the information supplied by Developer in any report, application, filing, or other document provided
under this Agreement, the Parties will engage in good faith efforts to resolve such questions and, upon
the City’s reasonable request, Developer will furnish or make available for inspection documentation
reasonably sufficient to verify the accuracy and completeness of the report, application, filing,
certification or other information, and to demonstrate the manner in which such items or their contents
were calculated or prepared.  If, notwithstanding the good faith efforts of the Parties to resolve any
questions concerning such items, the Parties are unable to resolve such issues, during the Term and for
six (6) months thereafter, the City may examine and audit such books and records of Developer as are
reasonably sufficient to verify the accuracy of such items.  In the event the City’s examination reveals
a payment deficiency or discrepancy, the Parties will cooperate in good faith to address and resolve
such deficiency or discrepancy.  Information, documents, and materials provided by Developer shall
be treated as described in below Section 6.04 of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any
other provision of this Agreement, Developer shall not be required to disclose, permit the inspection
of or examination of, or discuss, any document, information or other matter that is not necessary to
verify Developer’s compliance with this Agreement and that (x) constitutes trade secrets or proprietary
information, (y) in respect of which disclosure is prohibited by law or any binding agreement or (z) is
subject to attorney-client, attorney work product or other privilege recognized under Texas law.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the City will not have the right to review, inspect or
audit any of Developer’s records for periods that are more than four years from the date of the review,
inspection or audit.

Section 6.04. Public Records; Confidentiality.  Developer acknowledges and agrees that this
Agreement, Developer’s annual compliance certificates, and certain other documents and filing related
to this Agreement are or will be public records subject to disclosure (after redaction of information
exempt from disclosure as described below) under the Texas Public Information Act. The Parties
acknowledge and agree that the Public Information Act exempts from disclosure certain types of
records, materials and information, including without limitation: records confidential by law, either
constitutional, statutory or by judicial decision (Section 552.101 of the Texas Government Code);
social security numbers (Section 552.117(a)(2) of the Texas Government Code); trade secrets and
economic development project information (Sections 552,110 and 552.131 of the Texas Government
Code); and proprietary commercial information (Section 552.110 of the Texas Government Code).
The City will endeavor to use adequate safeguards, no less than those safeguards observed by the City
for its own confidential information, to maintain the security and confidentiality of all materials,
communications, data and information related to this Agreement or supplied by Developer in



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 7 21

connection with this Agreement that may be subject to such exemptions from disclosure. Developer
acknowledges that this Agreement constitutes public information and the materials, communications,
data and information related to this Agreement may also constitute public information subject to
disclosure under the Public Information Act and agrees that the City may disclose this Agreement, the
annual compliance certificates and the portions of materials, communications, data and information
related to this Agreement as required by law.  The City will make reasonable efforts to (a) give
Developer prior written notice of a request for public information (other than a request for copies of
this Agreement or annual compliance certificates, which Developer agrees may be released without
notice to Developer) in a reasonably practicable time period to allow Developer to seek a protective
order or other appropriate remedy, (b) disclose only such information as is required under the
applicable law, (c) cooperate with Developer in responding to any such records request (but there shall
be no obligation for the City to independently request or join in any request for a ruling from the
Attorney General, to engage or participate in litigation or to otherwise pursue any remedies sought by
Developer with regard to asserted proprietary commercial or financial information or trade secrets).
The City, without waiving its right to appeal an opinion or ruling under applicable procedures, will or
may comply with any opinion or ruling of the Texas Attorney General or court order recommending
or requiring redaction or withholding of information in response to a request for public information
without further protest or appeal.

ARTICLE VII

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.01.  Rules of Construction.  The capitalized terms listed in this Agreement shall
have the meanings set forth herein whenever the terms appear in this Agreement, whether in the
singular or the plural or in the present or past tense. Other terms used in this Agreement shall have
meanings as commonly used in the English language. Words not otherwise defined herein that have
well known and generally accepted technical or trade meanings are used herein in accordance with
such recognized meanings. In addition, the following rules of interpretation shall apply:

a. The masculine shall include the feminine and neuter.

b. References to “Articles,” “Sections,” or “Exhibits” shall be to articles, sections, or exhibits
of this Agreement.

c. The Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated in and are intended to be part of this
Agreement; provided that in the event of a conflict between the terms of any Exhibit and
the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall take precedence.

d. This Agreement was negotiated and prepared by both Parties with the advice and
participation of counsel. The Parties have agreed to the wording of this Agreement and
none of the provisions hereof shall be construed against one Party on the ground that such
Party is the author of this Agreement or any part hereof.

e. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, (i) where the Agreement requires
the consent, approval, or similar action by a Party, such consent or approval shall not be



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 8 21

unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, and (ii) wherever the Agreement gives a
Party a right to determine, require, specify or take similar action with respect to a matter,
such determination, requirement, specification or similar action shall be reasonable.

f. Use of the words “include” or “including” or similar words shall be interpreted as
“including but not limited to” or “including, without limitation.”

g. The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein.

Section 7.02.  Force Majeure.  Unless otherwise provided, all obligations of Developer and
City shall be subject to events of “force majeure”  which shall mean any contingency or cause beyond
the reasonable control of a party, as applicable, including, without limitations, acts of God or the public
enemy, war, riot, civil commotion, insurrection, adverse weather, government or de facto governmental
action or inaction (unless caused by negligence or omissions of such party), fires, explosions, floods,
strikes, slowdowns or work stoppages, shortage of materials and labor.  Notwithstanding any other
provision to the contrary, calculations for Performance Rebate Payments owed by the City, including any
tax valuations determined by DCAD, are not subject to, and expressly excluded from, events of “force
majeure.” Performance Rebate Payment amounts owed by the City shall be strictly calculated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of Article III, without regard to any event, contingency, or
cause beyond the reasonable control of either Party.”

Section 7.03.  Dispute Resolution and Step Negotiations.  (a)  The Parties shall attempt in
good faith to resolve all disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions
contemplated hereby promptly by negotiation, as follows. Either Party may give the other Party
written notice of any such dispute not resolved in the normal course of business. Executives of both
Parties at levels one level above the Project personnel who have previously been involved in the
dispute shall meet at a mutually acceptable time and place within ten days after delivery of such notice,
and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to exchange relevant information and to
attempt to resolve the dispute. If the matter has not been resolved within thirty days from the referral
of the dispute to such executives, or if no meeting of such executives has taken place within fifteen
days after such referral, either Party may initiate mediation as provided hereinafter. If a Party intends
to be accompanied at a meeting by an attorney, the other Party shall be given at least three business
days’ notice of such intention and may also be accompanied by an attorney. All negotiations pursuant
to this clause are confidential and shall be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for
purposes of the federal and state rules of evidence. Each Party will bear its own costs for this dispute
resolution phase.

(b)  In the event that any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the
transactions contemplated hereby is not resolved in accordance with the procedures set forth in this
Section 7.03, such dispute shall be submitted to non-binding mediation to a person mutually agreed
by the Parties. The mediation may take place at a mutually agreed upon location. If the mediation
process has not resolved the dispute within thirty days of the submission of the matter to mediation or
within such longer period as the Parties may agree to, either Party may exercise all remedies available
at law or in equity under this Agreement, including the initiation of court proceedings.  Each Party will



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 9 21

bear its own costs, and share equally in the costs of mediators, for this dispute resolution phase.  If the
mediation process has not resolved the dispute within thirty (30) days of the submission of the matter
to mediation or within such longer period as the Parties may agree to, either Party may exercise all
remedies available at law or in equity under this Agreement, including the initiation of court
proceedings, subject to the limitations of this Agreement.

(c)  Nothing in this Section shall preclude, or be construed to preclude, the resort by either
Party to a court of competent jurisdiction solely for the purposes of securing a temporary or
preliminary injunction or other relief to preserve the status quo or avoid irreparable harm.  The Parties
shall continue to perform each of their respective obligations under this Agreement during the
pendency of any dispute; provided that this obligation shall not apply after the termination of this
Agreement (except with respect to payments of amounts due and owing under this Agreement).

Section 7.04.  Jurisdiction and Venue.  City and Developer, to the fullest extent permitted by
applicable law, irrevocably (i) submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the district courts located in
Dallas County, Texas and any appellate court thereof; (ii) waive any objection which either may have
to the laying of venue of any proceedings brought in any such court and (iii) waive any claim that such
proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum. Nothing in this provision shall prohibit a
party from bringing an action to enforce a money judgment in any other jurisdiction where the courts
of such jurisdiction have jurisdiction over the other party.

Section 7.05.  Accommodation of Financing Parties.  To facilitate Developer’s obtaining of
financing to construct and operate the Project, City shall make reasonable efforts to provide such
consents to assignments, certifications, representations, information or other documents as may be
reasonably requested by Developer or the Developer’s financing parties in connection with the
financing of the Project; provided that in responding to any such request, the City shall have no
obligation to provide any consent, certification, representation, information or other document, or
enter into any agreement, that materially adversely affects or unduly burdens the City.  Developer shall
reimburse, or shall cause the financing parties to reimburse, the City for the incremental, direct, and
documented third party expenses (including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and expenses of
outside counsel) incurred by the City in the preparation, negotiation, execution or delivery of any
documents requested by Developer or the financing parties, and provided by the City.

Section 7.06.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and
agreement of the parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement.  No alteration of or amendment
to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed by the party or parties sought
to be charged or bound by the alteration or amendment.

Section 7.07.  Binding Effect; Successors and Assigns.  The terms and conditions of this
Agreement are binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  This Agreement, or the
right to receive grant payments, pursuant to this Agreement, may not be assigned, in whole or in part,
without the express written consent of the City; not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed; provided that Developer may, without the City’s consent but with _7_ days’ prior written
notice provided by Developer to City, assign this Agreement to a wholly-owned subsidiary or affiliate
of Developer, or to any subsequent owner of the Property.  Further, without the City’s consent,
Developer may enter into a collateral assignment of this Agreement in connection with any financing



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 10 21

of the Project.  For purposes of this Agreement, performance by a successor or an affiliate of
Developer, or performance by a party with whom Developer or its affiliates contract shall be deemed
to be performance by Developer.  As used in this Agreement, an “affiliate” shall be understood to
mean any other entity directly or indirectly controlled by or under direct or indirect common
control as the Developer. As used in this definition, the term "control", "controlling" or
"controlled by" shall mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power either to (a) vote
fifty percent (50%) or more of the securities or interests having ordinary voting power for the
election of directors (or other comparable controlling body) of such entity or (b) direct or cause
the direction of management or policies of such entity, whether through the ownership of voting
securities or interests, by contract or otherwise.

Section 7.08.  Amendments.  No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be
valid unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized signatory.

Section 7.09.  Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined
by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall, to the
extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its provisions as if such invalid
provision were not a part hereof.

Section 7.10.  Notices.  All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be given by either party or its counsel in person, via an express mail service or via
courier or via receipted email transmission (but only if duplicate notice is also given via express mail
service or via courier or via certified mail) or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the respective
parties at the below addresses (or at such other address as a party may hereafter designate for itself by
notice to the other party as required hereby).  All notices given pursuant to this paragraph shall be
deemed effective, as applicable, on the date such notice may be given in person, next business day
following the date on which such communication is transferred via email transmission, or as
applicable, deposited with the express mail service or courier for delivery the next business day.  Any
party may change its address for notices under this Agreement by giving formal written notice to the
other parties, specifying that the purpose of the notice is to change the party’s address.

If to City: City of Garland



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 11 21

Mr. Judson Rex
City Manager
Post Office Box 469002
Garland, Texas  75046
Phone: (972) 205-3800
Fax: (972) 205-2474
jrex@garlandtx.gov

With a required copy to:
Mr. Brian England
City Attorney
200 North Fifth Street
Fourth Floor
Garland, Texas  75046
Phone: (972) 205-2380
Fax: (972) 205-2389
bengland@garlandtx.gov

If to Developer: Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP
2655 LeJeune Road, P2E
Coral Gables, FL  33134
Attention:  Dan Marcus and M. Bruce
Snyder
Email:  dan.marcus@scoutcold.com;
bruce.snyder@scoutcold.com

With a required copy to:
Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP
2655 LeJeune Road, P2E
Coral Gables, FL  33134
Attention: Legal Department
Email:
margie.miguez@scoutcold.com

Section 7.11.  Employment of Undocumented Workers.  During the Term of this Agreement
the Developer agrees not to knowingly employ any undocumented workers and if convicted of a
violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a (f), the Developer shall repay the amount of the Performance
Rebate Payments and any other funds received by the Developer from the City as of the date of such
violation within 120 business days after the date the Developer is notified by the City of such violation,
plus interest at the rate of six percent compounded annually from the date of violation until paid.

Section 7.12.  Non-Collusion.  Developer represents and warrants that neither Developer nor
anyone on Developer’s behalf has given, made, promised or paid, nor offered to give, make, promise
or pay any gift, bonus, commission, money or other consideration to any employee, agent,

mailto:dan.marcus@scoutcold.com
mailto:bruce.snyder@scout
mailto:margie.miguez@scoutcold.com


Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 12 21

representative or official of the City as an inducement to or in order to obtain the benefits to be
provided by the City under this Agreement.

Section 7.13.  Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this
Agreement. If any deadline contained herein ends on a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday recognized
by the Texas Supreme Court, such deadline shall automatically be extended to the next day that is not
a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

Section 7.14.  Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts, each of which shall have the force and effect of any original, as of the Effective Date.

Section 7.15.  Default and Claw-Back.  (a)  The City shall notify the Developer, in writing,
of a default by the Developer in complying with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  In the
event that the Developer has failed to cure the default(s) within thirty (30) days of receipt of the notice
of default (or has failed to commence and diligently pursue such cure within such thirty (30) day period
if cure cannot be completed within such thirty (30) day period), the Developer shall promptly
reimburse the City for the property tax revenue lost for the subject phase according to the formula in
below subsection (b).  Failure on the part of the City to exercise any right contained in this Agreement
shall not constitute waiver of any right in the event of any subsequent default, and no waiver shall be
effective unless in writing, executed by both the City and the Developer.

(b)  In the event the Project does not remain Operational through December 31, 2026,
Developer shall owe the City any amounts rebated during the Performance Period

Section 7.16.  Term.  The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and
continues until December 31, 2026 (the “Term”), unless sooner terminated by either Party in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, provided that Developer’s obligation to reimburse or
repay the City for any obligation to the City otherwise arising under this Agreement and City’s
obligation to make any Performance Rebate Payments to Developer which were earned during the
Term of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK;

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE(S)]



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 13 21

Executed and effective as of the  day of ______________, 2024.

DEVELOPER
Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP,
a Delaware limited partnership

By: ___________________________________
        Vincent Signorello, Authorized Signatory

CITY
City of Garland, Texas
a home-rule municipality

By:____________________________________
Judson Rex, City Manager



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree) Page  of 14 21

Exhibit A
Property Legal Description

Lot 2R, Block 1, of the McCree Industrial District Addition Second Replat, recorded on November
28, 2022, in the Plat Records, Document Number 2022-202200301759, being a Replat of all of Tract
1 McCree Industrial District Addition (Volume 72136, Page 474, D.R.D.C.T) and all of Lot 2, Block
1 McCree Industrial District Addition Replat of Tract II (Instrument No. 201400250227, P.R.D.C.T).



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree)
Page 15 of 21

Exhibit B
Compliance Certificate



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree)
Page 16 of 21



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree)
Page 17 of 21



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree)
Page 18 of 21



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree)
Page 19 of 21



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree)
Page 20 of 21



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2610 McCree)
Page 21 of 21



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 8. 8.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building C)
Submitted By:Submitted By: Ayako Schuster, Economic Development Director
Strategic Focus AreaStrategic Focus Area:: Growing Economic Base
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Council is requested to consider a development incentive request from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP. in regards to
a proposed cold storage redevelopment project. 
 

BackgroundBackground
Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP plans to demolish an existing 40,000 square foot dry storage facility and build a new
132,600 square foot cold storage facility (‘Building C'). This new facility will become part of the larger 52.295 acre
site at 2600 McCree Rd, adding to the approximate 922,851 SF of industrial space on the site. The development will
involve approximately $22.8 Million in capital investment. This is in addition to the conversion of Building B, also
being considered for incentives separately. 
 

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation
Approval of the incentive agreement with Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP. Agreement includes a rebate of roadway
impact fees up to $40,000 for Building C.

AttachmentsAttachments
Proposed Economic Development Incentive Agreement



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 1 10

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

This Economic Development Incentive Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the
City of Garland, a Texas home-rule municipality (“City”), and Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP, a
Delaware limited partnership (“Developer”) (collectively, “Parties”), acting by and through their
respective authorized officers.

RECITALS:

Developer and the City each acknowledge and agree that the following recitals are true and correct
and that the same are a material part of this Agreement:

WHEREAS, City desires to further the public interest and welfare and to induce the
investment of private resources in productive business enterprises located in certain areas of the City
that will increase tax revenue and promote or develop new business enterprises; and

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of that certain tract of real property consisting of
approximately 52.295 acres and commonly known as 2550 McCree, City of Garland, Dallas County,
Texas (“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Developer proposes to demolish an existing 40,000 +/- square foot dry storage
facility and subsequently make a capital investment of $22.8 million or more with the construction of
a new 132,600 +/-  square foot cold storage facility on Lot 1R, Block 1 of the Property (the “Site,” as
defined below) on the Property (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, Developer (and/or an Affiliate or permitted assignee of Developer) intends to
maintain and lease the Property to future tenant(s) to operate at the cold storage facility on the
Property; and

WHEREAS, the Project will have a direct and positive economic benefit to the City; and

WHEREAS, the Developer has advised the City that a contributing factor of inducing the
Developer to improve the Site and expand business operations within the City, is this Agreement to
provide an economic development grant to the Developer as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Article 52-a of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 380
of the Texas Local Government Code to provide an economic development program, which may
include certain grants of public funds, to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City; and

WHEREAS, City hereby finds that this Agreement promotes economic development in the
City and, as such, meets the requisites under Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code, and
is in the best interests of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City has determined, based on information presented to it by the Developer,
that making an economic development grant to the Developer in accordance with this Agreement is in
accordance with the City’s economic development goals and will: (i) further the objectives of the City;



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 2 10

(ii) benefit the City and the City’s inhabitants; and (iii) promote local economic development and
stimulate business and commercial activity in the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Developer and the City make and enter into this Agreement in
consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by both the
Developer and the City, and agree as follows:

Section 1.  Term.  This Agreement shall, unless extended or terminated by mutual agreement or as
otherwise provided in this Agreement of the Parties, terminate upon the full and complete performance
of all obligations and conditions precedent by the Parties.

Section 2.  Definitions.   For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms will have the
meaning set forth herein unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

“Affiliates” means any other entity directly or indirectly controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control as the Developer. As used in this definition, the term
"control", "controlling" or "controlled by" shall mean the possession, directly or
indirectly, of the power either to (a) vote fifty percent (50%) or more of the securities
or interests having ordinary voting power for the election of directors (or other
comparable controlling body) of such entity or (b) direct or cause the direction of
management or policies of such entity, whether through the ownership of voting
securities or interests, by contract or otherwise, excluding in each case, any lender of
such entity or any affiliate of such lender.

“DCAD” means the Dallas Central Appraisal District.

“Incentive” means the rebate of up to forty thousand dollars and no cents ($40,000.00)
of roadway impact fees actually paid by Developer and/or Affiliates to the City related
to new real property improvements constructed on the Site.

“Program” means the economic development program for the Project established by the
City pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 380 and this Agreement to
promote local economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity
within the City.

“Project” has the meaning described in the recitals to this Agreement.

“Property” has the meaning described in the recitals to this Agreement, as more
particularly described in attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

“Site” means the portion of the Property identified as Lot 1R, Block 1, of the Replat of
All of Tract 1, McCree Industrial District Addition, and will be the site on which the
Project will be constructed. The Site is more specifically described on Exhibit A, which
is incorporated herein by reference.



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 3 10

Section 3.  Developer’s Obligations.  In consideration of the City’s participation in the Program, the
following are conditions precedent to the City’s payment of the Incentive under this Agreement:

(A)   Performance Obligations.  Developer shall construct, or caused to be constructed,
the Project on the Site.  The City and Developer acknowledge and agree that, for
purposes of this Agreement, in addition to the conditions precedent enumerated below,
Developer shall not be eligible for any Incentive, unless and until Developer obtains a
Certificate of Occupancy for the Project on the Site.

(B) Property Occupation and Operation.   Developer (and/or an Affiliate or permitted
assignee of Developer) agrees to maintain and operate, or to lease the Site to tenant(s)
for the occupation and operation of, a cold storage facility on the Site for the six-year
period beginning in tax year 2024 and continuing through tax year 2029.

(C) Following Developer (and/or an Affiliate) obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy for
the Project, Developer may request the payment of the Incentive from the City.

(D) Tax Protests.  Developer agrees that by submitting to the City a request for the
payment of an Incentive rebate payment, the Developer has agreed that for the tax year
2024: (i) Developer and Affiliates have or will agree to the DCAD assessed tax values
and the City’s tax rate and procedures without further protest or challenge; and (ii)
neither Developer nor Affiliates will make any claim for a refund, repayment, or
reduction of those taxes after settling on any appealed tax assessments or bills from any
source, including the City.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to
the contrary, no Incentive rebate payment shall be due if Developer or Affiliate protest
the assessed value or contests the ad valorem real property tax (including
improvements) for tax year 2024.

(E) “Furthering Garland Recognition and Pride”.  Developer acknowledges that the
City is engaging in and administering the Program to further the economic interests of
the people of Garland and that it is important to the City in that regard that Garland
receive recognition for its efforts. In its communications, branding, marketing, and
promotions throughout the term of this Agreement, the Developer shall recognize that
its Project is located in Garland, Texas rather than “in the Dallas area” or similar non-
Garland specific descriptors.

Section 4.  City’s Obligations.

(A)  Subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the City agrees to reimburse Developer
a portion of Developer and Affiliates roadway impact fees actually paid to the City for the Project,
in the form of the Incentive payment, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.  Specifically, the City agrees to rebate the roadway impact fees actually paid by
Developer for the Project once a final certificate of occupancy has been issued for the new building
on the Site. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein to the contrary, the City is not
obligated to reimburse Developer or Affiliates for an amount greater than Forty-Five Thousand
Dollars and No Cents ($45,000.00) of the roadway impact fees actually paid by the Developer and
Affiliates and received by the City for the Project.



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 4 10

Section 5.  Force Majeure.  All obligations of Developer and City shall be subject to events of “force
majeure”  which shall mean any contingency or cause beyond the reasonable control of a party, as
applicable, including, without limitations, acts of God or the public enemy, war, riot, civil commotion,
insurrection, adverse weather, government or de facto governmental action or inaction (unless caused
by negligence or omissions of such party), fires, explosions, floods, strikes, slowdowns or work
stoppages, shortage of materials and labor. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary,
tax valuations, as determined by DCAD, are not subject to, and expressly excluded from, events
of “force majeure.” DCAD tax valuations are strictly subject to the sole determination of DCAD,
without regard to any event, contingency, or cause beyond the control of either Party.

Section 6.  Rules of Construction.  The capitalized terms listed in this Agreement shall have the
meanings set forth herein whenever the terms appear in this Agreement, whether in the singular or the
plural or in the present or past tense. Other terms used in this Agreement shall have meanings as
commonly used in the English language. Words not otherwise defined herein that have well known
and generally accepted technical or trade meanings are used herein in accordance with such recognized
meanings. In addition, the following rules of interpretation shall apply:

(A) The masculine shall include the feminine and neuter.

(B) References to “Articles,” “Sections,” or “Exhibits” shall be to articles, sections,
or exhibits of this Agreement.

(C) The Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated in and are intended to be part of
this Agreement; provided that in the event of a conflict between the terms of any
Exhibit and the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall take
precedence.

(D) This Agreement was negotiated and prepared by both Parties with the advice
and participation of counsel. The Parties have agreed to the wording of this Agreement
and none of the provisions hereof shall be construed against one Party on the ground
that such Party is the author of this Agreement or any part hereof.

(E) Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, (a) where the
Agreement requires the consent, approval, or similar action by a Party, such consent or
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, and (b) wherever
the Agreement gives a Party a right to determine, require, specify or take similar action
with respect to a matter, such determination, requirement, specification or similar
action shall be reasonable.

(F) Use of the words “include” or “including” or similar words shall be interpreted
as “including but not limited to” or “including, without limitation.”

(G) The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein.



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 5 10

Section 7.  Remedies.  Unless a specific remedy and associated cure period (such as recapture of an
amount paid as the Incentive) is set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, in the event of event of default
hereunder by Developer or its Affiliates, the City, as its sole remedy, may terminate all commitments
of City under this Agreement after providing the Developer written notice of such default and 90 days
to cure such default.  If any event of default by the City exists, Developer shall provide written notice
of such default to the City; then, the City shall have 90 days to cure such default.  In the event the City
is not able to cure such default, Developer and Affiliates may pursue such remedies available to it by
law or equity, including, specific performance.  The City and Developer hereby agree that Section
271.152 of the Texas Local Government Code (relating to a limited waiver of immunity to suit for
certain claims) applies to this Agreement regardless whether this Agreement is construed as a
governmental or proprietary act of the City.

Section 8.  Dispute Resolution and Step Negotiations.   The Parties shall attempt in good faith to
resolve all disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated
hereby promptly by negotiation, as follows:

(A)  Either Party may give the other Party written notice of any such dispute not
resolved in the normal course of business. Executives of both Parties at levels one level
above the Project personnel who have previously been involved in the dispute shall
meet at a mutually acceptable time and place within ten days after delivery of such
notice, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary, to exchange relevant
information and to attempt to resolve the dispute. If the matter has not been resolved
within thirty days from the referral of the dispute to such executives, or if no meeting
of such executives has taken place within fifteen days after such referral, either Party
may initiate mediation as provided hereinafter. If a Party intends to be accompanied at
a meeting by an attorney, the other Party shall be given at least three business days’
notice of such intention and may also be accompanied by an attorney. All negotiations
pursuant to this clause are confidential and shall be treated as compromise and
settlement negotiations for purposes of the Federal Rules of Evidence and state rules of
evidence.  Each Party will bear its own costs for this dispute resolution phase.

(B)  In the event that any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of
the transactions contemplated hereby is not resolved in accordance with the procedures
set forth in this Section, such dispute shall be submitted to non-binding mediation to a
person mutually agreed by the Parties. The mediation may take place at a mutually
agreed upon location. If the mediation process has not resolved the dispute within thirty
days of the submission of the matter to mediation or within such longer period as the
Parties may agree to, either Party may exercise all remedies available at law or in equity
under this Agreement, including the initiation of court proceedings.  Each Party will
bear its own costs, and share equally in the costs of mediators, for this dispute
resolution phase.

(C)  Nothing in this Section shall preclude, or be construed to preclude, the resort by
either Party to a court of competent jurisdiction solely for the purposes of securing a
temporary or preliminary injunction or other relief to preserve the status quo or avoid
irreparable harm.  The Parties shall continue to perform each of their respective



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 6 10

obligations under this Agreement during the pendency of any dispute; provided that
this obligation shall not apply after the termination of this Agreement (except with
respect to payments of amounts due and owing under this Agreement).

Section 9.  Jurisdiction and Venue.  City and Developer (and any Affiliate of Developer to which
this Agreement is assigned pursuant to Section 13 hereof), to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law, irrevocably (i) submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the district courts located in Dallas County,
Texas and any appellate court thereof; (ii) waive any objection which either may have to the laying of
venue of any proceedings brought in any such court and (iii) waive any claim that such proceedings
have been brought in an inconvenient forum.  Nothing in this provision shall prohibit a Party from
bringing an action to enforce a money judgment in any other jurisdiction where the courts of such
jurisdiction have jurisdiction over the other Party.

Section 10.  Audits.  The City has the right, at its sole expense, during normal working hours and upon
thirty days’ written notice, to examine copies of the relevant portions of the records of the Developer
(and any Affiliate of Developer to which this Agreement is assigned pursuant to Section 13 hereof) to
the extent reasonably necessary to verify the accuracy of any invoice, charge or calculation made
pursuant to this Agreement within the twelve-month period immediately preceding such notice.  The
City shall not have the right to conduct such an audit more than once during any given twelve-month
period.

Section 11.  Accommodation of Financing Parties. To facilitate Developer obtaining of financing
to construct and operate the Project, City shall make governmentally reasonable efforts to provide such
consents to assignments, certifications, representations, information or other documents as may be
reasonably requested by Developer or the Developer’s financing parties in connection with the
financing of the Project; provided that in responding to any such request, the City shall have no
obligation to provide any consent, certification, representation, information or other document, or
enter into any agreement, that materially adversely affects, or could reasonably be expected to have or
result in a material adverse effect on, any of City’s rights, benefits, risks or obligations under this
Agreement.  Developer shall reimburse, or shall cause the financing parties to reimburse, the City for
the incremental, direct, and documented third-party expenses (including, without limitation, the
reasonable fees and expenses of outside counsel) incurred by the City in the preparation, negotiation,
execution or delivery of any documents requested by Developer or the financing parties.

Section 12.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement
of the parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement.  No alteration of or amendment to this
Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed by the party or parties sought to be
charged or bound by the alteration or amendment.

Section 13.  Binding Effect; Successors and Assigns.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement
are binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  This Agreement, or the right to
receive grant payments, pursuant to this Agreement, may not be assigned, in whole or in part, without
the express written consent of the City; not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed;
provided that Developer may, without the City’s consent, assign this Agreement to a wholly-owned
subsidiary or Affiliate of Developer.  Further, without the City’s consent, Developer may enter into a
collateral assignment of this Agreement in connection with any financing of the Project.  For purposes



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 7 10

of this Agreement, performance by a successor or an Affiliate of Developer, or performance by a party
with whom Developer or its Affiliates contract shall be deemed to be performance by Developer.

Section 14.  Amendments. No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid unless
in writing and signed by a duly authorized signatory.

Section 15.  Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall, to the extent
reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its provisions as if such invalid provision were
not a part hereof.

Section 16.  Notices. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be given by either party or its counsel in person, via an express mail service or via courier or via
receipted email transmission (but only if duplicate notice is also given via express mail service or via
courier or via certified mail) or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the respective parties at the
below addresses (or at such other address as a party may hereafter designate for itself by notice to the
other party as required hereby).  All notices given pursuant to this paragraph shall be deemed effective,
as applicable, on the date such notice may be given in person, next business day following the date on
which such communication is transferred via email transmission, or as applicable, deposited with the
express mail service, or courier, for delivery the next business day or when delivered by United States
Postal Service.  Any party may change its address for notices under this Agreement by giving formal
written notice to the other parties, specifying that the purpose of the notice is to change the party’s
address.

If to City: If to Developer:
City of Garland Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP
200 N. Fifth Street 2655 LeJeune Road, P2E
P.O. Box 469002 Coral Gables, FL  33134
Garland Texas 75046-9002 Attn:  Dan Marcus
Attn: City Manager Phone: 305-903-8405
Phone:  (972) 205-2000 Email:dan.marcus@scoutcold.com
Fax:  (972) 205-2504

With a required copy to:

City Attorney Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP
200 N. Fifth Street 2655 LeJeune Road, P2E
P.O. Box 469002 Coral Gables, FL  33134
Garland, Texas 75046-9002 Attn:  Margarita Martinez Miguez
Phone: (972) 205-2380 Email: Margie.Miguez@scoutcold.com
Fax: (972) 205-2389

Economic Development Director
P.O. Box 469002
Garland, Texas 75046-9002
Phone: (972) 205-3800



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 8 10

Fax: (972) 205-3801

Section 17.  Employment of Undocumented Workers.  During the term of this Agreement the
Developer agrees not to knowingly employ any undocumented workers and if convicted of a violation
under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a (f), and the Developer shall repay the amount of the Annual Grants and
any other funds received by the Developer from the City as of the date of such violation within 120
business days after the date the Developer is notified by the City of such violation, plus interest at the
rate of 6% compounded annually from the date of violation until paid.  The Developer is not liable for
a violation of this Section in relation to any workers employed by a subsidiary, affiliate, or franchisee
of the Developer or by a person or entity with whom the Developer contracts.

Section 18.  Non-Collusion.  Developer represents and warrants that neither Developer nor anyone
on Developer’s behalf has given, made, promised or paid, nor offered to give, make, promise or pay
any gift, bonus, commission, money or other consideration to any employee, agent, representative or
official of the City as an inducement to or in order to obtain the benefits to be provided by the City
under this Agreement.

Section 19.  Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. If any
deadline contained herein ends on a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday recognized by the Texas
Supreme Court, such deadline shall automatically be extended to the next day that is not a Saturday,
Sunday or legal holiday.

Section 20.  Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall have the force and effect of any original, as of the Effective Date.  Delivery of an
executed counterpart of this Agreement by electronic transmission (including via DocuSign) in
Portable Document Format (“PDF”) shall be equally effective as delivery of a manually executed
counterpart hereof.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK;
SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE(S)]

  
 



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 9 10

EXECUTED and effective as of the  day of ______________, 2024.

DEVELOPER
Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP, a Delaware limited
partnership

By:
             Vincent Signorello, Authorized Signatory

CITY
City of Garland, a Texas home-rule municipality

By: __________________________________
Judson Rex
City Manager

Date Executed: __________________________



Economic Development Incentive Agreement – Scout Cold Storage (2550 McCree) Page  of 10 10

Exhibit A – Site Property Description

Lot 1R, Block 1, of the McCree Industrial District Addition Second Replat, recorded on November
28, 2022, in the Plat Records, Document Number 2022-202200301759, being a Replat of all of Tract
1 McCree Industrial District Addition (Volume 72136, Page 474, D.R.D.C.T) and all of Lot 2, Block
1 McCree Industrial District Addition Replat of Tract II (Instrument No. 201400250227, P.R.D.C.T).



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 9. 9.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Request for Development Assistance from Wells Fargo Bank, NA
Submitted By:Submitted By: Ayako Schuster, Economic Development Director
Strategic Focus AreaStrategic Focus Area:: Growing Economic Base
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Council is requested to consider approving the Incentive Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, NA to invest and lease in
a data center being developed by Digital Realty.
 

BackgroundBackground
Wells Fargo Bank, NA plans to acquire a leasehold and to invest a significant amount of equipment into the facility
being developed by Digital Realty near the intersection of Holford and TX190. They will be the sole tenant of a new
178,762 square food data center at 805 Holford Rd. They plan to make a minimum capital investment of
approximately $150 Million in new equipment. There are three phases planned, with two additional building
expansions past the initial construction within a 10 year period, each with additional equipment anticipated.
 

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation
Approval of the incentive agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, NA. Agreement includes a rebate of taxes associated
with new business personal property "BPP" of 40% for 4 years per phase with up to 3 phases of rebates for new
equipment installed at the site between 2025-2035 tax years. Additionally, it includes a sales tax rebate of 40% for
the years 2025-2028 in any year that the developer exceeds $20 million in purchases made at the site.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Proposed Economic Development Incentive Agreement



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 1 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GARLAND AND WELLS FARGO BANK, NA 

 
This ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 

made by and between the City of Garland, a Texas home-rule municipality (“City”), and Wells 

Fargo Bank, NA, a South Dakota corporate fiduciary (“Developer”), acting by and through their 

respective authorized officers. 

 

RECITALS: 

 

Developer and the City each acknowledge and agree that the following recitals are true and correct 

and that the same is a material part of this Agreement: 

WHEREAS, the City desires to further the public interest and welfare and to induce the 

investment of private resources in productive business enterprises located within the City that will 

increase tax revenue and promote or develop new business enterprises through Economic 

Development Agreements as authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code;  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer and City agree that the Developer shall acquire a leasehold 

interest in and develop 178,762 square feet as a qualified occupant of a facility at 805 Holford 

Road to be called the Digital Realty Garland Data Center (the “Development”); that shall include 

significant amounts of new business personal property (“BPP”) installed;  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer agrees to make an initial Capital investment of approximately 

$150 million into the Development; 

 

WHEREAS, the Development will have a direct and positive economic benefit to the City;  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer has advised the City that a contributing factor of inducing the 

Developer to further improve the land is an agreement by the City to provide an Economic 

Development grant to the Developer as set forth herein;  

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Article III, Section 52-a of the Texas Constitution 

and Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to provide an economic development 

program, which may include certain grants of public funds, to stimulate business and commercial 

activity within the City;  

 

WHEREAS, City hereby finds that this Agreement promotes economic development in 

the City and, as such, meets the requisites under Article III, Section 52-a of the Texas Constitution  

and Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code and qualifies for an Economic 

Development Program, and further, is in the best interests of the City;  

 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to provide an Economic Development grant to the Developer 

to assist in the economic development of the City by reimbursing the Developer up to forty percent 

(40%) of BPP taxes and forty percent (40%) of Sales tax paid by the Developer within the City of 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 2 

 

Garland, exclusive of sales tax for electrical utility service, for the Development as set out by 

phases of development below; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined, based on information presented to it by the 

Developer, that making an Economic Development grant to the Developer as set forth in this 

Agreement is matching the City’s Economic Development goals and will: (i) help accomplish the 

objectives of the City; (ii) benefit the City and the City’s inhabitants; and (iii) promote local 

economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Developer and the City make and enter into this Agreement in 

consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, and other good 

and valuable considerations, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by both 

the Developer and the City, and agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions:   

 

“Letter of Completion” means a letter issued by the City to the Developer upon the determination 

made by the City Building Official that the core and shell of real property improvements on the 

Property have been completed in compliance with applicable local, state, and federal law and 

regulations, including, but not limited to plumbing, electrical, mechanical, energy-related 

components, sidewalks, landscaping, parking lots, drainage, water, sewer, screening walls, fire 

hydrants, and lanes, and approved by applicable City officials.   

 

“DCAD” means the Dallas Central Appraisal District or its successor. 

 

“Development” has meaning described within the Recitals of this Agreement.  

 

“Incentive” means the City’s reimbursement, upon certain conditions, of up to forty percent (40%) 

of the BPP taxes and forty percent (40%) of the Sales taxes paid by the Developer for this 

Development to the City.  

 

“Party” means either the City or the Developer, and “Parties” means, collectively, the City and the 

Developer. 

 

“Program” means the Economic Development Program for this Development as established by the 

City according to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 380 and this Agreement to promote local 

economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity within the City. 

 

“Property” means the 178,762 square foot leasehold location at 805 Holford Road in the City of 

Garland, Dallas County, Texas, and more particularly described and referenced in this Agreement 

as “Exhibit A,” and attached to this Agreement.  

 

“Target Assessed Value” is the minimum tax valuation, as established by the Dallas Central 

Appraisal District, to receive full Incentives under this Agreement as follows: 

• For each phase, I through III, respectively: not less than Seventy-Five Million 

Dollars and Zero Cents ($75,000,000.00) new and separate total market value in 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 3 

 

aggregate for BPP as the initial investment for the respective phase and year one 

value, as determined by the Dallas Central Appraisal District through a separate 

and distinct DCAD account number for each respective phase.  Developer and City 

recognize that the assessed BPP value will depreciate following year one of its 

installation.  To remain the Target Assessed Value to receive full Incentives 

hereunder, during any subsequent year to year one of any phase, the value shall not 

fall below the standard depreciation value.    

 “Term” has the meaning given such term in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

 

Section 2. Term.  This Agreement shall, unless extended or terminated in writing by a mutual 

agreement executed by both parties, or as otherwise provided in this Agreement of the Parties, 

terminate either upon the complete performance by the Parties of all obligations and conditions 

within this Agreement or on December 31, 2036 subject to Section 3(A)(the “Termination Date”).  

 

This Agreement shall be effective (“Effective Date”) as of the date of the last Party to execute this 

Agreement.   

 

Section 3. Developer’s Obligations.  

 

(A) Developer shall construct the Development on the Property, which is anticipated to be 

completed in three phases; and upon completion of each phase of the Development, the 

Developer must achieve the Target Assessed Value for the Development, as defined in Section 

1 of this Agreement. 

 

(B) Developer shall construct its leased space for the Development and have received a 

Certificate of Occupancy for Phase I on or before December 31, 2025, or else this Agreement 

automatically terminates. 

 

(C)  It is expected that Developer shall have completed the permitting process on the 

Development for Phase I by December 31, 2024. 

 

(D) Developer shall submit to the Economic Development Director of the City the following 

documentation, as a condition precedent to qualify for the reimbursement portions of the 

Incentive related to the completed phase: 

 

(1) a copy of Certificate of Occupancy issued by the City having a date issued for space leased 

by Developer that is on or before December 31, 2025, which is the date the Developer is 

required to obtain the Certificate of Occupancy; 

 

(2) a copy of the receipt for payment, a unique sales tax permit number with report of quarterly 

payments, or other evidence suitable to the City establishing that the Developer paid at least 

One Million Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($1,650,000.00) in total sales 

tax in the City of Garland during each respective calendar year of 2025 through 2028, 

excluding any sales tax paid on electrical charges to the City of Garland, of the Development 

and related thereof; and 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 4 

 

 

(3) a certified valuation from DCAD establishing that the taxable non-exempt assessed value 

for the BPP meets or exceeds the Target Assessed Value.  

 

If Developer meets or exceeds the Target Assessed Value for BPP in each four-year phase, 

it shall be entitled to a rebate of forty percent (40%) of the BPP tax paid for up to the 

subsequent four years, up to the Termination Date of this Agreement.  The following chart is 

provided by way of example only; the starting tax year of any respective phase shall be upon 

the provision by Developer to City of the DCAD valuation under a new and unique account 

number of at least Seventy-Five Million Dollars ($75,000,000.00) of BPP valuation: 

 

 

Sample BPP Tax Rebate Schedule and Valuation 

Tax Year BPP #1 BPP #2 BPP #3 Percent Rebate 

2025 $  75,000,000.00 
  

40% BPP#1 

2026 $  67,500,000.00 
  

40% BPP#1 

2027 $  65,250,000.00 
  

40% BPP#1 

2028 $  64,500,000.00 $        75,000,000.00 
 

40% BPP#1 
40% BPP#2 

2029 $  58,500,000.00 $        67,500,000.00 
 

40% BPP#2 

2030 $  54,000,000.00 $        65,250,000.00 $               75,000,000.00 40% BPP#2 
40% BPP#3 

2031 $  50,250,000.00 $        64,500,000.00 $               67,500,000.00 40% BPP#2 
40% BPP#3 

2032 $  46,500,000.00 $        58,500,000.00 $               65,250,000.00 40% BPP#3 

2033 $  41,250,000.00 $        54,000,000.00 $               64,500,000.00 40% BPP#3 

2034 $  37,500,000.00 $        50,250,000.00 $               58,500,000.00 
 

2035 $  34,500,000.00 $        46,500,000.00 $               54,000,000.00 
 

 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, if Developer begins Phase II or III within four (4) 

years of the Termination Date of this Agreement, this Agreement shall not be automatically 

extended, and City is only obligated to provide any incentive through the Termination Date.  

Nothing herein shall automatically extend the Termination Date of this Agreement.   

 

Section 4. City’s Obligations.   

 

(A) As specified in Section 3 above, Developer shall construct the Development on the 

Property, and must achieve the Target Assessed Value for the BPP, as defined in Section 1 of 

this Agreement. 

 

 

(i) Contingent upon the completion of the Developer’s obligations set forth in Section 

3 of this Agreement, by the deadlines listed for therein, and the payment by 

Developer of at least One Million Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 5 

 

Cents ($1,650,000.00) in total sales tax in the City of Garland during each calendar 

year 2025 through 2028, excluding any sales tax paid on electrical charges to the 

City of Garland, the City shall pay as a rebate to Developer the amount of forty 

percent (40%) of the actual amount of sales tax paid within each respective calendar 

year in the City of Garland, excluding any sales tax paid on electrical charges to the 

City of Garland, ninety (90) days after receipt of the aforementioned 

documentation. 

 

(ii) Further, upon completion of the Developer’s obligations set forth in Section 3 of 

this Agreement, by the deadlines listed for therein, and receipt of the DCAD 

valuation showing a starting BPP value of at least Seventy-Five Million Dollars 

and Zero Cents ($75,000,000.00) new and separate total market value in aggregate 

for BPP, the City shall pay as a rebate to Developer the amount of forty percent 

(40%) of the BPP tax paid within a given year within ninety (90) days after receipt 

of aforementioned documentation for up to four (4) years from the initial tax year 

of the respective phase.  Nothing in this Agreement shall extend any City obligation 

to Developer beyond the Termination Date of this Agreement.    

 

Section 5. Source of Funds. The monetary portion of the Incentive shall be paid only from the 

Sales tax revenue and BPP tax revenue, respectively, actually received in hand by the City from 

the Developer. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein to the contrary, the City shall 

not owe Developer any amount or other thing of value in excess of forty percent (40%) of either 

the Sales tax revenue or of the BPP tax revenue received in hand by the City and paid by the 

Developer for this Development. No other source of funds shall be provided for the payment of 

the Incentive. 

 

Section 6. Valuation Assessment. Developer agrees that by submitting to the City a request for 

the payment of any of the Incentive under this Agreement, the Developer has (i) fully and finally 

agreed to the final DCAD assessed tax values and the City’s tax rate and procedures on which the 

assessed value of the Development is or will be based without protest or challenge from Developer; 

(ii) will not make any claim for a refund, repayment, or reduction of those taxes from any source, 

including the City; and (iii) will not claim or accept any exemption from ad valorem taxes, prior 

to the date of termination of this Agreement.   

 

Section 7. Rules of Construction.  The capitalized terms listed in this Agreement shall have the 

meanings set forth herein whenever the terms appear in this Agreement, whether in the singular or 

the plural or in the present or past tense. Other terms used in this Agreement shall have meanings 

as commonly used in the English language. Words not otherwise defined herein that have well-

known and generally accepted technical or trade meanings are used herein per such recognized 

meanings. In addition, the following rules of interpretation shall apply: 

 

(A) References to “Articles,” “Sections,” or “Exhibits” shall be to articles, sections, or exhibits 

of this Agreement. 

 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 6 

 

(B) The Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated in and are intended to be part of this 

Agreement; provided that in the event of a conflict between the terms of any Exhibit and the 

terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall take precedence. 

 

(C) This Agreement was negotiated and prepared by both Parties with the advice and 

participation of counsel. The Parties have agreed to the wording of this Agreement and none of 

the provisions hereof shall be construed against one Party on the ground that such Party is the 

author of this Agreement or any part hereof. 

 

(D) Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, (a) where the Agreement requires 

the consent, approval, or similar action by a Party, such consent or approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, and (b) wherever the Agreement gives a Party 

a right to determine, require, specify, or take similar action concerning a matter, such 

determination, requirement, specification, or similar action shall be reasonable. 

 

(F) Use of the words “include” or “including” or similar words shall be interpreted as 

“including but not limited to” or “including, without limitation.” 

 

(G) The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein. 

 

Section 8. Dispute Resolution and Step Negotiations. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to 

resolve all disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions 

contemplated hereby promptly by negotiation, as follows:  

 

(A) Either Party may give the other Party written notice of any such dispute not resolved in the 

normal course of business. Representatives of each of the Parties shall meet at a mutually 

acceptable time and place within ten days after delivery of such notice, and thereafter as often as 

they reasonably deem necessary, to exchange relevant information and to attempt to resolve the 

dispute. If the matter has not been resolved within thirty (“30”) days from the referral of the 

dispute to such representatives, or if no meeting of such representatives has taken place within 

fifteen (“15”) days after such referral, either Party may initiate mediation as provided hereinafter. 

If a Party intends to be accompanied at a meeting by an attorney, the other Party shall be given 

at least three business days’ notice of such intention and may also be accompanied by an attorney. 

All negotiations according to this clause are confidential and shall be treated as compromise and 

settlement negotiations for purposes of the Federal Rules of Evidence and State Rules of 

Evidence.  Each Party will bear its own costs for this dispute resolution phase. 

 

(B) If any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions 

contemplated hereby is not resolved by the procedures set forth in Section 8 (A), such dispute 

shall be submitted to non-binding mediation to a person mutually agreed by the Parties. The 

mediation may take place at a mutually agreed upon location. If the mediation process has not 

resolved the dispute within thirty days of the submission of the matter to mediation or within 

such a longer period as the Parties may agree to, either Party may exercise all remedies available 

at law or in equity under this Agreement, including the initiation of court proceedings.  Each 

Party will bear its own costs, and share equally in the costs of mediators, for this dispute 

resolution phase. 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 7 

 

 

(C) Nothing in this Section shall preclude, or be construed to preclude, the resort by either 

Party to a court of competent jurisdiction solely to secure a temporary or preliminary injunction 

or other relief to preserve the status quo or avoid irreparable harm.   

 

Section 9. Jurisdiction and Venue. City and Developer, to the fullest extent permitted by 

applicable law, irrevocably (i) submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the district courts located in 

Dallas County, Texas, and any appellate court thereof; (ii) waive any objection which either may 

have to the laying of the venue of any proceeding brought in any such court and (iii) waive any 

claim that such proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum.  Nothing in this provision 

shall prohibit a Party from bringing an action to enforce a money judgment in any other jurisdiction 

where the courts of such jurisdiction have jurisdiction over the other Party. 

 

Section 10. Accommodation of Financing Parties. To facilitate the Developer’s obtaining of 

financing to construct and operate the Development, City shall make governmentally reasonable 

efforts to provide such consents to assignments, certifications, representations, information, 

estoppels, or other documents as may be reasonably requested by the Developer or the Developer’s 

financing parties in connection with the financing of the Development; provided that in responding 

to any such request, the City shall have no obligation to provide any consent, certification, 

representation, information, estoppel, or other documents, or enter into any agreement, that 

materially adversely affects, or could reasonably be expected to have or result in a material adverse 

effect on, any of City’s rights, benefits, risks, or obligations under this Agreement.  Developer 

shall reimburse, or shall cause the financing parties to reimburse, the City for the incremental, 

direct, and documented out-of-pocket third party expenses (including, without limitation, the 

reasonable fees and expenses of outside counsel) incurred by the City in the preparation, 

negotiation, execution, or delivery of any documents requested by Developer or the financing 

parties.  

 

Section 11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its Exhibits constitute the entire 

understanding and agreement of the parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement.  No 

alteration of or amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed 

by the Party or Parties sought to be charged or bound by the alteration or amendment. 

 

Section 12. Binding Effect; Successors and Assigns.  The terms and conditions of this 

Agreement are binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.  This Agreement, or 

the right to receive payments, pursuant to this Agreement, may not be assigned, in whole or in 

part, without the express written consent of the City.   

 

Section 13. Amendments. No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid 

unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized signatory of each Party. 

 

Section 14.  Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement shall, to the 

extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its provisions as if such invalid 

provision were not a part hereof. 

 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 8 

 

Section 15. Notices. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and 

shall be given by either Party or its counsel in person, via express mail service, courier, or receipted 

facsimile transmission (but only if duplicate notice is also given via express mail service, courier 

or certified mail) or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the respective parties at the below 

addresses (or at such other address as a party may hereafter designate for itself by notice to the 

other party as required hereby).  All notices given according to this paragraph shall be deemed 

effective, as applicable, on the date such notice may be given in person or next business day 

following the date on which such communication is transferred via facsimile transmission, or as 

applicable, when deposited with the express mail service, courier, or in the United States mails.  

Any party may change its address for notices under this Agreement by giving formal written notice 

to the other parties, specifying that the purpose of the notice is to change the party’s address. 

 

If to City:    If to Developer: 

 

City of Garland   Wells Fargo Bank, NA 

200 N. Fifth Street   1755 Grant St.  

P.O. Box 469002   Concord, CA 94520 

Garland Texas 75046-9002 Attn: Fabrizio Galli 

Attn: City Manager      

Phone: (972) 205-2000  Phone: 972-303-8741 

Fax: (972) 205-2504      

 

With a required copies to:     

 

City Attorney       

200 N. Fifth Street      

P.O. Box 469002       

Garland, Texas 75046-9002     

Phone: (972) 205-2380    

Fax: (972) 205-2389      

 

Economic Development Director 

P.O. Box 469002 

Garland, Texas 75046-9002 

Phone: (972) 205-3800 

Fax: (972) 205-3801 

 

Section 16. Employment of Undocumented Workers.  During the Term of this Agreement, the 

Developer agrees not to knowingly employ any undocumented workers and if convicted of a 

violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a (f), the Developer shall repay the amount of the Incentive 

paid to and received by Developer from and by the City as of the date of such violation within 120 

business days after the date the Developer is notified by the City of such violation, plus interest at 

the rate of 6% compounded annually from the date of violation until paid.  The Developer is not 

liable for a violation of this Section concerning any workers employed by a subsidiary, affiliate, 

or franchisee of the Developer or by a person with whom the Developer contracts.  

 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 9 

 

Section 17. Non-Collusion.  Developer represents and warrants that neither Developer nor any 

representative of Developer has given, made, promised, or paid, nor offered to give, make, 

promise, or pay any gift, bonus, commission, money, or other consideration to any employee, 

agent, representative, or official of the City as an inducement to or to obtain the benefits to be 

provided by the City under this Agreement.   

 

Section 18. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. If 

any deadline contained herein ends on a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday generally recognized 

by banks in the State of Texas, such deadline shall automatically be extended to the next day that 

is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. 

 

Section 19. Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, 

each of which shall have the force and effect of any original, as of the Effective Date.   

 

Section 20. No Recording.  The Parties agree that neither this Agreement nor any memorandum 

of this Agreement will be recorded in the real property records of Dallas County, Texas, though 

any deeds and Right of First Refusals contemplated herein shall be. 

 

 

EXECUTED and EFFECTIVE  as of the ____ day of ______________, 2024. 

 

 

DEVELOPER  

Wells Fargo Bank, NA, 

a South Dakota corporate fiduciary  

 

By: ___________________________________ 

Name:_____________________________ 

Title:______________________________        

Date Execute:  ______________________ 

 

 

CITY 

City of Garland, a Texas home-rule municipality 

 

 

By:__________________________________ 

Judson Rex 

City Manager 

Date Executed: ___________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 10 

 

 

 

  



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 11 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

Property Legal Description 

 

 

Being a 178,762 square foot leasehold estate situated within Lot 1, Block 1, of Digital Realty, an 

Addition to the City of Garland, Texas, as recorded in County Clerk Instrument No. 

202300081044, of the Official Public Records of Dallas County, Texas 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 12 

 

 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – Wells Fargo Bank, NA (Digital Realty) Page 14 

 

 



GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEETCITY COUNCIL ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 10. 10.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Conduct the Swearing In of Council Member for District 4
Submitted By:Submitted By: Tracy Allmendinger, Deputy City Secretary
Summary of Request/ProblemSummary of Request/Problem
Conduct the swearing in of Council Member for District 4. 

Recommendation/Action Requested and Justif icationRecommendation/Action Requested and Justif ication
Conduct the swearing in of Council Member for District 4. 



GARLANDGARLAND

PLANNING REPORTPLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 11. a. 11. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Z 24-07 Mechu Autos Limited Company (District 6)
Submitted By:Submitted By: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
REQUESTREQUEST
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use on a property zoned Industrial
(IN) District and 2) a Plan for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use.

LOCATIONLOCATION
702 Easy Street

OWNEROWNER
Judge Randall Isenberg

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONPLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On April 22, 2024, the Plan Commission, by a vote of six (6) to zero (0), recommended denial of 1) a Specific Use
Provision for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District and 2) a Plan for an
Automobile Sales, New or Used Use.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONSTAFF RECOMMENDATION
Denial of 1) a Specific Use Provision for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use on a property zoned Industrial (IN)
District and 2) a Plan for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use.

Staff finds the request does not align with the Comprehensive Plan and Economic Development Strategic Plan.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The site contains an existing 6,000 square-foot building. The applicant proposes to use 3,050 square feet of the
building for automobile sales. 

The applicant will sell a maximum of six (6) cars that will be stored inside the building.

SITE DATASITE DATA
The subject property contains 0.45 acres and is accessed from Easy Street. It should be noted that 3,050 square-
foot of the building belongs to 702 Easy Street and 2,950 square-foot belongs to 704 Easy Street.

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONINGUSE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The subject property is zoned Industrial (IN) District. The Industrial (IN) district is intended to provide for a wide
range of industrial uses that are generally not compatible adjacent to residential neighborhoods and may or may not
be compatible with some nonresidential uses. Such uses include manufacturing, processing, assembling, research
and development, and warehousing and distribution.

A Specific Use Provision (SUP) is required for Automobile Sales, New or Used in this zoning district. The GDC
defines this as "Retail sales of new or used automobiles. The term includes the following incidental uses: major and
minor vehicle repairs, parts sales, on-site fuel tank(s) for use by the operation only (no retail fuel sales)."



CONSIDERATIONSCONSIDERATIONS
Planned Development:Planned Development:

1. The applicant requests to allow the Automobile Sales, New or Used Use, which requires a Specific Use
Provision in the Industrial (IN) District.

The applicant will sell a maximum of six (6) used cars. The applicant has indicated that cars for sale will be
stored inside the building.

2. The site plan (Exhibit C) meets the parking requirement. The outdoor surface parking located in front of and
behind the building will be for customers and employees. 
 

3. There are no site changes proposed with this request. Therefore, this request does not trigger any screening
and landscaping standards or new building design standards. 
 

4. The applicant requests the SUP to be valid of a time period of six (6) years. The SUP time period guide does
not have a recommended time period for automobile sales.

COMPREHENSIVE PLANCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Industry Center for the subject site. 

Industry centers provide a cluster of trade and industry that cumulatively employ large numbers of people.
Operations within this development type may require substantial infrastructure and may result in more significant
negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.).

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLANECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN

Per the Economic Development Strategic Plan, consideration should be given to whether adding automotive-related
uses such as Automobile Sales that require zoning changes are the best use of land. The Plan recommends being
selective on land use requests requiring re-zonings such as SUP's.  The proposal would not be anticipated to add
sales tax.

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USESCOMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The subject property is located within a larger industrial area containing auto repair, HVAC repair services, and
furniture repair.

AttachmentsAttachments
Z 24-07 Location Map
Z 24-07 SUP Conditions
Z 24-07 Exhibit
Z 24-07 R&M
Z 24-07 Responses
Z 24-07 Staff Presentation



EA
SY

 ST

I NI N

I NI N

I NI N

S  1 5 - 2 9S  1 5 - 2 9 P D  2 0 - 3 1P D  2 0 - 3 1

720

706

613

620

715

626

614

708

802

702

606

707

722

624

681

ZONING MAP Z 24-07
¯

0 75 150 Feet 1 inch = 119 feet

702 Easy Street

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST INDICATES SUBJECT PROPERTY



EXHIBIT B

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS

ZONING FILE Z 24-07

                  702 Easy Street

I.Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific Use
Provision is to allow an Automobile Sales, New or Used
Use.

II.Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision shall
not affect any regulation found in the Garland
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically
provided herein.

III.General Regulations:  All regulations of the Industrial
(IN) District, and Site Development Standards as set
forth in Chapter 2 and 4 of the Garland Development
Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by reference and
shall apply, except as otherwise specified by this
ordinance.

IV.Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this
Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are
automatically terminated, and the premises must be
used in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and
state law.

For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision,
Abandonment is any of the following acts:

A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on
the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of
the effective date of this SUP;

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date
of this SUP;

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the
premises within 90 days of receiving a final
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use;

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180
days;

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or



SUP Requirements
Zoning File 24-07
Page 2

EXHIBIT B

F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a
primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal
law.

The termination of utilities on the premises for a
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned.

V.Specific Regulations:

A.Site Plan: The site shall be in general conformance
with the approved Site Plan labeled Exhibit C.

B.Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have a
time period of six (6) years.

C.Automobiles For Sale: A maximum number of six (6)
automobiles shall be available for sale at a time and
shall be stored inside the building.



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, April 22, 2024

4a. DENIED Consideration of the application of Mechu Autos Limited Company,
requesting approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for an Automobile Sales, New or
Used Use on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District and 2) a Plan for Automobile
Sales, New or Used Use. This property is located at 702 Easy Street. (District 6) (File Z
24-07).

The applicant, Emeka Okoye, 702 Easy Street, Garland, TX, remained available for
questions.

Commissioner Rose asked the applicant how they would control the amount of cars on
the property since the request is for inside only.

The applicant explained that a maximum of six cars would be inside and no cars would
be on the outside. The outside parking would only be for customers. The applicant
further explained that on the front there is five customer spaces available and four
additional spaces in the back.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dalton to close the public hearing and deny the
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Rose. Motion carried: 6 Ayes, 0
Nays.











City Council Meeting
May 21, 2024

The applicant proposes an automobile sales use within an existing
building.

Z 24-07



CASE INFORMATION

Location:            702 Easy Street

Applicant:          Mechu Autos Limited  Company

Owner:               Judge Randall Isenberg

Acreage:             0.45 acres

Zoning:               Industrial (IN) District

Z 24-07



CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP

Z 24-07



CITYWIDE LOCATION
MAP

LOCATION MAP

Z 24-07



PHOTOS

Z 24-07



PHOTOS

Z 24-07



SITE PLAN

Z 24-07



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Z 24-07



The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan
recommends Industry Center for the subject site.

Industry centers provide a cluster of trade and industry that
cumulatively employ large numbers of people. Operations
within this development type may require substantial
infrastructure and may result in more significant negative
impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.).

Z 24-07



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGIC PLAN

Per the Economic Development Strategic Plan, consideration
should be given to whether adding automotive-related uses
such as Automobile Sales that require zoning changes are
the best use of land. The Plan recommends being selective
on land use requests requiring re-zonings such as SUP’s.  The
proposal would not be anticipated to add sales tax.

Z 24-07



SPECIFIC USE PROVISION

§The applicant requests to allow the Automobile Sales, New
or Used Use, which requires a Specific Use Provision in the
Industrial (IN) District.

§The applicant will sell a maximum of six (6) used cars.
The applicant has indicated that cars for sale will be
stored inside the building.

§The applicant requests the SUP to be valid of a time
period of six (6) years. The SUP time period guide does
not have a recommended time period for automobile
sales. Z 24-07



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Denial of 1) a Specific Use Provision for an Automobile
Sales, New or Used Use on a property zoned Industrial (IN)
District and 2) a Plan for an Automobile Sales, New or Used
Use.

Staff finds the request does not align with the
Comprehensive Plan nor the Economic Development
Strategic Plan.

Z 24-07



PLAN COMMISSION
RECOMMENDATION

On April 22, 2024, the Plan Commission, by a vote of six
(6) to zero (0), recommended denial of 1) a Specific Use
Provision for an Automobile Sales, New or Used Use on a
property zoned Industrial (IN) District and 2) a Plan for an
Automobile Sales, New or Used Use.

Z 24-07





GARLANDGARLAND

PLANNING REPORTPLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 11. b. 11. b.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: DD 24-02 Shana Carter (District 2)
Submitted By:Submitted By: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
REQUESTREQUEST
Approval of 1) a Major Waiver to Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development Code and 2) a Downtown
Development Plan to allow an attached wall sign on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Downtown Historic
(DH) sub-district.

LOCATIONLOCATION
409 Main Street

OWNEROWNER
Robert Smith

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONPLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On April 22, 2024 the Plan Commission, by a vote of six (6) to zero (0), recommended approval of 1) a Major Waiver
to Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development Code and 2) a Downtown Development Plan to allow an attached
wall sign on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Downtown Historic (DH) sub-district.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONSTAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approval of 1) a Major Waiver to Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development Code and 2) a Downtown
Development Plan to allow an attached wall sign on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Downtown Historic
(DH) sub-district.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The existing building is for "Roach Feed & Seed". The applicant requests to remove the existing awning sign and
install a new sign on the wall above the awning. Due to the application's deviation from particular GDC Downtown
Signage standards found in Chapter 7, Table 7-7 regarding attached wall signage, a Major Waiver is required through
the public hearing process in order for sign permits to be issued.

SITE DATASITE DATA
The subject site contains approximately 0.74 acres. The overall site has approximately 173 lineal feet of frontage
along Main Street and 173 lineal feet of frontage along State Street.

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONINGUSE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The property is zoned within the Downtown Historic (DH) Sub-district of the overall Downtown (DT) District. The
Downtown Historic (DH) Sub-district allows a variety of mixed uses. The applicant will not change the use of the
building. The public hearing Major Waiver process is triggered due to the size of wall signage request.



CONSIDERATIONSCONSIDERATIONS

1. Wall Sign 

The following table summarizes the request:
 
DevelopmentDevelopment

StandardStandard RequiredRequired ProposedProposed

Wall Sign
Per the GDC, maximum size is 30 square
feet if located 12 feet or higher above
grade. 

The proposed sign will be located 14 feet above and the
proposed size is 72 square feet and will be illuminated.
It should be noted the existing sign is 72 square feet.

The sign is intended to serve as the primary building
signage. The wall sign would be elevated to help with
visibility. 

2. The applicant states, "We have chosen to maintain the traditional look of our store front sign but are adding a
new flare of light and a relocation from the awning to the actual building. This should allow for better visibility
and blending of our look to the updated views of downtown Garland."
 

3. The intent of the Downtown (DT) District is to create a pedestrian-oriented area in context with the current
Downtown. The Downtown (DT) District combines minimum and maximum specifications and standards for site
layout, building design, and streetscape. One of the flexibility mechanisms in the Downtown (DT) District is the
option of Major Waivers, which allow relief from the standards of the District.

Section 7.30(C) of the GDC states that Major Waivers are material and substantial changes to the design
standards in the DT District, or changes which may initially appear to be in conflict with the goals and intent of
this district, including possible standards changes to land uses in the Downtown sub-districts. Major Waivers
may be approved by the City Council, following a recommendation by the Planning Director and the Plan
Commission. In order to approve a Major Waiver, the City Council findings are listed as follows:

Meets the general intent of this district; and
Will result in an improved project which will be an attractive contribution to the Downtown District.

COMPREHENSIVE PLANCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Community Centers for the subject property.
Community centers are areas with compact development, primarily non-residential, serving a collection of
neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a mix of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family
residential, and entertainment

In addition, the Garland Cultural Arts Master Plan Strategy 5.1 [Foster Relationships with the Business Sector]
encourages creative signage. Further, it states, "Following the exception made for Downtown Garland, develop a
signage variance that allows for creative signage that provides an opportunity for private businesses to contribute to
the visual vibrancy of the City."

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USESCOMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The surrounding properties are located in the Downtown (DT) District, particularly in the Downtown Historic (DH)
Sub-District. These properties are developed with an array of land uses including retail, personal services, and office
uses.  Other existing business signage in this area includes awning/canopy signage, wall signs, and freestanding
signs.

AttachmentsAttachments
DD 24-02 Location Map
DD 24-02 Exhibits
DD 24-02 R&M
DD 24-02 Responses
DD 24-02 Staff Presentation



MAIN ST

W STATE ST

N 
FIF

TH
 ST

N T
HI

RD
 ST

S F
OU

RT
H 

ST

S T
HI

RD
 STS FIFTH ST

D TD TD TD T

D TD T

S  1 9 - 3 6S  1 9 - 3 6
SS

2 3 - 3 02 3 - 3 0

D TD T

P D  0 8 - 0 7P D  0 8 - 0 7 S  9 1 - 2 7S  9 1 - 2 7

D TD T

D TD T

D TD T
507513

528

575

505

514

409
303

203
307

500

116

401
107

314

200

506520

519

114

504

316

315

301

102

500

509

524

215

301

108

510

108

401

310
400

102

402

375

520

501

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT PLAN  DD 24-02

¯
0 60 120 Feet

1 inch = 102 feet

409 Main Street

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST PROPOSED WALL SIGN



1/8” = 1’

DATE:

SCALE:

REVISED:

All Electrical Sign Work to be Performed by Registered &
Licensed Contractor by State Law.  
Regulated by The Texas Department of Licensing and
Regulation, P.O. Box 12157 Austin, Texas 78711
1-800-803-9202, 512-463-6599.
website: www.license.state.tx.us/complaints

Registered/Licensed Electrical Contractor # TSCL 18536  

THIS NOTICE REQUIRED BY STATE LAW
JOB:SPECIAL NOTES:

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
This is an original drawing created by Sign Guy DFW Inc.   
It is submitted for your personal use; however, it shall at 
all times remain the property of Sign Guy DFW Inc. It may  
be used in connection      with the project being planned 
for you by Sign Guy DFW Inc, but not otherwise.  You are  
not authorized to show these drawings to anyone 
outside your organization, nor is it to be reproduced, 
used, copied  or exhibited in any fashion.

PLEASE NOTE!!  UP TO 2 REVISIONS INCLUDED
IN INITIAL DESIGN.  ANY ADDITIONAL CHANGES
WILL INCUR A STANDARD DESIGN CHARGE OF

 HOUR, BILLED IN 1/4 HOUR INCREMENTS.$60
  CHECK ALLPLEASE CAREFULLY PROOFREAD!

SPELLING, PUNCTUATION, PHONE NUMBERS,
SIZES AND COLORS BEFORE APPROVING.
ANY CHANGES MADE AFTER APPROVAL WILL INCUR
ADDITIONAL CHARGES.

11-11-23Roach Feed
409 Main St

Garland,TX 75040

CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE 1-120V/20A DEDICATED CIRCUIT
WITHIN 5’ OF SIGNAGE FOR ELECTRICAL CONNECTION

“ROACH FEED & SEED”
ONE SET  FACE/REVERSE LIT CHANNEL LETTERS MOUNTED ON WIREWAY WITH BLUE ALUMINUM ACM BACKGROUND
WITH BLUE TRANSLUCENT FILM ON POLYCARB BACK
3” BLACK RETURNS
“PURINA LOGOS”
SET OF FACE LIT CHANNEL STYLE LOGO BOXES WITH RED VINYL APPLIED PER LAYOUT
5” RETURNS                     
 1/8” WHITE 7328 ACRYLIC WITH PRINTED GRAPHICS APPLIED, 1” BLACK TRIMCAP,
WHITE LED ILLUMINATED

SECTION

WALL

2” x 12”  WIREWAY

LEDS

REMOTE POWER SUPPLY
IN UL APPROVED CONTAINER

1/8” Brushed Aluminum DIEBOND
BACKGROUND

1” BLACK TRIMCAP

½” SEALTIGHT 

3/8” NON CORROSIVE
LAG BOLT & SHIELD 

Roach Feed & Seed

66.0’

1
8
.0

’

Original = 36” x 24’

FRAME WILL BE NEEDED TO ATTACH TO WALL DESIGNED TO WITHSTAND MINIMUM WIND PRESSURE OF 30 POUNDS PER SQ/FT

1
4
.0

’

Storefront = 66.0’
New Sign SQ FT = 72

No additional Signs on the facade
Sign will not exceed height of facade of building 

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



3/8” = 1’

DATE:

SCALE:

REVISED:

All Electrical Sign Work to be Performed by Registered &
Licensed Contractor by State Law.  
Regulated by The Texas Department of Licensing and
Regulation, P.O. Box 12157 Austin, Texas 78711
1-800-803-9202, 512-463-6599.
website: www.license.state.tx.us/complaints

Registered/Licensed Electrical Contractor # TSCL 18536  

THIS NOTICE REQUIRED BY STATE LAW
JOB:SPECIAL NOTES:

CONCEPTUAL DRAWING
This is an original drawing created by Sign Guy DFW Inc.   
It is submitted for your personal use; however, it shall at 
all times remain the property of Sign Guy DFW Inc. It may  
be used in connection      with the project being planned 
for you by Sign Guy DFW Inc, but not otherwise.  You are  
not authorized to show these drawings to anyone 
outside your organization, nor is it to be reproduced, 
used, copied  or exhibited in any fashion.

PLEASE NOTE!!  UP TO 2 REVISIONS INCLUDED
IN INITIAL DESIGN.  ANY ADDITIONAL CHANGES
WILL INCUR A STANDARD DESIGN CHARGE OF

 HOUR, BILLED IN 1/4 HOUR INCREMENTS.$60
  CHECK ALLPLEASE CAREFULLY PROOFREAD!

SPELLING, PUNCTUATION, PHONE NUMBERS,
SIZES AND COLORS BEFORE APPROVING.
ANY CHANGES MADE AFTER APPROVAL WILL INCUR
ADDITIONAL CHARGES.

11-11-23Roach Feed
409 Main St

Garland,TX 75040

CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE 1-120V/20A DEDICATED CIRCUIT
WITHIN 5’ OF SIGNAGE FOR ELECTRICAL CONNECTION

ONE SET  FACE LIT CHANNEL LETTERS MOUNTED ON WIREWAY WITH BLUE ALUMINUM ACM BACKGROUND
5” BLACK RETURNS                     
 1/8” WHITE 7328 ACRYLIC WITH PRINTED GRAPHICS APPLIED, 1” BLACK TRIMCAP,
WHITE LED ILLUMINATED

SECTION

WALL

2” x 12”  WIREWAY

LEDS

REMOTE POWER SUPPLY
IN UL APPROVED CONTAINER

1/8” Brushed Aluminum DIEBOND
BACKGROUND

1” BLACK TRIMCAP

½” SEALTIGHT 

3/8” NON CORROSIVE
LAG BOLT & SHIELD 

Roach Feed & Seed3
6
.0

0
”

24.0’

Original = 36” x 24’
Storefront = 66.0’
New Sign SQ FT = 72

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, April 22, 2024

4a. APPROVED Consideration of the application of Shana Carter, requesting
approval of 1) a Major Waiver to Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development
Code and 2) a Downtown Development Plan to allow an attached wall sign on a
property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Downtown Historic (DH) sub-district. This
property is located at 409 Main Street. (District 2) (File DD 24-02).

The applicant, Shana Carter, 409 Main Street, Garland, TX 75040, remained available
for questions.

Commissioner Rose asked the applicant if the sign would be lighted.

The applicant confirmed the sign would be lighted.

Chair Roberts asked the applicant if the sign would be lighted internally or externally.

The applicant clarified that the sign would be front lit and back lit.

Motion was made by Commissioner Abell to close the public hearing and approve the
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Paris. Motion carried: 6 Ayes, 0
Nays.



























City Council Meeting
May 21, 2024

The applicant requests a “Major Waiver” to the Downtown Sign
Standards to remove the existing awning sign and install a new sign on
the building wall at “Roach Feed & Seed”.

DD 24-02



CASE INFORMATION

Location:            409 Main Street

Applicant:          Shana Carter

Owner:               Robert Smith

Acreage:             0.74 acres

Zoning:               Downtown (DT) District
     Downtown Historic (DH) Sub-district

DD 24-02



CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP

DD 24-02



CITYWIDE LOCATION
MAP

LOCATION MAP

DD 24-02



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

DD 24-02



In addition, the Garland Cultural Arts Master Plan Strategy
5.1 [Foster Relationships with the Business Sector]
encourages creative signage. Further, it states, “Following the
exception made for Downtown Garland, develop a signage
variance that allows for creative signage that provides an
opportunity for private businesses to contribute to the visual
vibrancy of the City.”

DD 24-02



   PHOTOS

DD 24-02



   PHOTOS

DD 24-02



                                         EXISTING

DD 24-02



                                         PROPOSED

DD 24-02



DD 24-02

Development
Standard

Required Proposed

Wall Sign
 

Per the GDC, maximum size is 30 square
feet if located 12 feet or higher above
grade.

The proposed sign will be located above
12 feet and the proposed size is 72 square
feet.
 
The sign is intended to serve as the
primary building signage. The wall sign
would be elevated to help with visibility.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approval of 1) a Major Waiver to Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of
the Garland Development Code and 2) a Downtown
Development Plan to allow an attached wall sign on a
property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Downtown Historic
(DH) sub-district.

DD 24-02



PLAN COMMISSION
RECOMMENDATION

On April 22, 2024 the Plan Commission, by a vote of six (6)
to zero (0), recommended approval of 1) a Major Waiver to
Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development Code and
2) a Downtown Development Plan to allow an attached wall
sign on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District,
Downtown Historic (DH) sub-district.

DD 24-02



Major Waivers may be approved by the City Council,
following a recommendation by the Planning Director and
the Plan Commission. In order to approve a Major
Waiver, the City Council findings are listed as follows:

‣ Meets the general intent of this district; and
‣ Will result in an improved project which will be an attractive

contribution to the Downtown District.

DD 24-02





GARLANDGARLAND

PLANNING REPORTPLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 11. c. 11. c.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Item Title:Item Title: Z 23-08 Triangle Engineering, LLC (District 1)
Submitted By:Submitted By: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
REQUESTREQUEST
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail (CR) Uses; 2) a
Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use, Restaurant Use and
Restaurant with Drive-Through Use.

LOCATIONLOCATION
5203 Naaman Forest Boulevard

OWNEROWNER
Tarek Kadowr

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONPLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On April 22, 2024, the Plan Commission voted three (3) to three (3) on a motion to approve, regarding 1) an
Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail (CR) Uses; 2) a Specific Use
Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use, Restaurant Use and Restaurant
with Drive-Through Use. The recommendation is considered, in effect, denial. 

The applicant has since made changes to the proposal, including adding enhanced architectural features on the
north-facing building façade of Building 3, and relocating the open space/outdoor seating area to be adjacent to the
building. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONSTAFF RECOMMENDATION
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail (CR) Uses; 2) a
Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use, Restaurant Use and
Restaurant with Drive-Through Use.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The site has currently undeveloped. In 2012, the City Council approved a Concept Plan for multiple tracts and a
Detail Plan for a retail use [Academy Sports + Outdoors]. 

The subject property is based in the Community Retail (CR) District, which allows retail and restaurant uses. A
restaurant with drive-through requires approval of a Specific Use Provision.

SITE DATASITE DATA
The subject property contains 2.67 acres and is accessed from two points along Naaman Forest Boulevard. The first
access point is through a mutual access easement and the second access point is directly from Naaman Forest
Boulevard.

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONINGUSE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The subject property is zoned Planned development (PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail Uses. 

The Community Retail (CR) district is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, and business
establishments that may or may not be designed in a shopping center configuration. The district may be used as a
transition district between lower intensity retail or office uses and more intense uses. A CR district is generally
appropriate along major transportation corridors but is generally not appropriate in proximity to low-density residential



districts without significant buffering and screening features. An example of an allowed use in a CR district is a retail
shopping area that may be large in scale with very limited or no outside storage. Traffic generated by uses in a CR
district must be focused onto the major thoroughfare network. Development in a CR district may not be designed in a
manner that increases traffic through residential areas.

CONSIDERATIONSCONSIDERATIONS
Planned Development:Planned Development:

1. Site Plan:

The applicant proposes three (3) buildings for restaurant use, restaurant with drive-through and retail use.  
 
The restaurant with drive-through use is proposed in Building 3, closest to Naaman Forest Boulevard.  
 
Building 1 Area: 16,400 square feet 
 
Building 2 Area: 4,321 square feet 
 
Building 3 Area: 6,405 square feet

2. Building Setbacks:

Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 requires a sixty (60)-foot building setback along Naaman Forest
Boulevard.  
 
Building 3 is approximately thirty-three (33) feet from the property line along Naaman Forest Boulevard.  
 
It should be noted that the GDC requires a side setback of twenty (20) feet when adjacent to a street. 
 
Per the applicant's narrative, "The current setback requirement significantly limits the usable space available for
development and hampers the property's ability to reach its full potential."

3. Screening and Landscaping:

Planned Development (PD) requires a thirty (30)-foot wide landscape buffer along Naaman Forest Boulevard.
The applicant is proposing a fifteen (15)-foot wide landscape buffer along Naaman Forest Boulevard. It should
be noted the GDC requires a fifteen (15)-foot wide landscape buffer along a Type D or larger thoroughfare which
includes Naaman Forest Boulevard.  
 
Per the applicant's narrative, "The request is being made in order to increase the building area, provide
additional parking spaces, and enhance the commercial use value of the property, thereby contributing to the
economic growth and development of the city." 
 
The eastern property line requires perimeter screening as it is abutting the Agricultural (AG) District, which is
considered a residential district. The landscape plan (Exhibit D) reflects a six (6)-foot tall brick wall with
vegetation along the eastern perimeter. 
 
The site complies with all other applicable landscaping and screening standards per the GDC and Planned
Development (PD) District 12-56.

4. Parking and Loading:

The site plan (Exhibit C) provides 128 total parking spaces. In order to provide a more functional open space for
pedestrians and customers, five parking spots were removed from the previous 133 provided/required parking
spaces following the Plan Commission meeting.

5. Traffic Impact Analysis:

A Traffic Impact Analysis was submitted to the Transportation Department and there were no resulting concerns
with the development.



6. Specific Use Provision:

The applicant proposes a time period of twenty-five (25) years for the Restaurant, Drive-Through Use. The SUP
time period guide recommends between twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) years.

7. Planned Development Flexibilities:

Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 requires a sixty (60)-foot building setback and a thirty (30)-foot wide
landscape buffer, whereas the GDC requires a twenty (20)-foot side setback when adjacent to the street and a
fifteen (15)-foot wide landscape buffer along Naaman Forest Boulevard.  
 
The applicant proposes a unique architectural design that will be more visible from the street view and enhance
the surrounding area.  
 
Additionally, at the recommendation of staff to add seating/gathering space, the landscape plan (Exhibit D)
reflects it accordingly. This open space is connected to the sidewalk and other open space between the
buildings to create a larger interconnected pedestrian area. Benches are also proposed next to each building.

COMPREHENSIVE PLANCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Community Centers for the subject property.
Community centers are areas with compact development, primarily non-residential, serving a collection of
neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a mix of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family
residential, and entertainment. 

The proposed use complies with the Comprehensive Plan.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLANECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN
The proposed use is considered "Shopping Center" and "Retail Strip" per the Economic Development Strategic Plan;
this category represents a property tax revenue per acre at $8,639 and $8,439, respectively. In addition, the proposal
brings additional sales tax to Garland.

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USESCOMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The properties to the north, west and south are mainly retail, bank, grocery store and restaurant and car wash uses.
The property to the east is zoned Agricultural (AG) District and it is developed with the Curtis Culwell Center.

The proposed use is compatible to the surrounding area.

AttachmentsAttachments
Z 23-08 Location Map
Z 23-08 PD & SUP Conditions
Z 23-08 Exhibits
Z 23-08 R&M
Z 23-08 Responses
Z 23-08 Staff Presentation



SPRING
CREEK WY

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD W

NAAMAN FOREST BLVD

N GARLAND AVE

C RC RP DP D
0 4 - 4 20 4 - 4 2

P D  0 3 - 2 4P D  0 3 - 2 4

P D  0 7 - 3 6P D  0 7 - 3 6

P DP D
0 8 - 1 50 8 - 1 5

P DP D
0 7 - 3 90 7 - 3 9

S  1 4 - 2 9S  1 4 - 2 9

P D  1 3 - 0 2P D  1 3 - 0 2

P D  0 1 - 1 6P D  0 1 - 1 6

P D  0 3 - 1 4P D  0 3 - 1 4

P DP D
8 5 - 3 98 5 - 3 9

P D  1 2 - 5 6P D  1 2 - 5 6

P DP D
1 6 - 0 51 6 - 0 5

P D  0 2 - 2 0P D  0 2 - 2 0

P D  0 7 - 2 7P D  0 7 - 2 7

C RC R

P D  0 5 - 6 3P D  0 5 - 6 3

A GA G

A GA G

SS
1 6 - 3 11 6 - 3 1

P DP D
0 3 - 6 50 3 - 6 5

P D  0 3 - 6 6P D  0 3 - 6 6

P D  1 9 - 0 4P D  1 9 - 0 4

P D  2 0 - 3 7P D  2 0 - 3 7

P D / S  2 1 - 3 4P D / S  2 1 - 3 4
P DP D

1 6 - 3 91 6 - 3 9

M F - 1M F - 1

5130

5150

4950

4880

4902

4940

4920

5243
5203

4999

4850

5131

5100

ZONING MAP Z 23-08
¯

0 260 520 Feet 1 inch = 396 feet

5203 Naaman Forest Boulevard

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS

ZONING FILE Z 23-08

5203 Naaman Forest Boulevard

I.Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Planned
Development District is to allow a Restaurant,
Restaurant, Drive-Through and Retail Uses.

II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development (PD)
shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773 and Planned
Development (PD) District 12-56, as amended prior to
adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically
provided herein.

III.General Regulations:  All regulations of the Planned
Development (PD) District 12-56 and Chapter 2 of the
Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included
by reference and shall apply, except as otherwise
specified by this ordinance.

IV.Development Plans:

A. Detail Plan:  Development is to be in general
conformance with the approved Detail Plan set forth
in Exhibit C, Exhibit D and Exhibit E. In the event
of conflict between the conditions and Detail Plan,
the conditions listed below are to apply.

V.Specific Conditions:

A. Site Layout: The development shall be in
conformance with the site layout in Exhibit C.

B. Landscaping and Screening: Landscaping and
Screening shall be in conformance with Exhibit D.

C. Building Elevations: Building elevations shall be
in general conformance with Exhibit E.



PD/SUP Requirements
Zoning File 23-08
Page 2

EXHIBIT B

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS

ZONING FILE Z 23-08

5203 Naaman Forest Boulevard

I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific
Use Provision is to allow a Restaurant, Drive-Through
Use.

II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision
shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773 and Planned
Development (PD) District 12-56, as amended prior to
adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically
provided herein.

VI.General Regulations:  All regulations of the Planned
Development (PD) District 12-56 and Chapter 2 of the
Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included
by reference and shall apply, except as otherwise
specified by this ordinance.

VII.Specific Use Provision:

A.SUP Time Period: The Specific Use Provision the
Restaurant, Drive-Through shall be in effect for a
period of twenty-five (25) years.



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, April 22, 2024

3a. DENIED Consideration of the application of Triangle Engineering, LLC,
requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 12-56
for Community Retail (CR) Uses; 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-
Through Use and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use, Restaurant Use and Restaurant with
Drive-Through Use. This property is located at 5203 Naaman Forest Boulevard. (District
1) (File Z 23-08)

The applicant, Andrew Yeoh, 6614 Clear Spring Circle, Dallas, TX, provided an
overview of the request and remained available for questions.

Chair Roberts expressed concerns to the applicant about the closeness of the building
and the lack of a 30-foot landscape.

Commissioner Dalton asked the applicant for more specifics on the type of restaurant in
order to get a better idea of what the wait times at the drive-through would be like.

The applicant explained that at the beginning the establishment would be a coffee shop.

Commissioner Dalton asked the applicant what the remainder of the establishment
would be as far as restaurant or retail.

The applicant explained that the remaining establishment would be a restaurant with a
dine in option. The applicant also added that they are currently working on their
marketing campaign to attract prospective business.

Commissioner Dalton stated that if the establishment was a restaurant, the parking
space would not be sufficient for the establishment. Commissioner Dalton added that
the drive-through set up concerns him in that patrons would have to do a u-turn to be
able to access the drive-through.

Commissioner Paris asked the applicant if a Traffic Impact Analysis was conducted for
the subject property.

The applicant confirmed that a Traffic Impact Analysis was conducted and they have
addressed any concerns.

Chair Roberts asked staff to confirm if the Transportation Department was specifically
looking at the ingress and egress off of Naaman School Road but do not look as much
to the interior of the property and specifically at the flow of the cars in the drive-through.



Staff stated that the Transportation Department will also look at the internal circulation
of the private property side as well for example in regards to a drive-through, they will
look at a minimum vehicle space. Staff confirmed that the Transportation Department
did conduct a Traffic Impact Analysis and worked with the applicant to get all of the
requirements met.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dalton to close the public hearing and deny the
application as presented. Motion did not move forward for lack of a second.

Motion was made by Commissioner Rose to close the public hearing and approve the
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Cornelius. Motion failed: 3
Ayes, 3 Nays with Commissioners Dalton, Roberts and Abell voting in opposition.







City Council Meeting
May 21, 2024

The applicant proposes three (3) buildings for a restaurant with a
drive-through, sit-down restaurants and retail uses.

Z 23-08



CASE INFORMATION

Location:            5203 Naaman Forest Boulevard

Applicant:          Triangle Engineering, LLC.

Owner:               Tarek Kadowr

Acreage:             2.67 acres

Zoning:               Planned Development (PD) District 12-56

Z 23-08



CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP

Z 23-08



CITYWIDE LOCATION
MAP

LOCATION MAP

Z 23-08



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Z 23-08



The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan
recommends Community Centers for the subject property.
Community centers are areas with compact development,
primarily non-residential, serving a collection of
neighborhoods. This type of development consists of a mix
of uses, including retail, services, office use, multi-family
residential, and entertainment.

Z 23-08



The proposed use is considered “Shopping Center” and
“Retail Strip” per the Economic Development Strategic
Plan; this category represents a property tax revenue
per acre at $8,639 and $8,439, respectively. In addition,
the proposal brings additional sales tax to Garland.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
STRAGEGIC PLAN

Z 23-08



PHOTOS

Z 23-08



PHOTOS

Z 23-08



SITE PLAN

Z 23-08



OPEN SPACE

Z 23-08



LANDSCAPE PLAN

Z 23-08



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-08



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-08



BUILDING ELEVATIONS

Z 23-08



§ Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 requires a sixty (60)-foot
building setback and a thirty (30)-foot wide landscape buffer,
whereas the GDC requires a twenty (20)-foot side setback when
adjacent to the street and a fifteen (15)-foot wide landscape buffer
along Naaman Forest Boulevard.

§ The applicant proposes a unique architectural design that will be
more visible from the street view and enhance the surrounding
area.

§ Additionally, at the recommendation of staff to add
seating/gathering space, the landscape plan reflects it accordingly.
This open space is connected to the sidewalk and other open space
between the buildings to create a larger interconnected pedestrian
area. Benches are also proposed next to each building.

Planned Development
Standards

Z 23-08



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development
(PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail (CR) Uses; 2) a
Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use
and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use, Restaurant Use and
Restaurant with Drive-Through Use

Z 23-08



PLAN COMMISSION RECCOMENDATION

On April 22, 2024, the Plan Commission voted three (3) to three
(3) on a motion to approve, regarding 1) an Amendment to
Planned Development (PD) District 12-56 for Community Retail
(CR) Uses; 2) a Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-
Through Use and 3) a Detail Plan for Retail Use, Restaurant Use
and Restaurant with Drive-Through Use. The recommendation is
considered, in effect, denial.

The applicant has since made changes to the proposal, including
adding enhanced architectural features on the north-facing
building façade of Building 3, and relocating the open
space/outdoor seating area to be adjacent to the building. Z 23-08





GARLANDGARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTCITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular SessionCity Council Regular Session 12. 12.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 05/21/2024  
Title:Title: Boards and Commission Appointment
Submitted By:Submitted By: Courtney Vanover, Department Coordinator II
Issue/SummaryIssue/Summary
Mayor Scott LeMayMayor Scott LeMay

Dorothy White - Library Board

BackgroundBackground

Consideration / RecommendationConsideration / Recommendation

AttachmentsAttachments
Dorothy White - Library




	Agenda
	AI 9530 Approve the minutes of the May 7, 2024, Regular Meeting
	       ATT_Minutes May 7, 2024 DRAFT
	MINUTES

	AI 9529 Approve the minutes of the May 14, 2024, Special Meeting
	       ATT_Minutes May 14, 2024 DRAFT
	MINUTES

	AI 9461 Replacement of Raw Water & Air Release Valves at the Duck Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant
	       ATT_Fiscal Impact Report
	AI 9460 Construction Management Service for Duck Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades
	AI 9467 White Drive, Armstrong Drive, Glynn Drive, and Pecos Street Wastewater Replacement
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	AI 9465 Shredder for the Hinton Landfill
	       ATT_Bid Recap 
	Sheet1

	AI 9462 GP&L Spencer Plant CT Wastewater Transportation and Disposal
	AI 9457 Comprehensive Plan Update
	AI 9472 Replacement Front Loader Chassis for Sanitation
	       ATT_Units being replaced
	AI 9468 Plumbing Service, Repairs, and Replacements
	AI 9478 Replacement Side, Front, and Rear Loader Bodies for Sanitation Trucks
	       ATT_Units being replaced
	AI 9480 Two (2) Fire Trucks for the Garland Fire Department
	       ATT_Units being replaced
	AI 9470 Replacement Side and Rear Loader Chassis for Sanitation
	       ATT_Bid Evaluation Summary 0926-24
	       ATT_Units being replaced
	AI 9475 One (1) New Excavator for the Hinton Landfill
	AI 9455 Term Contract for Raised Pavement Markers
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	AI 9454 GP&L Holford Switch Station Materials
	       ATT_Bid Recap 
	Sheet1

	AI 9451 GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement Materials
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	AI 9443 GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station Steel Structures
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1
	Bid Recap 0774-24 pg.2.pdf
	Sheet1


	AI 9453 Northwood and Lakewood Alley Wastewater Improvements
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	AI 9444 GP&L Holford Switch Station to Campbell Switch Station Transmission Line Materials
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	AI 9492 Z 24-06 Barraza Consulting Group (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 24-06 Ordinance
	       ATT_Z 24-06 Exhibit A
	       ATT_Z 24-06 Exhibit B
	       ATT_Z 24-06 Exhibits C-E
	AI 9473 TxDOT Click It or Ticket Grant May 2024
	       ATT_TxDOT CIOT Resolution 
	       ATT_TxDOT CIOT Grant Application
	AI 9476 TxDOT Operation Slowdown Grant 2024
	       ATT_Ops Slowdown Resolution 2024
	       ATT_Ops Slowdown Grant Application 2024
	AI 9479 Next Generation 9-1-1 Statutory Distribution of Funds Certification
	       ATT_NG911 Fund Certification
	AI 9466 Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building B)
	       ATT_Proposed Economic Development Incentive Agreement
	AI 9481 Request for Development Assistance from Scout Cold Storage Dallas, LP (Building C)
	       ATT_Proposed Economic Development Incentive Agreement
	AI 9482 Request for Development Assistance from Wells Fargo Bank, NA
	       ATT_Proposed Economic Development Incentive Agreement
	AI 9522 Conduct the Swearing In of Council Member for District 4
	AI 9483 Z 24-07 Mechu Autos Limited Company (District 6)
	       ATT_Z 24-07 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 24-07 SUP Conditions 
	       ATT_Z 24-07 Exhibit 
	       ATT_Z 24-07 RandM
	       ATT_Z 24-07 Responses 
	       ATT_Z 24-07 Staff Presentation 
	AI 9484 DD 24-02 Shana Carter (District 2)
	       ATT_DD 24-02 Location Map 
	       ATT_DD 24-02 Exhibits 
	       ATT_DD 24-02 RandM
	       ATT_DD 24-02 Responses 
	       ATT_DD 24-02 Staff Presentation 
	AI 9485 Z 23-08 Triangle Engineering, LLC (District 1)
	       ATT_Z 23-08 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 23-08 PD and SUP Conditions 
	       ATT_Z 23-08 Exhibits 
	       ATT_Z 23-08 RandM
	       ATT_Z 23-08 Responses 
	       ATT_Z 23-08 Staff Presentation 
	AI 9510 Boards and Commission Appointment
	       ATT_Dorothy White - Library

